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Founded in 2001 and listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in 2010, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (“Sihuan
Pharmaceutical” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
(Stock Code: 00460.HK) is an international medical aesthetic and biopharmaceutical
company led and driven by innovation, with a leading independent production,
and research and development (“R&D") technology platform, a rich global product
pipeline and a mature and excellent sales system. Focusing on high-growth
therapeutic areas such as medical aesthetics, oncology, metabolism, diabetes,
cardiovascular and cerebrovascular, modern Chinese medicine and industrial hemp,
it adheres to its overall strategic objective of “Adhering to the full-speed promotion
of a two-wheeled strategy of Sihuan medical aesthetics and biopharmaceuticals” to
build a leading medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical enterprise in China.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

EEe(([gsg)) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD")

HITES Executive Directors

BSARAE(ERE) Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)

SEAEIN B2 A (B EEFRITEARE,) Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO"))

RAMEEE Dr. Zhang Jionglong

BRAEIS £ Ms. Chen Yanling

BHBEL+T (BIITHREARFEETBE) Ms. Miao Guili (Deputy CEO and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO"))
(RZZE==F+A+EHEZE) (appointed on 17 October 2022)

Z@REEE(RZE-—F+A++-BEE) Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (resigned on 17 October 2022)

BYkHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

el Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

KAEL Dr. Zhu Xun

FRELE(R-_ZE-_=FNH—BEEZE) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023)

EFEELEE(R-_E-_=EMA—BFT) Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)

BEARME JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

BB LT (R—E-——F+A++HEZT) Ms. Chen Yanling (appointed on 17 October 2022)

SREEE(R_E-—F+A++tAEZE) Mr. Li Kin Wai (appointed on 17 October 2022)

E@EAEA(N_E-—F+ A+ HET) Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (resigned on 17 October 2022)

EREL+-(R_E-_—&F+ A ++HET) Ms. Mok Ming Wai (resigned on 17 October 2022)

RERR AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

REEZLT (M _E-_—_FNA—BEZE) Ms. Chen Yanling (appointed on 1 September 2022)

SREEE(R_E-—F+A++tAEZE) Mr. Li Kin Wai (appointed on 17 October 2022)

E@EEEA(NZE-—FH A —BEE) Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (resigned on 1 September 2022)

ERELL(R-E-_E+A++BEE) Ms. Mok Ming Wai (resigned on 17 October 2022)

EREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

BENGTE(ER) Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman)
(R=ZZE_=FNA—HEZTAER) (appointed as chairman on 1 April 2023)

KAfEL Dr. Zhu Xun

TEEA(N-_ZE-_=FNA—HEZMT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023)

FEELRE(ERE) Mr. Patrick Sun (Chairman)
(R=Z=—=F/"A—HET) (resigned on 1 April 2023)

2 VO R B8 S5 9% R £ [ B BR A &) SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Zhu Xun (Chairman)

Dr. Che Fengsheng

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023)
Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Guan (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 April 2023)
Dr. Guo Weicheng
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong
(ceased to be chairman on 1 April 2023)
Dr. Zhu Xun
Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Ms. Chen Yanling (Co-chairman)
(appointed on 17 October 2022 and
appointed as co-chairman on 1 April 2023)
Ms. Miao Guili (Co-chairman)
(appointed on 17 October 2022 and
appointed as co-chairman on 1 April 2023)
Dr. Guo Weicheng
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (resigned on 17 October 2022)
Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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EARATEEEME PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

HIBET
VB E 155
SRESHAKIELIZ09E

FTEROBFERRE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BEBRAFELERAT
BEERBI69
BRSSP LT7E

#Aut

www.sihuanpharm.com

B 4D 4K 5%

0460

Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention Plaza
1 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.sihuanpharm.com

STOCK CODE

0460
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MILESTONES

2022

In response to the changes in the market, industry and policies, and to face
the challenges brought by the development, the Group, following a review
of its business layout and medium- and long-term strategic development
direction, intends to divest and dispose of some generic drugs that do
not meet performance expectations or do not meet long-term strategic
development objectives and other non-core pharmaceutical or healthcare
businesses and assets. Meanwhile, the Group intends to complete the
potential disposal in stages, with the specific scope and implementation
details of the potential disposal to be finalized depending on market
conditions and negotiations with potential buyers. Through the reorganization
and integration of key businesses and the separation of non-core businesses,
the Group is able to focus more resources on two major strategic segments,
namely the medical aesthetics and biopharmaceuticals and enhance the
efficiency of resource allocation. In addition, these initiatives also bring more
clarity to the Group'’s valuation system and fully demonstrate the long-term
value that the innovative drugs plus medical aesthetics business system can
bring to the Group after the disposal of the generics business, thus helping to
maximize shareholders’ value.

The modified sodium hyaluronate gel for injection (product name: Persnica™),
which is exclusively distributed by the Group, obtained Class Ill medical device
registration certificate from the NMPA. The approval of Persnica™ which is
exclusively distributed by the Group not only enriches the Group’s product
matrix, but also can quickly expand and penetrate the hyaluronic acid filler
market by leveraging the established market foundation and brand influence
of the botulinum toxin product Letybo® after the product is launched, thereby
providing high-quality and cost-effective products suitable for the physique
for beauty seekers. In addition, both hyaluronic acid and botulinum toxin are
high-value products in the market. The entry of Persnica™ into the Group’s
medical aesthetic platform not only enriches and expands the product
portfolio of the platform, but also reflects the Group’s product layout oriented
toward diversification and internationalization.

MeiYan Konglian has entered into an equity transfer agreement and a capital
increase agreement with Shenzhen Yimei and its original shareholder to
invest in Shenzhen Yimei by way of equity transfer and capital increase. After
the completion, MeiYan Konglian will hold some of the equity interest in
Shenzhen Yimei. The Group will launch its R&D and production in the field of
optoelectronic devices by leveraging the platform of Shenzhen Yimei.

FRF$R4% ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 5
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MeiYan Konglian entered into an exclusive distribution agreement in
relation to skin booster injection CELLBOOSTER® series products with
SUISSELLE SA from Switzerland, and obtained the exclusive distribution
rights for the products in mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.
Four skin booster injection products of CELLBOOSTER® series, which is
exclusively distributed by the Group, are used for brightening skin tone,
smoothing wrinkles, local shaping and preventing hair loss and hair graying,
respectively. The products not only enrich the Group’s product matrix, but also
demonstrate the Group’s commitment to deepen its presence in the medical
aesthetics area and its international strategic vision.

MeiYan Konglian has signed an agreement with Bluepha Co., Ltd.
("Bluepha”) on 19 January 2022, whereby the two parties will establish a
joint venture to jointly develop PHA microspheres and bio-manufacturing-
based regenerative medical materials, and the two parties will jointly complete
the R&D, compliance declaration and subsequent commercial promotion of
the products. The strategic cooperation between the Group and Bluepha to
jointly establish a joint venture gives the Group an opportunity to enter the
huge industrial blue ocean of synthetic biology in advance and successfully
take the first step in the vertical extension from the medical aesthetics industry
end to the upstream raw material end, which will help the Group further
improve its layout in the field of medical aesthetics and enhance the core
competitiveness of the Group.

MeiYan Konglian entered into an exclusive distribution agreement in relation
to SYLFIRM X™ (golden microneedle) product with South Korea VIOL Co.,
Ltd., and obtained the exclusive distribution rights for the products in
mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau, marking the first layout of the Group
in the optoelectronic equipment market was implemented.

A total of 20 products independently developed by MeiYan Konglian obtained
the medical device registration certificate, including self-developed medical
skin care gel and medical skin repair gel, three self-developed recombinant
type Il collagen gel accessories, three self-developed medical scar repair
products, eight self-developed gynecological dressing products and four
self-developed medical skin care dressing products. With focus on the
two pain points of wound healing and scar repair after medical aesthetics
treatment, these products can form an effective product combination with the
photoelectric products such as gold microneedles that the Group distributes.
The approval of a number of self-developed products not only proves the
strong R&D strength and rapid registration ability of MeiYan Konglian, but
also marks the further implementation of the Group's self-developed pipeline
of medical beauty products, and enriches and expands the product portfolio of
the Group’s medical beauty platform, MeiYan Konglian.

VO R B8 S5 9% R £ [ B BR A &) SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



HMENR EEEFRHMER T HAK
EM B WRBIZIEBM - NEE
BE - RRAFHEHRSHTED#E
—IRABURIFENEYaRR X
AHEREAGHREEEATS - M
EEFTEYO P ER L EREE
FHIBESHRE S - AR FHEBH R
BERNREFRCER - I BREFS
LR R D T TR D AR AR KB
DA AEERERRGIEFTEDE
ARBERIIERPEER S -

HMAEYSI AR & R RES R L
FEBFREERRIE - R EWHEFRE
AT AR R B E B R Y
ALEERIE  ERETMTEDNRE
BENWN BT ABDRCEROFER -

HMEY B EMEHN LT RUBRNE S
) B ALE A BT M R B A (RE) B YR R
REMBER(RE - &0 - WERERE
S AE - R RIE ) 1 H I EER R S
BEAFIND)EESEREE BILE - &
IR M SR R T — B A — — (& 8 5
BB RS ([PPL]) - & (838 FEAE
RBBE T —HEBEBEEN T - —
BERFNEE LT EHFE(NDA) e

HMAYE BB EEERNBRA R
(TtegzE | FE2EMBAR LG L%
ML EFEBR AR ([ LB |)FT AT
AEH - UIEERPEE(BIEEARE -
REBEBERITHRE - B ERPIEFRIFT
BEMPEAE)([KPEE])REFM
A W) RO PR R R R B E B IS R R
Plazomicin R 270 2L 7 6 | %53 00 3 Ak
BRIZRET -

HMMEWMBEIEARBREL (LE)ENE
EMBRARAR([REER ) EKEE
REAER - BRET T ENHN
AXLIT I £ KBS BT 77 BO Ik %2 & #PD-1 88
NEERAKARZER  HKRAREBA
AREERETAER

LERERE
MILESTONES

Xuanzhu Biopharm has submitted an application for A-share listing to the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and received a notice of acceptance. The Group
believes that this spin-off will help Xuanzhu Biopharm to further become an
independent innovative drug research and development platform company,
and can directly enter the debt and equity capital markets, thereby increasing
Xuanzhu Biopharm's financial flexibility and enhancing its ability to raise
external funds ability to support the rapid growth and industrialization of its
business. In addition, as Xuanzhu Biopharm will remain our subsidiary after
the completion of the proposed spin-off, the Group and its shareholders will
continue to benefit from the future development and growth of Xuanzhu
Biopharm.

Fulvestrant injection introduced by Xuanzhu Biopharm was accepted by the
NMPA. This marketing application is the first anti-tumor drug marketing
application submitted by Xuanzhu Biopharm and has been accepted, marking
the new milestone of Xuanzhu Biopharm's anti-tumor drug from research and
development to commercialized development.

The investigational new drug (IND) application of phase Il clinical trials for the
treatment by Xuanzhu Biopharm’s self-developed Anaprazole Sodium Enteric
Dissolve Tablets for new indication of reflux esophagitis (RE) in adults and
the control of its associated symptoms (acid reflux, heartburn, retrosternal
pain or discomfort, belching reflux, etc.) has been accepted by the NMPA.
Anaprazole Sodium is the only new generation proton pump inhibitor (“PPI")
independently developed in China. The NDA for its first indication, duodenal
ulcers, was submitted for marketing application in 2021.

Xuanzhu Biopharm and Shanghai SPH New Asia Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
("New Asia Pharmaceutical”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Pharma”), reached an
agreement on exclusive license of APIs and formulations of two new anti-
infection drugs, Benapenem and Plazomicin in the Greater China Territory
(including Mainland China, Hong Kong SAR, Macau SAR and Taiwan)
(“Greater China Region”).

Xuanzhu Biopharm has entered into the cooperation agreement in relation
to combination therapies with CTTQ-Akeso (Shanghai) Biomed. Tech. Co.,
Ltd (“CTTQ-Akeso"”), pursuant to which, both parties agreed to jointly carry
out exploration and experiments on the AXL inhibitor and the Penpulimab
PD-1 monoclonal antibody of CTTQ-Akeso, with an aim of developing their
application of combination therapies for solid tumors.

4 fF ¥4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 7
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A highly active and highly selective AXL inhibitor XZ2B-0004 (SLC-391) capsule
applied by Xuanzhu Biopharm has successfully obtained the application of
clinical trials for the treatment of advanced solid tumors and hematological
malignancies and implied permission of the NMPA. SLC-391 has huge market
potential in the clinical combination therapy of non-small cell lung cancer,
and will have a positive impact on the Group’s operating performance in the
future.

HER2 double antibody XZP-KM257, a Class 1 macro molecules innovative drug
XZP-KM257 independently developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm, was approved
for clinical trials, marking that Xuanzhu Biopharm’s first macro molecule drug
has entered the clinical development stage.

Huisheng Biopharm successfully completed its Round A+ financing of RMB580
million and Round A financing of RMB500 million, with a post-investment
valuation of RMB5.58 billion. The funds raised this time are mainly used
to meet the normal operating needs of Huisheng Biopharm, including the
clinical advancement of products under research, the purchase of production
equipment, and supplementary operating liquidity. The successful completion
of Round A and Round A+ financing not only reflects the recognition of the
investors for the research and development strength and industrialization
capabilities of Huisheng Biopharm, but also reflects the Company’s confidence
and expectation in the value creation and broad market prospect of the
whole product pipeline laid out by the Company in the field of diabetes and
complications.

The NDA of the fourth generation insulin degludec injection developed by
Huisheng Biopharm, was accepted by NMPA. It is the first domestic insulin
degludec analogue that has applied for an NDA having been accepted in
China after the original drug Tresiba®. At the same time, the product can
also form a combination with other products, such as the insulin degludec
and insulin aspart injection, as well as insulin degludec and liraglutide
injection, which are also in the product pipeline of Huisheng Biopharm.
This will also help the Group to accelerate the development of its diabetes
product pipelines, and is expected to further boost sales growth, enhance the
Group's comprehensive strength and significantly strengthen the Group's core
competitiveness.

The NDA of Janagliflozin, an innovative patent drug for the treatment of
diabetes under Huisheng Biopharm, developed by Huisheng Biopharm has
been accepted by the NMPA. It is the second domestic Class 1 innovative
SGLT-2 inhibitor, that has submitted an NDA in China and with the application
having been accepted.

VO R B8 S5 9% R £ [ B BR A &) SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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The NDA of Insulin Aspart Injection, Insulin Aspart 30 Injection and Insulin
Aspart 50 Injection developed by Huisheng Biopharm also have been accepted
by the NMPA. Huisheng Biopharm is currently the only company in China
that has simultaneously applied for the biologics license of all types of
insulin aspart and with all applications accepted, fully demonstrating the
comprehensiveness and integrity of the Company’s R&D strategy to meet the
clinical needs of different insulin treatment options for diabetic patients.

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. was included in the Hong Kong
Stock Connect list under the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, which
means that the capital market and professional investors have further
increased their attention to Sihuan Pharmaceutical and further recognized the
long-term investment value and future growth prospects of the Company, and
will also help to enhance the Company’s influence in the capital market.

Five products including Octreotide Acetate Injection, Tenofovir Alafenamide
Fumarate Tablets, Fondaparinux Sodium Injection, Lacosamide Tablets, and
Metoprolol Succinate Sustained Release Tablets developed by the Group won
the bid of the seventh batch of national drug centralized procurement.

Tenofovir Fumarate Tablets (25 mg) and the antithrombotic drug Ticagrelor
Tablets (60 mg and 90 mg) developed by the Group have obtained the drug
registration approval issued by the NMPA.

4 Z ¥4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 9



LERBERE
MILESTONES

10

Zsﬁlmttm HEHBRNENER
SHREmEIRE(Letybo® 100U) °

K& .QI&H%EEE’]E%K@(%W
B REEH) QR X)) EXES
ZrnEaE ﬁfi%(r.%ﬁﬁkﬁl)ﬁtxﬁm
Eiﬁ%ﬁi&ﬁﬂ"

ﬁ\\

W B = Genesis Biosystems, Inc.
([ Genesis | ) #) 2 ZBAZHE

AEERTBRAEBERPEARHK
ME([PE]EERAIESEERR
TEERXEH((RAERDETHNA
IR U G2 AR AN SR T PRAB R B e R E M ©

A B HE TR T A R BT A W RHE IR
DAERAR(THETEW]) TRBAAR
e00B EBIMAME - AWM EBBG K
ASEE  FREN FEEE - K&
B - EERE ;"é\lﬁﬁ - RRE
LI% ok BRASIE BEEX -
BHEEN EB ﬁzrsﬁfu%&é%z%ﬂ%

17 o

TR MWINE AR W B TP B
(INDA ) &R R 25 B2 -

SA B LIS R 10 1 A1 S 2 22 7 R 1O AR 1

mﬁf%l*”ﬁ*%ﬁtxﬁﬁrﬁf HIEG IR
BT A W R JE /N A B A R <R E (B E

Sh o TERT AN HT BEXZP-362 1 R R BEL 5
HERRER AR

& 47 4 ) 2 3 B HB Therapeutics, Inc.
(THBA R ) AEAE * 5I#EHBA A%
MERARGERMTS  ARFAZE=A
BIFT R 9 F B & B P& AR 224 0 15 B
RRIER AP I [ A R 2 R g 2 (g o

MERE EIEREEBR

2021

The Group has officially launched and sold its exclusive Korean botulinum
toxin product Letybo® 100U.

PLLA gel (product name: Karlian) (2ml/unit), which is independently R&D
and manufactured by the Group, has formally obtained the medical
device manufacturing license approval from the National Medical Products
Administration (“NMPA").

Acquisition of all equity interests in Genesis Biosystems, Inc. (“Genesis”).

The Group entered into an exclusive distribution agreement with Dongbang
Medical Co., Ltd. of South Korea (“Dongbang Medical”) to exclusively
distribute its two types of products, namely absorbable suture and
incontinence sling kit, in the People’s Republic of China (“China”).

Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu Biopharm”), a holding
subsidiary of the Group, completed a Series B financing of over RMB600
million, led by Sunshine Life and followed by Efung Capital, China Zhongji
Investment, TJ Capital, SDIC Taikang, Hai Chuang Fund of Funds, BOC Capital,
Jinjiang Xuanhong, Shaanxi Financial Holding, Hainan Wanxin Private Equity
Fund Management, DNV Capital, HY Capital and other renowned investment
institutions.

The New Drug Application (“NDA") for Anaprazole Sodium Enteric Dissolve
Tablets has been accepted by the NMPA.

Two indications of Birociclib, a Class 1 innovative drug for the treatment of
breast cancer, were approved by the NMPA for starting phase Ill clinical trials.

Xuanzhu Biopharm'’s first product in the field of non-small cell lung cancer
(NSCLC), XZP-3621, an innovative drug under development, has obtained
approval for clinical trials from the NMPA.

Xuanzhu Biopharm and HB Therapeutics, Inc. (the United States) (“HB")
agreed to cooperate to introduce the drug discovery and screening technology
platform from HB, work together to develop three novel molecular glue
protein degraders and obtain the future development and commercialization
rights of the product in the Greater China region.

A 7] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Xuanzhu Biopharm, and WuXi XDC, a subsidiary of WuXi Biologics
(Cayman) Inc., jointly announced that Beijing Xuanzhu Kangming Biological
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu Kangming”), a large molecule
biological drug platform, and WuXi XDC, have reached a collaboration on the
development and manufacturing of an innovative oncology drug KM501, a
bispecific antibody drug conjugate (“ADC").

Xuanzhu Biopharm and SignalChem Lifesciences Corporation
("SignalChem™”) have entered into a cooperation and licensing agreement
for the development and commercialization interests of SLC-391, a highly
potent and highly selective AXL targeting inhibitor, in the Greater China
region. The Group obtained the exclusive research, development, manufacture
and commercialization rights for each indication of SLC-391 in the field of
oncology in the Greater China region (mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan).

Xuanzhu Biopharm’s independently R&D drug XZP-6019 was approved by
the NMPA to conduct clinical trials for indication of Non-alcoholic Fatty Liver
Disease (“NAFLD").

Fadanafil, a new independently R&D PDE-5 inhibitor by Xuanzhu Biopharm,
has obtained Investigational New Drug (“IND") approval in relation to
indications for Pulmonary Arterial Hypertension (“PAH") for the treatment of
adult arterial pulmonary hypertension, so as to improve exercise ability and
delay clinical deterioration.

XZP-5955, an independently R&D Class 1 new drug of Xuanzhu Biopharm has
received the notice for drug clinical trial approvals.

On 26 January 2021, the Group accelerated its integration in innovation
layout, and its subsidiary Xuanzhu Biopharm completed the acquisition
of Beijing Combio Pharmaceutical Inc. (“Combio Pharmaceutical”), an
innovation-driven biological company.

The diabetes drugs developed by Jilin Huisheng Biopharm Co., Ltd.
(“Huisheng Biopharm”), insulin degludec and insulin aspart injection, has
successfully obtained the approval for the conduction of clinical trials from the
NMPA.

Huisheng Biopharm entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with
Porton Pharma Solutions Ltd. (“Porton Pharma”). Huisheng Biopharm and
Porton Pharma will strategically cooperate in the therapeutic areas of diabetes
and related complications in relation to the development and supply of APIs
and the co-development and launch of related preparations.

The Group's liraglutide project has completed its phase | clinical trials for
the treatment of type 2 diabetes and obesity, and obtained preliminary
bioequivalence results on pharmacokinetics and pharmacodynamics.

F R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 11
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P T F 2020

. B = T B Al R 25 [ e AN h e iR | B ED o Commencement of Phase Il clinical trial in the People’s Republic of China (the
FREE AR AR ([ A EDINE R R 85 “PRC") for self-developed innovative patented drug “Anaprazole Sodium”
R EmER [EaEe #EABRRERE & - and inclusion of “Huineng®”

into the National Reimbursement Drug List.

o WEF—RAEREE B 4EZRplazomicin o Acquisition of all interests and intellectual property rights of plazomicin, a new
HIKHRZE [ T i e N AR EE 1 o generation of aminoglycoside antibiotics in the Greater China Region.

. Bt N Rdt R BB AR N B ESH ° Capital injection by new investors into Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co.,
WAL E 77 18 DA DNR EE BEHEOR © Ltd. (an associate of Sihuan Pharmaceutical) to accelerate capacity expansion.

. 55 7K B A UK 25 455 0T B R _E T 18 KB Be PR . Official release of the result of large scale clinical trials after the launch of
MAERERAER  BEREEBIILE cinepazide maleate injection which takes stroke treatment into a new era with

N E LB 2R R B SD o its verified efficacy.

o BYFRBERXH-HREEREEEARA . Discloseable transaction — subscription by investment funds under CMG-SDIC
ABTESRBEHMCARE) £EMEIH Capital Co., Ltd. in Xuanzhu (Shijiazhuang) Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

BR R AIRHE -

. KREERERNEGRIRIGES - o Investment in Ascendum Capital Life Technology Fund Phase I.

o AEEBRRENEEASSEER [ 4 o Approval to launch the Group's exclusive Korean botulinum toxin product
RIEe SR BTG HEE - “Letybo®” in the PRC market.

— N 2019

o B B B = 538 B NE PR R Bl T = 22 1 o The first self-developed anti-diabetic innovative patented new drug
T&51)F RUB) B B HA RG PR A B o janagliflozin commenced Phase il clinical trials in China.

. A —RIESIEPVCID R E =Lz o The first company in China that has been granted drug registration approval
m f3EPVCﬁxfﬁgi%ﬁmm%/%M% for “Non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag for ceftazidime/sodium
EFR] - [IEPVCHREERE T ARM chloride injection”,

HBEER 5% B B FE SR | & [ 3EPVCHR sodium/5% glucose injection”,

REZLTS AEEMER ST for cefodizime sodium/sodium chloride injection”,

& |« [IEPVCIRE =L&)F 51 AR double chamber bag for cefuroxime sodium/sodium chloride injection”.
E4, RALSESDR | SR g Em A

= e

o F=EGFRIVFIAEIXZP-5809 & FIEAZ= I . Acquired Phase | to Ill clinical trial approval for the third generation of EGFR
HARRPRHLIF inhibitor XZP-5809.

e HRBERERIISRELTHK TR . Post-launch large-scale clinical trials of cinepazide maleate injection were
ANRVEG IR FE B M 35 © completed with efficacy verified.

—E-N\F 2018

o E1EIEE§'§§U%Q@E)\¢I§EE&%§Q . Three self-developed innovative drugs commenced Phase | clinical trials

- BIEDUIE B AT 28 B L CDK4A/6 1 in China, including selective CDK4/6 inhibitor birociclib, third-generation
"*“U WZEPHE - 55 =R E 0 2 R & BL il irreversible tyrosine kinase inhibitor XZP-3621, and PDE-5 inhibitor fadanafil.

) 81 7 XZP-3621 71 PDE-5 #) %I ) % 2= 7B
3 o
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2017

o Acquired 100% equity interest in Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Company
Limited (“Ambest Pharmaceutical (China)”) which currently holds the drug
production approvals for monoammonium glycyrrhizinate and cysteine and
sodium chloride injection and floium ginkgo extract with the brand name
“Huineng” and tertram ethypyrazine sodium chloride injection with the brand
name “Mainokang”.

o Established joint venture company (“JV"”) with Austria-based pharmaceutical
company CROMA-Pharma GmbH (“Croma-Pharma”), expanding into the
aesthetic medicine market in China.

o The Croma hyaluronic acid the Group distribute was launched on the market.

o The NMPA granted approval of Phase I-lll clinical trials for “birociclib”, a self-
developed innovative patented new drug.

2016

3 The NMPA granted approval for clinical trials of self-developed new drug
janagliflozin for diabetes treatment.

3 The NMPA granted approval for Phase I/II/Ill clinical trials of self-developed
innovative patent new drugs, fadanafil.

2015

o Acquired 39% equity interest in Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Ruiye”) to enrich and expand the Group’s product resources.

o Phase | clinical trial of Birociclib, the first self-developed innovative patented
oncology drug commenced in the U.S. The NMPA granted approval of Phase I/
/11l clinical trials of pirotinib.

2014

o Signed exclusive distribution agreement with South Korean Hugel Inc. on
botulinum toxin and hyaluronic acid products.

o The investigational new drug (“IND") application of Birociclib was successfully
submitted to the U.S. FDA and the clinical trial approval was granted.
3 The application for clinical trial approval of janagliflozin (the self-developed

innovative anti-diabetic drug) was accepted by the NMPA.

3 Established cooperation with Chongging Peg-Bio Biotechnology Co., Ltd for
development of insulin products.
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2013

° Obtained clinical trial approval for innovative patent drugs anaprazole sodium.

2012

° Acquired the remaining 40% equity interest in Shandong Xuanzhu which then
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

2011

. Acquired Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sihuan”) which owns
three exclusive drug products and various exclusive drug formulations mainly
focused on CCV diseases.

o Acquired 80% equity interest in Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“Changchun Xiangtong”) which owns both the manufacturing facility
and production license of active pharmaceutical ingredient (“API").

2010

° Listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.

° Ranked No. 4 in the Forbes 2010 list of the most promising enterprises in the
PRC and No. 1 among pharmaceutical companies.

VO R B8 S5 9% R £ [ B BR A &) SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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“Transformation Pioneer of the Year ([ FE#EA %N 7 |)”

Sihuan Pharmaceutical was granted the “Transformation Pioneer of the Year” ( [ FEER £ #ERQ
A ) at the “Greater China Best Listed Company 2023" award ceremony organized by Gelonghui,
by virtue of its innovative and transformative business strategy and its newly shaped two-wheel
drive of medical aesthetics and innovative drugs. This award is designed to recognize explorers
and practitioners who have created real value through transformation, maintained innovation
and positively impacted industry change. This award demonstrates that Sihuan Pharmaceutical’s
adaptability to dynamic environmental changes has gained more external recognition, and that the
Company’s long-term sustainable and high-quality development is worthy of anticipation as the
momentum of transformation is gradually unleashed.

[REEEBEREBEAR I REIRERKE ]

TIRE T HEBMAEHN [FLESBME ETARNE | LEE  RAEEBEREREAT IR
[REIREIRR |18 - SEXRTF R RDRBABER  TERMUEE  FTEEBRI  RREERHER
F RTEELNRNBELBEABR EMAR o hRMIREEER - LWETENRE ANBRTER
a o

The “Most Valuable Pharmaceutical and Medical Company ( [ REBEHEBEKEREAT] )” and
The “Best IR Team Award ( [ &{EIRBEIBEE ] )”

Sihuan Pharmaceutical was granted the “Most Valuable Pharmaceutical and Medical Company”
([ REEEBEREELQT] ) and the “Best IR Team Award” ( [ REEIRER#E | ) at the “7th
Zhitong Finance Listed Company Awards”. Such awards aim to praise the Hong Kong-listed
pharmaceutical and medical companies with healthy corporate governance structure, supreme
industry position, excellent core businesses and continuous and stable value return for investors. Such
awards won by Sihuan Pharmaceutical demonstrated the attention and recognition of the industry
and investors.
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The “Best Information Disclosure Award ( [ R{EEH# 3 | )”, the “Best Leader Award ( [ &{E%E
#%€ | )" and the “35 UNDER 35"

Sihuan Pharmaceutical was granted the “Best Information Disclosure Award” ( [&{EEK
# | ) at the Sixth China IR Annual Awards Ceremony, and its IR team members were granted the
“Best Leader Award” ( [&{E%B#2€ | ) and “35 UNDER 35", respectively. The awards to Sihuan
Pharmaceutical and its IR team marked the capital market’s recognition of information disclosure and
IR work of Sihuan Pharmaceutical. Looking ahead, Sihuan Pharmaceutical will continue to optimize
the information disclosure management system, constantly improve the quality of information
disclosure, and strive to convey the latest updates of Sihuan Pharmaceutical to the capital market in
the first time, in a bid to enhance two-way communication with the capital market and create more
value for shareholders.

e P

[FERSERBEERAE ]

FERTHEEEREREREEFSNEREENBERNMERERE E[EZERREZRGEENRK
ERER | LR [FENSERBERAR KK - ZRIARY T XA THERRBERERR R/
FEBEMSERTHAEEN  HESNFEEHK BANXIB BEITEHNFRRE  EHEAm
BHREITEBRREEL  NEFERBHAEE 2EHELEEEBEERE)  MEBEEEEEERERNELLN
[HE—RE]-

“Botulinum Toxin Brand Awards of the Year ([ FERNSZREEHEAE] )"

Depending on excellent product quality and unique brand value, Letybo®, a blockbuster product of
MeiYan Konglian, won the “Botulinum Toxin Brand Awards of the Year” (FERNSERMEESE
K# ) at the “Third Future Medical Beauty Conference and Ceremony”. The award recognized the
vigour brought by Letybo®, a product exclusively distributed by MeiYan Konglian, for the medical
aesthetic market in China. It advocates the attitude of comfort, natural beauty and confidence, and
creates ultra-high cost performance with its quality, therefore fully empowering medical aesthetic
institution with soft power and bridging the “last mile” between consumers and products.
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The “Elite Brand Partner ( [ B RIESESHE] )"

By virtue of its flagship product, Letybo®, MeiYan Konglian under Sihuan Pharmaceutical was
awarded the "2022-2023 Elite Brand Partner" prize by the Medical Aesthetic Technology Branch
of the Chinese Association of Plastic and Aesthetics (R R EFEA1E) of the Plastics and Aesthetics
Professional Committee (B EEZRHER E @) of the Association of China Non-Public Medical
Institutions (P B IER I ERE#MER ). This honor is not only an accomplishment to the brand
concept of MeiYan Konglian, but also a high recognition for the effort of MeiYan KongJlian to deeply
empower the industry and talents to promote the steady development of the medical aesthetic
industry through repaying the market with high-quality products, promoting the self-regulation and
standardized ecological construction of the medical aesthetic industry with the concept of three
regulations and collaborating with institutions to reshape the operation system with the dual engine
model of "self R&D + BD" for many years.

[ b T 77 3 5 9 36 22 o (PR AS)

HMEYBREERTRNUMNREIL R RN ER(RS)EE - ZEERREREERRERNRN
MERRB)REESBIE  EEESMRMNER (RS ER - REKCEERE - BHERMEER
= BEMISWAUSER  RAHLSE AR -

“Beijing New Technology and New Products (Services) ( [t =ZH#HEMHER (RE) 1)~
Xuanzhu Biopharm was granted the Beijing New Technology and New Products (Services) Certificate
(MEEMFHEMFTER (BRIS) | &) for its product Anaprazole Sodium. Such certificate aims
to implement the identification and management of new technology and new products (services),
so as to promote the application of new technology and new products (services), serve economic
development, urban construction and livelihood improvement, as well as give play to the driving force
of market, thereby enhancing the independent innovation ability of the whole society.

[RREBEBERE - PEAFEYERETOP10]

FATAEYIE [RIREZE 1005815 E [ [ PEIAIFTEYBEEETOP10 ] » [RIREFE 1005845 &5 |82 R0
2015%F - EEINE — At E3E E M EMAFTERAESE - SEMEE ERRAREZRN BRI
BEE  ZRBERKRBREENZLNE T’Eifﬂkﬁ SREFNRITEFHER - RREMEY AR
5% - KE [HERIFEYBETOPI0] - THER TITEHRNEFMENEENSERA °

“Future Healthcare VB 100 -Top 10 Innovative Biopharmaceutical Companies ( [ R 2RE & 5@
B - E R EYELETOP10] )”

Xuanzhu Biopharm was granted the “Top 10 Innovative Biopharmaceutical Companies” ([
BRI FTE Y EEFETOP10)) in the “Future Healthcare VB 100" ([ AR5 EE & H3&4% ). Founded in 2015,
“Future Healthcare VB 100" is the very first list addressing the innovative healthcare sector for non-
listed companies in the PRC. It aims to select Chinese innovative healthcare companies that truly
represent the future healthcare, and explore the core strengths of China's future healthcare industry,
with a view to promoting the innovation and transformation in the healthcare industry. The inclusion
of Xuanzhu Biopharm in this list as “ Top 10 Innovative Biopharmaceutical Companies " fully
demonstrates the high recognition for the development of Xuanzhu Biopharm in the industry.
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“Beijing Technologically Advanced Small- and Medium-sized Enterprises ( [T [EH4
oz )"

During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm was awarded the title of “Beijing Technologically Advanced
Small- and Medium-sized Enterprises” ( [t [E¥45#H | /%] ). Innovation capability
and distinctive expertise are of the utmost importance for technologically advanced small- and
medium-sized enterprises. The award was designed to guide the development of small- and medium-
sized enterprises in Beijing in a specialized, refined, unique and innovative direction, promote the
high-quality development of small- and medium-sized enterprises and enhance their comprehensive
competitiveness such as innovation capability and professional level. The conferment of this title to
Xuanzhu Biopharm fully demonstrates the high recognition of the municipal government and the
industry for the development of Xuanzhu Biopharm.

022 EEYBEEXEEE [ RARRM DD FRIFTEAERETOP10]

EFMAEMEI2022 B B EEXEER IPRE[HARRMEND FAIFELETOPI0/EE - F
vt @ AYBEEXBEEERBNESR  BUHEBESHE  SELARABGHRE TEBRARRERIZR
S FHERIETRIEEEEL BENEG - KERTH —HEVMBECENAFNES - AR RMEIE
KF - REREFER  EEE  FHB BRERAZEZENFERBERNAEME FEENKR
BlEATEZARMNL - RAFMENEMA [ RERREND FRAFELRETOPI0] - RHORBR TIT%
HRFMEYERNZERA ©

"Top 10 Small Molecule Innovative Pharmaceutical Companies with Highest Growth Potential
([HRERRMENSD FRIFELHETOP10] )" in the 2022 China Biopharmaceutical Industry Value
List (2022 B4+ B HEXEEE)

Xuanzhu Biopharm was ranked among the "Top 10 Small Molecule Innovative Pharmaceutical
Companies with Highest Growth Potential" ( [RER KM /NS FAIFELETOP10] ) in the
"2022 China Biopharmaceutical Industry Value List" ( [2022FF B A% 22 2B E S | ), which
was jointly compiled by Healife Group and Yiyun Tech, and the results of the list were selected by
Hua Yi Research Institute, an independent back-office research institute of Yiyun Tech, in strict
accordance with the selection process and evaluation criteria. The release of the list comprehensively
demonstrated the innovative ideas, achievements and innovation levels of a number of
biopharmaceutical enterprises, pushed related companies to make up for shortcomings, enhance their
advantages and open up new horizons, focused on solving key difficulties and bottlenecks thought
out the whole industrial chain, and provided more opportunities for the transformation of companies'
achievements. The inclusion of Xuanzhu Biopharm in the "Top 10 Small Molecule Innovative
Pharmaceutical Companies with Highest Growth Potential" fully demonstrates the industry's
high recognition of Xuanzhu Biopharm’s development.
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FFMAEMEI2022F BIAEY B ER R AIFEES TR E [ RAERRYE NS FAIMELKETOPI0EE -
202271 B =¥ 88 B bR AR BB | B A BURE ) 88 B2 A3 2 B8 I HUR 2R 2 R 77 (A1 PR A A
5l e K - Iy FRIFEEBEXEREAR /D FRIFEE R AMIERBHBLNBE - R
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“Top 10 Most Growing Enterprises of Small Molecule Innovative Drugs ( [ FEK R %N F Al
FHEM2TOP10] )” in 2022 China Biomedical Technology Innovation Value List (20227 B 4% )
BENBZAIFEES)

Xuanzhu Biopharm was ranked among the “Top 10 Most Growing Enterprises of Small Molecule
Innovative Drugs” ( [REREMEND FAIFESETOP10] ) in the “2022 China Biomedical
Technology Innovation Value List” ( [2022F Bl 4 ¥ 8 &R & AIFTEERS ] ). The 2022 China
Biomedical Technology Innovation Value List” aims to provide guidance and direction for biomedical
innovation and its future development based on data. Among them, the list of small molecule
innovative drugs mainly focuses on enterprises with small molecule innovative drug portfolio
and relatively advanced R&D progress. The inclusion of Xuanzhu Biopharm in the “Top 10 Most
Growing Enterprises of Small Molecule Innovative Drugs” fully demonstrates the industry’s high
recognition of Xuanzhu Biopharm’s development.

[ERETFEBEAENA

HMEPEFARE [ BHTPEBABRARHER - @HTEEFAEAEENEREAEEE
HABARMCEERFETBIRI10F « FEBBI0EETAR EMAIEAR - AKXTE - %aﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁq:
BI7£2,00082KEIE A RIH @ B H7ARTFENNEBHERECE - FMEMLIIES - BT FEE
EESNEABHNE )  EEUNERNEEEDNFERR  MARFMENKIBEEZH  HBET
BATIGHE M EY S BERRA °

“Forbes Chinese Unicorn Company ( [EHRHiHEEABRAR ] )"

Xuanzhu Biopharm was granted “Forbes Chinese Unicorn Company” ( [T EBAER AT | ).
During the year, Forbes China launched the nascent unicorns list for the first time, of which unicorn
companies represented those unlisted startups established for no more than 10 years and their
valuation were more than USD1 billion. In this selection, Forbes China selected 74 emerging unicorn
companies in China from more than 2,000 startups, and Xuanzhu Biopharm was listed among them.
Currently, new unicorn companies with Chinese industrial background are taking center stage at a
faster pace, and the fact that Xuanzhu Biopharm is selected on the list confirms the capital market's
recognition of Xuanzhu Biopharm'’s high value.

[2022FEERABERED X
BEAEDRENET R BRABERBZLE | - ZiTER };zﬁ”<<l%%ﬂ;%%3%%¢ﬂ#a:% A E A7
¥R 20224 & A E 108 Bl 2R 7 80 TVER) B A1) (BN bk & (2022149757 ) BT - NREF
EYEEZ SR TBRETSHEAENENSRERETERENERA o

“National Intellectual Property Advantage Enterprise of 2022 ( [2022F EFH X ABEEES L
E DY
During the Year, Huisheng Biopharm was selected as a “National Intellectual Property Advantage
Enterprise” ( [BIRAEBMERBEZLZE ]| ). The selection was conducted in accordance with the
Circular of the Office of China National Intellectual Property Administration on Carrying out Enterprise
Demonstrations for Building a Powerful Intellectual Property Country in 2022 (GZBHYZ [2022] No.
497). It fully demonstrates that the intellectual property work of Huisheng Biopharm has received high
recognition from the government and the market.

F [Z ¥ % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 19



M mE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

“E-N\& —T-NE —T-TF —T_—F ZBIZF
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
AREFTT ARETT AREFTt AR®TT AR%¥TxR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REXE Operating results
Was Revenue 2,917,405 2,878,318 2,464,226 3,038,391  2,181,189¢
EH Gross profit 2,379,088 2,289,331  1,914,449*  2,430,488%  1,487,581¢
5 RFEERAX Research and development expenses 480,325 598,952 729,157% 868,069 936,581*
meEad/ (BR) Operating profit/(loss) 2,025,943 (2,406,225)*  787,125¢ 771,945  (1,830,727)
BETERELER (B18) Profit/(loss) before income tax 2,012,165 (2,422,955)"* 765,844+ 496,013 (2,122,778)*
NAEIER AFEM Profit/(loss) attributable to
wl/ (E18) owners of the Company 1,619,956  (2,717,515)*  502,569* 422,865 (1,949,590)
A= Profitability
ESip Gross profit margin 81.5% 79.5%* 77.7%* 80.0%* 68.2%"
A/ (B %= Net profit/(loss) margin 57.6% (94.3%)"* 22.2%* 8.0%"  (106.3%)*
BREF/(EE) Earnings/(loss) per share
ERNARES) Basic (RMB cents) 17.10 (28.70)* 5.31 4.487* (20.90)*
BEARES) Diluted (RMB cents) 17.10 (28.70)* 5.31* 4.46° (20.90)*
BEMRR Asset status
1B E Total assets 15,443,475 12,571,436 13,043,926 14,495,623 12,140,551
AAREREEA Equity attributable to equity
e owners of the Company 12,510,413 9,606,684 9,190,342 8,284,148 4,736,998
BEE Total liabilities 2,669,112 2,629,242 3,095,201 5,345,557 6,500,725
HERREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,314,845 5,117,143 4,604,041 5,682,425 3,828,863
REL R (1) Quick ratio (times) 2 3 2 3 2
TENLE(15) Current ratio (times) 3 3 3 3 3
FEREH(H) Inventory turnover ratio (days) 177 2177 296* 359 343¢
BHRWRZEE(H) Trade receivables turnover ratio (days) 58 48+ 50* 69 107+
BoRNERREE(H) Trade payables turnover ratio (days) 24 317 56+ 67°* 84*

R CRFR-T - _FHRRAHEASEE
FFRA) HEBRSFAERIEEEER -
BHE_Z-NFE+_A=+—BLEEREE
—E -+ A=+ HLFENHRET
B&E7 -

Due to the respective disposal of certain subsidiaries of the Group in 2020 and 2022,
businesses of the subsidiaries were classified as discontinued operations. Comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the year ended 31 December 2021
have been re-presented.

i BEFECEETEH #

Related to continuing operations only
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“ECC-FENER

Where there is a will, there is a way

Accelerating the high-quality transformation
and development towards the medical
aesthetic and innovative drugs with a new

beginning in 2023 gy

PR F [EFHHITEE
Chairman and Executive Director of Sihuan Pharmaceutical

—Eo—F  ENERE BREBEMZ
B EERERDEZHRZNOZET  BE
CEEEETARTZHUNKE -BEE-F
TZERBUENFSEEL  PREBEI(FE
FORABERNBERTEHED  BETIB RN
ERM - EEAE  BEROIESHT @ H
BEMREBKAH —FHIEED  BER
BT A ETIS M ATFNERES - —F
—FNRRXELBE T _=FHFXRLE
FEFIREDDAEDN °

Dr. Che Fengsheng

EREHmE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERABLE

Suffering from several factors such as the COVID-19 epidemic, complicated and
changing international situations and large fluctuations in the exchange rate in
2022, Chinese enterprises encountered multiple challenges in operation. With the
continuous optimization of the epidemic control in 2023, the Central Economic
Working Conference stressed that efforts should be made to rejuvenate the market
and unswervingly deepen the reform and opening-up. Considering the work focus
of expansion of internal demands and stabilization of growth, the consumption and
investment will become the emphasis of the new year, and the medical aesthetic and
innovative biopharmaceutical market will usher in new development opportunities.
The cold winter of 2022 has passed, and the spring of 2023 is waving to us.
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22 MERBEEZEREEGRA

IMPLEMENTING ORGANIZATION RESTRUCTURING,
AND ACCELERATING THE HIGH-QUALITY
DEVELOPMENT TOWARDS THE MEDICAL AESTHETIC
AND INNOVATIVE DRUGS

Confronted with great changes in the market and severe epidemic situations in
2022, we persevered in the two-wheel drive strategy, accelerated the innovative
transformation of medical aesthetic and innovative biopharmaceutical business,
carried out resolute adjustments and upgrading of the Group’s organization
structure, sped up the independence, spin-off and listing of innovative
biopharmaceutical business segment, shifted the primary business to the medical
aesthetic business with greater potential, optimized and integrated the generic drug
business, which enhanced the Group’s operation efficiency and contributed to its
success.

As the locomotive of the Group’s innovative transformation, Xuanzhu Biopharm
has first-class R&D platforms for small-molecule and macro-molecule innovative
drugs, and more than 25 product lines under development. Moreover, it has made
a comprehensive development for the main targets of breast cancer, and is one
of the companies with the most comprehensive development in the breast cancer
track in China. During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm not only rapidly promoted
the clinical progress of product lines, successfully facilitated the spin-off and the
application of listing on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange in terms
of capitalization, and had its application for listing accepted by Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

The subordinate biopharmaceutical company Huisheng Biopharm specialized in
diabetes and complications has realized the full product coverage in the field. During
the Year, Huisheng Biopharm speeded up the R&D progress of products with several
products entering into the middle and later clinical phases or listing application
phase. During the Year, with its outstanding product pipelines, platform integrating
R&D, production, marketing and sales and professional management team,
Huisheng Biopharm successively completed its Round A and Round A+ financing,
raising a total of RMB1.08 billion, and its post-investment valuation increased to
RMB5.58 billion.

In 2022, the domestic medical aesthetic industry forged its way ahead despite
the epidemic reoccurrence. The performance of downstream and end institutions
driven by offline consumption was affected by the months-lasting lockdown of
various cities due to the repeated epidemic, which suppressed the demands for
medical aesthetics. The impact was also felt by the upstream of the industrial chain,
resulting in the product sales below the expectations at the beginning of the year.
For example, the distribution channels of MeiYan Konglian, a medical aesthetic
platform of the Group, was hit in a degree. During the Period, we persevered in
optimising the sales plan of medical aesthetic products. In particular, we kept
reducing channel inventory to a healthy and reasonable level as one of the work
priorities, optimised our sales team and distribution agent team structure and
strengthened strategic cooperation with the downstream top-tier customers. By the
implementation of such measures, the medical aesthetic business was allowed to
develop with fewer burdens. We believe that the overall lift of epidemic controls will
benefit MeiYan Konglian to launch more products, together with the upgrade and
implementation of team sales strategy, MeiYan Konglian is expected to be a new
driver of the Group’s business growth in 2023.
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TREHRE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

A NEW START WITHOUT BURDEN IN 2023, STRIVING
TO PROMOTE THE STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE TO
BECOME THE LEADING MEDICAL AESTHETICS AND
BIOPHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY IN CHINA

In 2023, the Group will have a new start despite great difficulties, persevere
in and accelerate the “medical aesthetics + innovative drugs” two-wheel drive
strategy, focus the management on the medical aesthetics with high growth
and the innovative drugs and biopharmaceutical with high value, optimize and
integrate the generic drug business, gradually spin off the generic drug business
with unsatisfactory performance and other non-core healthcare businesses. We
will continuously enhance the channel sales quality and promote the simultaneous
upgrading of scale and quality in the medical aesthetic business; in terms
of pharmaceutical businesses, we continuously accelerate the industrialized
development of the platform, and gradually carry out the spin-off and listing of the
innovative drug business, in order to ensure the rapid development of the innovative
drug business and realize its high value. Sihuan Pharmaceutical firmly believes that it
will successfully realize the strategic objective to build the leading medical aesthetics
and biopharmaceutical company in China based on our adequate preparations and
great endeavor.

At the beginning of the year, we were pleased to see that the Group achieved
great progress in the generic drug business, a “cash cow"”. Our exclusive products
including two types of non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber bag products and
Midazolam Oromucosal Solution were successfully included into NRDL in 2022.
Kelinao was successfully excluded from the drug category under key monitoring
with over thousands of evidence-based medicine results. The CDMO subsidiary
successfully obtained the entrusted production and supply contract of the anti-
COVID-19 drug, VV116. Meanwhile, the listing application of Xuanzhu Biopharm
was rapidly promoted, Huisheng Biopharm successfully completed Round A+
financing in the cold winter of capital, and MeiYan Konglian’s several medical
aesthetic products achieved key clinical progress...The spring of 2023 is a good
beginning for Sihuan Pharmaceutical.
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CONCLUSION: SPRING COMES AFTER WINTER; WE
WILL SUCCEED AS LONG AS WE TRY OUR BEST

Every seed that lives through the cold winter will embrace a bright spring. At the
beginning of the new year and looking into the future, it is our new journey for
Sihuan Pharmaceutical with both sunshine and rain. Only when we make the best
use of our time can we finally have a bright future.

We will have tougher tasks and more ambitious goals in 2023. We will continue with
the innovative drug business driven by independent R&D and innovation, strengthen
the medical aesthetic with high growth, always bear in mind the original intention
of innovation and entrepreneurship, strive to build the leading medical aesthetics
and biopharmaceutical company in China based on strictness and innovative
endeavor of employees, and improve our product pipeline with craftsmanship,
trying to forge towards the new 3.0 version of innovative transformation of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical. We will strive to maintain and improve the cash flow generated by
“cash cow” generic medicine business, maintain our high-dividend strategy when
it is practicable, enable shareholders and investors to enjoy the cash dividends
from traditional generic drug business despite the “cash burning” during the
transformation into the innovative biopharmaceutical drugs, and bring higher
investment returns to the shareholders and investors who have always been firmly
believing in and supporting the Group.

V3R 88 1 AR S B A R 2 A (BB 17 35
00460.HK) BT R =FE—F  —F—FFR
BEBERX B BERARIEZRET 2 —5 U
BIF 735138 @ BIFRIFTER) - HEH B EER
BEHERMNFE  AEEEMZIKIEERE
AR~ BABYEmILEET) - BAE KK L
EFIAEET B AL SRR A BB E
EEREYHERF - IIREZE—HFF [ B
AR VIR B8 5E % A W) R B i R B B I A1)
BRI IERIT AT BB EEREYRE
F7aE

EEH
PIBEREEREOE TR

—ZT-_=—F#=A—-+mH

Founded in 2001 and listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in 2010, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (Hong Kong
stock code: 00460.HK) is an international medical aesthetic and biopharmaceutical
company led and driven by innovation, with an independent and leading R&D
technology platform, a rich global product pipeline, strong product registration
capability, a full dosage form production platform with high efficiency and low cost
and a mature and excellent sales system. Adhering to the overall strategic objective
of “full promotion of a two-wheel drive strategy of its medical aesthetics and
biopharmaceutical businesses”, Sihuan Pharmaceutical endeavors to build itself into
a leading medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical company in China.

Che Fengsheng
Chairman of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group

24 March 2023
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B B 5w S o AT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2022, under the impact of various factors such as the COVID-19 epidemic,
complicated and changing international situations, the international community
entered a period of historic change and turbulence. In view of the rising global
political instability and the continuing sluggish global economy, the International
Monetary Fund expected that the global real GDP growth rate would decrease from
6.0% in 2021 to 3.2% in 2022, and would continue to slow down to 2.7% in 2023.
In China, the policies and regulations, the prevention and control of the epidemic
and other factors continued to weigh on its economic resilience in 2022. With the
optimization and relaxation of the control measures against COVID-19 and the
persistent effects of policies aiming to achieve stable growth, China is expected to
be among the first to recover in 2023. In terms of the market, the valuation of Hong
Kong stocks is relatively low caused by the previous suppression. As the pressure is
gradually relieved, the Hong Kong stock market will show stronger resilience and is
likely to yield significant positive returns.

In 2022, the medical aesthetics industry experienced a difficult recovery amid
a volatile situation. As a result of the resurgence of the epidemic, many cities
and regions had been subject to lockdowns for several months. As a result, the
operations of downstream end institutions, which focused on offline consumption,
were affected, and consumer demand for medical aesthetics was dampened.
Such impact also spread to the upstream of the industrial chain, resulting in lower
product supply than that expected early in the year. Besides, during the Year,
the transparency and regulation of the industry were gradually improved and
strengthened and turned to be normalized, and policies were gradually channeled
down to the lower-tier markets, in order to encourage the development of high-
quality standardized products, while cracking down on illegal medical aesthetic
products and services. All of these further promoted the professional and
standardized development of the industry and the establishment of industrial high
quality standards. Formal leading players in the medical aesthetics market will enjoy
new development opportunities in this wave. Looking forward into 2023, with the
relaxation of epidemic control and the recovery of economic activities in China, it is
expected that the pent-up demand will show a V-shaped rebound, driving a rapid
recovery of the medical aesthetics industry with a strong rebound in corporate
performance.

FEE R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 25



B IR E RS wm Mo T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FR - BETELEBENEE TSRS &
BREBRA  RER® - fI=FF @ BETE
BREESINBBEIIEMTRAOTREEN
2 BNMEGEHEBREEXFEER £t
WERPEERDE  HRSREPERHE
i —PEE - MEEIE - BEEE AR EBER
MELSEL BEZZ_=ZFYHN2ENKH -
BETELERABEHRE - HP Al R Al
ERIBEEAFHMEER - EBEEXaIFHER
TWERTEZRFPEAFNERBES - Efme-
better® Zfirst-in-class (FIC)E @B A5EE) T~
—BERKENEEZERRZ  BEL2ERESRANT
¥ B B HINETT R R 3058 W OF i
Mo - MRFEZHE - #E—BFEmMEL o U
Hh BEERERBENFERL  BRAHRER
ZNEE  BETHBANMNEERE - mi5
RBRBEERDER  EHBETERLVEER
BEEEMR  EPEBLERIFHERD - 8
EME IR AT E A M) B RIS E G EEE
Bt o

SEXK

T FR AREERFES SRR
RHRGBRERY - FR - AEEFTS ERER
SEENELMS - INRITER BELBER EYRE
2 IR R R BB T 7 8T BEE 1T T AR
HER  WERSHBERETERPNI S0 H
BEWR -5 AEETEEFLEMER
METEMEERERRSEENH THETF
f AREEHTFHMEANEXERER K
REAEKNTERERBE S - EFARRNKE
EAPEREM EHARNEDKE [ FEER
R NE ERIE - BOMBEFRMISHAR -

During the Year, the pharmaceutical industry remained differentiated under the
impact of the epidemic, presenting an overall volatile and weak performance. In
the first three quarters of the year, the overall performance of the pharmaceutical
industry was affected by the epidemic lockdown and control measures to
varying degrees. In addition, the price reduction of the sixth batch of centralized
procurement was officially implemented, and the results of the seventh batch
of centralized procurement were announced, which further squeezed the profit
margins of many pharmaceutical companies. Since the fourth quarter, the domestic
epidemic prevention and control policies have been gradually optimized, and even
fully relaxed in early 2023, which indicates that the operating conditions of the
pharmaceutical industry will gradually improve. Specifically, the innovative drug
segment has entered into a new stage. For instance, pharmaceutical companies with
independent innovation and R&D strength have entered into a new product cycle,
while those possessing me-better and even first-in-class (FIC) products have become
major factors driving the next stage of growth. And companies with ample cash
flows are expected to further expand their business externally or intensify merger,
acquisition and introduction, embracing more opportunities so as to further emerge.
Moreover, with the centralized procurement policy being normalized and the
system of negotiation agenda on national drug reimbursement list being improved,
together with a specific and moderate price reduction under the policy, market
pessimism is receding, and the core assets of pharmaceutical industry are expected
to be revalued. Among which, traditional generic drug companies with strong
innovation and R&D capabilities and being well-positioned to achieve the innovative
transformation will take the lead in recovery.

THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

During the 2022, the Group achieved remarkable results in innovation driving,
transformation and upgrading. During the Year, the Group fully implemented
the two-wheeled strategy, further promoted the building of a leading medical
aesthetic and biopharmaceutical company in China, accelerated the upgrading
and development of the pharmaceutical business of the Company to transform to
innovative drugs, and gradually disposed of part of the generic medicine business
with unsatisfactory performance. So far, the Group has not only diversified high-
value innovative biopharmaceutical product pipelines and high-quality independent
R&D platforms, but also dozens of new medical aesthetic product pipelines. The
Company has successfully completed its magnificent turn as it obtained the “Annual
Transformation Pioneer Company Award” (FE# A %827 4€) of Gelonghui
Greater China Listed Company Awards held by Gelonghui (f&[£[) during the Year,
which demonstrated that its strength and qualification have been well recognized by
the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Specifically, the Group made adjustment to its organizational structure by setting
the overall organizational structure into a dual organizational structure consisting
of the group headquarters and the business platform headquarters. Separate
business platform headquarters were also established for the two biopharmaceutical
sectors, Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng Biopharm. The Company will continue to
provide strategic guidance and exercise shareholder rights in respect of the above
mentioned business platform headquarters. In addition, the Company will focus its
management on the business segments with higher growth potential and optimize
and integrate the generic medicine business, including gradually disposing part of
the generic medicine business that do not meet performance expectations and other
non-core healthcare businesses to improve the operating efficiency of the Group.

Through the organizational structure adjustment, the Group will further focus its
management and resources on the medical aesthetic sector with higher growth
and profit margin, and the biopharmaceutical sector with high value growth, which
will help emphasize the management focus, enhance management efficiency,
strengthen and accelerate the strategic transformation and business upgrading
and development of the Group, inspire and encourage the rapid development and
expansion, as well as independent financing of the new biopharmaceutical sector,
so as to maximize the value of shareholders of the Company, improve the efficiency
of the Company’s resource allocation, and enhance the long-term financial
performance.

During the Year, despite the impact of the epidemic on our business segments
to different extents, the Group has achieved business transformation and
development, accelerating the R&D of new products and the commercialization of
approved products, and finalizing progress in capital market based on the Group’s
forward-looking layout and the two-wheel drive strategy of medical aesthetics
and biopharmaceuticals. Leveraging its strategic deployment and adjustment on
the long-term development, the Group has achieved a lot of high-quality business
progress during the Year.
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MeiYan Konglian, the medical aesthetic platform of the Group, was successfully
upgraded into the 2.0 marketing version for enhancing business development,
which strengthened its capabilities as an international medical aesthetics platform
with a full product matrix covering the life cycle of beauty seekers, including R&D,
production, sales and marketing. During the Year, as for products, MeiYan Konglian
diversified its product portfolios by proceeding the registration and marketing
of multiple products, including hyaluronic acid PersnicaTM, a product exclusively
distributed by the Group and produced by Hugel, Inc. (“Hugel”) in South Korea, and
nearly 20 Class Il skin care dressing products self-developed by MeiYan Konglian,
which have been approved by the National Medical Products Administration (the
“NMPA") for marketing. In addition, MeiYan KongJian continued to expand
business layout by introducing overseas mid- to high-end products or through
mergers and acquisitions, including the introduction of Sylfirm XTM, a golden
microneedle product manufactured by VIOL Co., Ltd (“VIOL") in South Korea, and
the acquisition of partial equity interests in Shenzhen Yimei Medical Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Yimei"”) during the Year, to implement its layout in the field
of optoelectronic devices. In January 2022, the Group formed a joint venture with
Bluepha Co., Ltd (“Bluepha”), a Chinese unicorn company in the field of synthetic
biomaterials, to jointly develop PHA microspheres, the next-generation regenerative
material, and bio-manufacturing-based regenerative medical materials, entering
into the blue ocean of synthetic biology field in advance. As for production, MeiYan
Konglian also continued to improve its layout of production capacity through setting
up 3 high-efficiency and low-cost production bases during the Year, with a total
area of 16,000 square meters and 10 production lines, thereby realizing production
automation with a sound quality management system. As for marketing, MeiYan
Konglian continuously improved and enriched its marketing services. Not only did
MeiYan Konglian expand the number of medical aesthetic institutions covered, but
also improve the quality of coverage, making greater efforts to the provision of high
value-added services and sales support to medical aesthetic institutions. As of 15
March 2023, the sales channel of Letybo® had reached 310 cities, covering over
3,500 medical aesthetic institutions.

During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng Biopharm, two of China’s
leading independent biopharmaceutical R&D platforms that integrate clinical
research, clinical development, registration, production and sales, which were
carefully incubated by the Group, have obtained positive progress in product R&D,
independent financing and Xuanzhu Biopharm’s listing applications, respectively,
and successfully facilitated the rapid development and expansion of the Group’s new
biopharmaceutical business segment.
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It is noticeable that Xuanzhu Biopharm has made rapid progress in R&D of several
products. As for the featured product, Birociclib, a CDK4/6 inhibitor for treatment
of breast cancer, its phase Il clinical trials enrollment of second-line treatment with
Fulvestrant has been completed, while its phase Ill clinical trials enrollment of first-
line treatment with Al and its phase Il efficacy evaluation of monotherapy final-
line treatment are in progress. An application of Fulvestrant, which was introduced
simultaneously for the purpose of being administrated with Birociclib, has been
made to Abbreviated New Drug Application. The New Drug Application (“NDA")
of the treatment for indication of peptic ulcer with Anaprazole Sodium has been
accepted by the NMPA, and the treatment for indication of reflux esophagitis (RE)
in adults has been approved for phase Il clinical trials. Currently, Xuanzhu Biopharm
has nearly 10 products approved to conduct clinical trials, and more than 10 drug
candidates in preclinical development stage. The pipeline layout is complete and
balanced in long, medium, and short terms, with strong capability to innovate
continuously. The application of Investigational New Drug (“IND") for KM501,
a bispecific antibody drug conjugate (“ADC"), has been accepted by the NMPA.
Except the self-developed product, Xuanzhu Biopharm also introduced a number
of blockbuster products with First-in-class potential. Among them, the application
of IND for AXL inhibitor (XZB-0004) developed in cooperation with SignalChem
Lifesciences Corporation (“SignalChem™) has been approved in China, and the joint
exploration experiments will be carried out on the Penpulimab PD-1 monoclonal
antibody of CTTQ-Akeso (Shanghai) Biomed. Tech. Co., Ltd (“CTTQ-Akeso"),
which further promotes the development of Xuanzhu Biopharm in the field of anti-
oncology.

During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm accelerated its spin-off and listing. The Group
has submitted an application to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) and obtained the approval to spin off Xuanzhu Biopharm and apply
for listing on the STAR Market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange during the Year. In
addition, Xuanzhu Biopharm has received the notice of acceptance of the Listing
Application from the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The Group believes that the spin-
off and listing of Xuanzhu Biopharm will not only help Xuanzhu Biopharm further
become an independent innovative drug R&D platform company, but also increase
its financial flexibility and enhance its ability to raise external funds, to support the
rapid growth and industrialization development of its business.
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During the Year, Huisheng Biopharm further achieved the strategic goal of building
a biopharmaceutical leader in the field of diabetes and complications with a
full product matrix coverage. During the Year, the marketing applications for 9
drugs (including 7 glucose-lowering drugs and 2 complication drugs) of Huisheng
Biopharm have been accepted, including class 1 innovative drug SGLT-2 inhibitor
Janagliflozin, insulin degludec, insulin aspart injection, insulin aspart 30 injection
and insulin aspart 50 injection. In addition, the blockbuster product insulin degludec
injection has entered the pre-NDA stage. In addition to the rapid progress of
products, during the Year, Huisheng Biopharm has successfully completed two
rounds of financing, i.e. Round A and Round A+ financing, obtaining the investment
of RMB500 million and RMB580 million respectively, totaling RMB1.08 billion, with
a post-investment valuation reaching RMB5.58 billion amidst the market downturn
and tightened liquidity.

As the pharmaceutical environment continues to be affected by the pandemic
and policy changes, the Group carried out organizational restructuring during the
Year to fully implement its two-wheel drive strategy and accelerate the upgrade
of its pharmaceutical business to innovative drugs. In particular, to keep pace with
the times, the CDMO business segment will no longer be the key business of the
Company after 2023, and the Group has gradually organized and divested the
businesses under this segment during the Year. Specifically, the Group has entered
into an equity transfer agreement to transfer its entire interest in Jilin Jiahui Chemical
Co., Ltd. to Beijing Lianben Technology Development Co., Ltd.

Generic drug segment of the Group has also continuously implemented the disposal
of part of the generic drugs that do not meet performance expectations or do not
meet long-term strategic development objectives and other non-core pharmaceutical
or healthcare businesses and assets, including the completion of the disposal of
100% equity interest in Beijing Xuansheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Xuansheng”).

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had a pipeline of over 40
medical aesthetics products and over 60 innovative biopharmaceutical products,
as well as three core capabilities of registration, production and sales to facilitate
and accelerate the launching and commercialization of the high-quality product
pipelines of medical aesthetics and pharmaceuticals segments. The Group’s rapid
registration ability made it the first company to bring Korean botulinum toxin into
the Chinese market and also enabled the Group to complete the registration of
various self-developed varieties in a very short term. Secondly, the Group has high-
efficiency and low-cost production platforms, and its business layout in production
capacity and raw materials enables the Group to have a strong cost advantage
to achieve rapid industrialization development. In addition, the Group also has
the market-recognized medical academic marketing and sales abilities. On the
nationwide professional and efficient academic marketing platform, the professional
marketing team and business sales network of the Group can not only promote
the continuously rapid penetration of existing products, but also endow the new
launched products with strong “monetization” ability.
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Annual Results

During the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of RMB2,181.2 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 28.2% over the total revenue of
RMB3,038.4 million for the same period in 2021. The decrease was mainly attributed
to the impact of the continued development of the domestic epidemic and policy
changes of the pharmaceutical industry during the Year.

Among them, the generic medicine segment achieved a revenue of approximately
RMB1,970.5 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 24.2%, mainly
attributed to the impact of the continued development of the domestic epidemic
and policy changes of the pharmaceutical industry. The medical aesthetic segment
achieved a revenue of approximately RMB149.8 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 62.5%, mainly attributed to the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic,
channel inventory clearance and sales restructuring during the Year.

In addition, the Group performed impairment testing on assets annually or more
frequently if events or change in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may be impaired. As a result of the policy changes in the pharmaceutical industry,
the sales price and sales volume of the products were affected in different
degrees. According to impairment test, the Group impaired the property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, right-of-use assets, investment properties
and investments accounted for using the equity method, the impairment losses of
which were approximately RMB1,727.1 million in total. The main businesses involved
in the impairment losses included generic pharmaceuticals, APIs and healthcare.

During the Year, the Group continued to ramp up the investment in R&D to create
a pipeline of over 100 medical aesthetic and biopharmaceutical products. It rapidly
promoted the R&D progress of the Group’s product pipeline, accelerated the
product industrialization and gradually realized value amplification. During the Year,
the total R&D expenses amounted to approximately RMB936.6 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMB68.5 million as compared to the R&D expenses of
approximately RMB868.1 million for the same period in 2021.

FEZ R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 31



B IR E RS wm Mo T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEASENRAERTZFARLA - Altd
BEEAEENEREGNEENRERSIR
TEEETT - T A 7 R AN 5 B 5E T AT #E
BNEREE BEENIMEXANEEESFK
EERTT © £ - BT EWTKAR KA+ M H
feiEmE - HRsBBARK108EBIT(ERA
R¥1000BE tEEE —MBAR2ER
RIRE - RIgHEZEARESSBETT - &
AT EY TR ARBH15. 7B THIA - BRI AL
% AEBET B EWHIERBK TR
BE AORBETEAMSHAKEETMA
BIFT R AEMEFENIEEN EmER B
BEE  RREFREREELEINZTLR
B BRI R E T AN S B A A Y ] SRR R
MEMERNSEE -

BENEMBRREA  FR  AEEBELE:
BHORBAIEBNAARK21228FET * B
TR —FRBENRFNARE496.08ETHA
EE o FRNEANEBETREIERSARE
EBEHOARE1,727188T

REBRKERBROMBAR - AR TE
BRAUREIHFAEENRR - AEEEFR
ST HOARE13I55BETHRE - HE
T —F+-A=+—H AEENRESK
ReFSEVNEHMERERDRBFBENARE
4,791.98 BITHI/KE - HIRET BRITERRE
RN RE RIS FEE YN ERLHLH
ARM3,60228E T - ASEMN B BFEERL
EK(AEFRARRREEARLEERZED
LE) /R25.1% » FHEHEFHRAL -

Although the Group’s R&D expenses increased significantly year on year, this
also catalyzed a significant increase in the quantity and quality of the Group'’s
product pipelines, which have contributed to a significant increase in the corporate
value, financing capacity and corporate awareness of the Group's innovative
drug platform. During the Year, Huisheng Biopharm completed Round A and
Round A+ equity financing, which attracted a total investment amounted over
RMB1,080 million (of which RMB100.0 million was invested by a subsidiary of the
Group), with a post-investment valuation of RMB5.58 billion. This was another
successful financing for the Group’s biopharmaceutical segment following Xuanzhu
Biopharm's completion of Round A and B financing of RMB1.57 billion, which
fully demonstrated the recognition of the R&D capabilities, product pipelines,
management team, future industrialization and commercialization capabilities of
the Group’s two innovative and biological drug platforms from the capital market,
as well as proved the high valuation of the product pipelines of the Group’s two
biopharmaceutical segments.

Given the above, loss before tax from continuing operations of the Group for the
Year amounted to approximately RMB2,122.8 million, a return from the profit of
RMB496.0 million in 2021, among which, approximately RMB1,727.1 million was
non-cash impairment losses.

The Group persevered to maintain strong financial position. Besides, the Group
paid approximately RMB1,315.5 million of dividends in aggregate for the year
to give back to shareholders for their long-term support. As of 31 December
2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents plus wealth management products
amounted to approximately RMB4,791.9 million, and the total amount of cash
and cash equivalents plus wealth management products, net of interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other borrowings, was approximately RMB3,602.2 million.
The Group's debt to equity ratio (i.e. a percentage of borrowings divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company) was 25.1%, which remained low.
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Medical Aesthetic Business Segment: Accelerating
Product Development and Launch, and Enhancing the
Upgrade and Development of the Integration of R&D,
Production and Marketing to Emerge as New Growth
Driver of the Group

In 2022, MeiYan KonglJian, a medical aesthetic platform of the Group,
successfully promoted the upgrading and development of 2.0 version for
marketing and sales, which strengthened its capacity as an international
medical aesthetics platform integrated with R&D, production and sales, and
with a full product matrix covering the life cycle of beauty seekers. In addition
to registering and launching a number of products, it successfully introduced
a wide range of overseas mid-to-high-end medical aesthetic products to
expand the product pipeline, while also completed the establishment of three
high-efficiency and low-cost production bases with a total area of 16,000
square meters and 10 production lines. At the same time, MeiYan Konglian
continued to improve and diversify the content of marketing service. It made
greater efforts to the provision of high value-added service and sales support
to medical aesthetic institutions. By making efforts in product, production
and sales, it is committed to the goal of building a leading platform of the
domestic medical aesthetic industry.

During the Year, the medical aesthetic business segment reached a revenue
of RMB149.8 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 62.5%, and
recorded an operating profit of RMB3.6 million, mainly attributed to the fact
that sales were greatly affected by factors such as the closure of downstream
end institutions and personnel travel restrictions caused by the ongoing
COVID-19 epidemic and related response measures as well as the channel
inventory clearance by the Group. However, with the complete easing of the
control on epidemic as well as the upgrading and implementation of the sales
strategy by the team of MeiYan Konglian, MeiYan Konglian is expected to
become a new engine of the Group's cash flow business in 2023.
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MeiYan Konglian has always maintained its original intention and solidified
its basic skills during the Year. MeiYan Konglian continued to upgrade its
sales structure, while continuously optimized its sales strategy, improved
its sales capabilities and enriched its service provision. During the Year,
MeiYan Konglian launched several projects, including the embarking project,
medical research project, authentic product verification activities, etc., not
only to increasingly empower the sales channels, reach strategic cooperation
agreements with the leading institutions to further deepen cooperation, but
also cover a number of consumers through the cooperation with institutions,
thereby enhancing the product strengths and brand promotion. Meanwhile,
MeiYan Konglian also successfully completed the channel inventory clearance
during the Year, so as to maintain the channel inventory at a healthy level.
Besides, MeiYan Konglian also improved the medical support, doctor training
and other services to the institutions. By communicating with the doctors to
promote the professional technologies such as Le V Slight Lifting Injection
(£2v/MERIFTIE) and Le V Skin Tightening Injection (24VZE4T5%), MeiYan
Konglian aimed to further exert the efficacy of the product, reduce the pain
caused by the product injection and achieve a natural and un-tense state,
thereby improving the consumer satisfaction.

During the Year, MeiYan Konglian also adopted selection and upgradation
strategy against its distribution agents to eliminate those who did not meet
performance expectations in certain regions. The sales model of some major
regions and key institutions was changed to direct sales to further improve the
provision and security of one-on-one customized services, ensuring to bring
more suitable sales and marketing solutions to medical aesthetic institutions
and further promote the continuous growth in sales of MeiYan Konglian
in the future. As of 15 March 2023, MeiYan Konglian had a total of over
50 sales staff, most of whom held key positions in marketing and training
in multinational or domestic leading medical aesthetic and pharmaceutical
companies such as Allergan, Galderma and Johnson & Johnson, etc., and have
over 10 years of experience in the industry. At the same time, the Group has
cooperated with more than 10 distribution agents, covering 310 cities and
more than 3,500 medical aesthetic institutions nationwide. The leading 500
medical aesthetic institutions are fully covered.

Through the overall layout of “direct sales and distribution”, MeiYan Konglian
has not only strengthened the ability to serve high-quality major customers
to further empower the sales channels, but also kept continuous increase in
the number of institutions covered. Furthermore, the doctor training system
is gradually built through the medical department to improve and facilitate
the resources binding of doctors. Leveraging on the Group's strong sales gene
and medical expertise in the pharmaceutical business in the past, the Group
has achieved high-quality empowerment to the channels of medical aesthetic
institutions. The Group believes that further upgrading and optimizing the
sales model of MeiYan Konglian will drive the long-term continuous growth in
performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, except for sales model upgrading and channel binding
optimization, MeiYan Konglian never left behind its principle of “product
first” and continued to build its medical aesthetic product matrix and to
provide non- or minimally-invasive medical aesthetic comprehensive solutions
through further layout in filling, supporting, supplementing, optoelectronic
devices, skin care and other areas.

The modified sodium hyaluronate gel for injection (product name: Persnica™),
which is exclusively distributed by the Group and produced by Hugel from
South Korea, obtained Class Ill medical device certificate from the NMPA
in April 2022. Hyaluronic acid Persnica™ is a sterile, pyrogen-free, non-
animalderived, cross-linked sodium hyaluronate gel for mid-dermal injections
in facial tissue to correct moderate to severe nasolabial folds. The product
uses singlephase cross-linking technology, which has the advantages of good
support, non-spreading displacement, uniform metabolism, long-lasting
shaping, high viscosity value, high cross-linking degree and high shaping
capacity. Hyaluronic acid Persnica™ is a hyaluronic acid product produced
by Across, a subsidiary of Hugel. The product is one of the most popular
hyaluronic acid filler brands in South Korea, which is loved and sought after by
young people.

In March 2022, MeiYan Konglian, a subsidiary of the Group, has reached an
exclusive distribution agreement in relation to Cellbooster® series products
with Suisselle SA (“Suisselle”) from Switzerland, and obtained the exclusive
distribution rights for the products in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan. Cellbooster® series products are a new generation of skin booster
injection, which are the high-end Swiss hyaluronic acid complex solution
products, including four products of Cellbooster® Glow, Cellbooster® Lift,
Cellbooster® Shape and Cellbooster® Hair, which are used for brightening
skin tone, smoothing wrinkles, local shaping and preventing hair loss and
hair graying, respectively. It is the first CE-marked stabilized complex with
Suisselle’s unique patented physical cross-linking CHAC technology.
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In January 2022, the first layout of the Group in the optoelectronic equipment
market was implemented. MeiYan Konglian, a subsidiary of the Group,
entered into an exclusive distribution agreement with VIOL from South Korea
in respect of the SYLFIRM XTM golden microneedle (&% #§%t) product and
obtained the exclusive distribution right of the product in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Macau. The SYLFIRM XTM distributed by the Group is a
new generation of golden microneedle, which has great advantages over
other radiofrequency microneedle products currently on the market. It is
also the first radiofrequency microneedle instrument with dual-wave action
(continuous wave plus impulse wave) in the world, which can treat various
skin problems at all layers from superficial to deep. With the rapid growth of
China’s radiofrequency medical aesthetics equipment market, it is believed
that the new technology iterations brought by SYLFIRM XTM will be a greater
attraction to Chinese medical aesthetics institutions and beauty seekers.

In January 2022, the Group further expanded its product portfolio and entered
into core areas. It signed an agreement with Bluepha, whereby the two parties
have established a joint venture to jointly develop PHA microspheres and bio-
manufacturing-based regenerative medical materials, and the two parties will
jointly complete the R&D, compliance declaration and subsequent commercial
promotion of the products. PHA is an intracellular polyester synthesized by
microorganisms and a natural high-molecular polymer. Whether for entering
the scarce non- or minimally-invasive medical aesthetics market as a new
material or in terms of the safety of the material itself, PHA will be a good
choice for non- or minimally-invasive medical aesthetics. There is great
development potential in the field of synthetic biology. It is predicted that in
the field of commercial applications, the synthetic biology market is expected
to grow rapidly at a CAGR of 30% by 2025. The strategic cooperation
between the Group and Bluepha to jointly establish a joint venture gives the
Group an opportunity to enter the huge industrial blue ocean of synthetic
biology in advance and successfully take the first step in the vertical extension
from the medical aesthetics industry end to the upstream raw material end,
which will help the Group further improve its layout in the field of medical
aesthetics and enhance the core competitiveness of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MeiYan Konglian has entered into an equity transfer agreement and a
capital increase agreement with Shenzhen Yimei and its original shareholder
to invest in Shenzhen Yimei by way of equity transfer and capital increase.
After the completion, MeiYan Konglian will hold part of the equity interest in
Shenzhen Yimei. The Group will launch its R&D and production in the field of
optoelectronic devices by leveraging the platform of Shenzhen Yimei.

During the Year, nearly 20 skin dressing patch products independently
developed by the Group obtained the Class Il medical device registration
certificate issued by the NMPA, including three recombinant type Ill collagen
gel dressing, skin repair dressing and medical skin repair dressing sheet
products, four medical skin care dressing patch products, three medical scar
repair products, two medical skin care and repair gel products, and eight
gynecological dressing products. With focus on the two pain points of wound
healing and scar repair after medical aesthetics treatment, these products
can be used for post-laser repair and post-surgical wound repair, etc., and
accelerate the repair and regeneration of damaged tissues in a targeted
manner.

In order to realize the industrialization of products under R&D, MeiYan
Konglian has set up three high-efficiency and low-cost production bases in
China, with a total area of 16,000 square meters. Currently, 10 production
lines have been set up, covering pre-filled products, lyophilized powder
injection products, active equipment and dressings, etc. The production
process is automated, and the production status is controllable in real time
to ensure the ability to manage details and the traceability of the production
process. All production workshops meet aseptic purification requirements
and have a sound quality management system, and risk management
is implemented for the whole life cycle of products to ensure safety,
effectiveness and quality controllability of the products.

In 2022, with the further expansion of the Group’s product matrix, the rapid
advancement of product in R&D, clinical and registration stages, and the
upgrading and optimization of sales services, the Group’s medical aesthetics
business has successfully completed the business upgrade and development of
the 2.0 marketing and sales version, and has taken a step further towards its
strategic goal of becoming a leading medical aesthetics company in China that
achieves full product coverage for the whole life cycle needs of beauty lovers.
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Innovative Medicine and Other Business Segment:
Successfully achieved the innovative transformation
from traditional generic drug companies to
biopharmaceutical companies, and promoted the
upgrading and development toward a leading
biopharmaceutical company in China at full speed

The Group has been deepening the development of the biopharmaceutical
segment, accelerating the rapid development of product R&D and capital
market operation of Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng Biopharm, and
simultaneously promoted the further integration and development of CDMO
business segment. During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm, a leading innovative
drug enterprise focusing on oncology drugs, made breakthroughs in multiple
product R&D, simultaneously promoted the process of spin-off and listing
on the STAR Market, and was accepted by the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
continuing to promote innovative drives. The fourth-generation insulin
degludec injection, a blockbuster product of Huisheng Biopharm, became
the first domestic product that has applied for an NDA in China, further
establishing its position as the biopharmaceutical leader with full product
coverage in the field of diabetes and complications. Sihuan CDMO business
further integrates and divests assets and resources. Each platform in the
innovative drug and other business segment have developed side by side
based on their respective advantages and paces, driving the Group to continue
its innovation and transformation, and laying a solid foundation for building a
leading biopharmaceutical company in China.

During the Year, the Group’s operating losses in innovative medicine and
other medicine segments were RMB1,400.2 million, including R&D expenses
totaling RMB722.7 million, increasing 21.3% compared to the R&D expenses
of RMB595.8 million for the same period in 2021.
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most comprehensive layout in the breast cancer
track in China and a leading biopharmaceutical
company in China with comprehensive innovative
drug development capabilities in the fields of small
molecules and macro molecules

As the locomotive of the Group’s innovative transformation, as well
as an innovative drug platform subordinate to the Group, Xuanzhu
Biopharm is an innovative pharmaceutical company deeply rooted
in China with global perspective, focusing on major disease fields,
including digestion, oncology and non-alcoholic steatohepatitis
(NASH), and striving to continuously develop and commercialize the
class 1 innovative drugs with independent intellectual property rights,
and solve the treatment demands in clinically. Over ten years of
development, Xuanzhu Biopharm has gathered an outstanding team of
nearly 400 people led by returnee scientists, with core personnel who
once worked at domestic and international leading pharmaceutical
companies such as Bl, Roche Group and BCHT. The company owns the
ability to research and develop innovative drugs independently, forms
a complete R&D system, develops continuous capability of innovation
and output, and sets up two R&D systems for small-molecule and
macro-molecule bio-drugs which has jointly promoted the innovative
development of Xuanzhu Biopharm, forming the product pipeline of
various types covering small-molecule drugs, monoclonal antibody,
bispecific antibody and antibody-drug conjugates. Currently, Xuanzhu
Biopharm has developed more than 20 alternative innovative drug
products in different stages, and established an independent and
complete integrated R&D system.
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Xuanzhu Biopharm’s product pipeline is mainly driven by independent
R&D and supplemented by introduction. Focusing on major diseases,
big markets and multi-target layout of same diseases, it has over 20
products under development in areas such as oncology, NASH and
digestion. Moreover, Xuanzhu Biopharm has made a comprehensive
layout for the main targets of breast cancer in the key track, and is
one of the companies with the most comprehensive layout in the
breast cancer track in China. During the Year, as to Birociclib (XZP-
3287 CDK4/6 (cyclin-dependent kinases 4 and 6) inhibitor), the class
| new drug candidate of Xuanzhu Biopharm, its phase Il clinical
trials enrollment of First-line treatment with aromatase inhibitor was
in progress, and the phase Il clinical trials enrollment of Second-
line treatment with fulvestrant was completed, and phase Il efficacy
evaluation of the Final-line pivotal clinical trials of monotherapy
treatment was in progress. Clinical data preliminarily showed that,
Birociclib has the best-in-class potential. Moreover, because of the
novel targeting mechanism of CDK4/6 inhibitor, Birociclib is able to
demonstrate clinical benefits and market influence through multiple
novel Birociclib-based combination therapies.

In December 2022, the IND application for bispecific antibody-drug
conjugates KM501 (recombinant anti-HER2 domain Il and domain
IV bispecific antibody-MMAE conjugate for injection), independently
developed by Xuanzhu Biopharm, has been accepted for the treatment
of advanced solid tumors with low and intermediate expression of
HER2+. As the first patented bispecific antibody-ADC in China, KM501
can simultaneously target two different epitopes of HER2 domain II
and domain IV with a better anti-oncology efficacy. At present, there
aren’t HER2/HER2 bispecific antibody ADC drugs approved in the global
market. Compared with other HER2/HER2 bispecific antibody ADC
under R&D, KM501 enjoys stronger stability and high efficacy with First-
in-class potential.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In July 2022, the marketing application for fulvestrant of Xuanzhu
Biopharm was also accepted by NMPA. Fulvestrant injection is clinically
indicated for the treatment of estrogen receptor positive (ER+) locally
advanced and metastatic breast cancer. This blockbuster drug will
be used in combination with CDK4/6 inhibitor Birociclib of Xuanzhu
Biopharm, to treat advanced breast cancer. The combination of
fulvestrant with CDK4/6 inhibitor can significantly improve the survival
benefit of patients. The future launch of fulvestrant injection will further
enhance the Group's strength in the field of oncology treatment.

In the same month, Xuanzhu Biopharm’s self-developed Anaprazole
Sodium Enteric Dissolve Tablets obtained approval from the NMPA
on the investigational new drug (IND) application of phase Il clinical
trials for the treatment for new indication of reflux esophagitis (RE)
in adults and the control of its associated symptoms (acid reflux,
heartburn, retrosternal pain or discomfort, belching reflux, etc.).
Anaprazole Sodium is the only new generation proton pump inhibitor
independently developed in China, with proprietary intellectual
property rights. The NDA for its first indication, duodenal ulcers,
was submitted and accepted by the NMPA in 2021. Clinical data
showed that the safety and symptom relief of the Group’s developed
Anaprazole Sodium are the best-in-class.

In May 2022, Xuanzhu Biopharm has successfully received IND approval
from NMPA for its application of capsule XZB-0004, a highly potent,
highly selective oral small-molecule AXL inhibitor with extremely low
side effects, in clinical trials on advanced solid tumors and hematologic
malignancies. Xuanzhu Biopharm has entered into collaboration with
SignalChem in September 2021, introducing the exclusive development
and commercialization rights in the Greater China region. In addition,
Xuanzhu Biopharm has entered into the cooperation agreement in
relation to combination therapies with CTTQ-Akeso, pursuant to which,
both parties agreed to jointly carry out exploration and experiments on
the XZB-0004 and the Penpulimab PD-1 monoclonal antibody of CTTQ-
Akeso, with an aim of developing their application of combination
therapies for solid tumors. AXL inhibitor is a highly selective, oral, small
molecule product. At present, preclinical data shows that XZB-0004
is a "Best-in-Class” inhibitor. It not only has single-agent efficacy in
multiple solid and hematological tumor trials, but also can potentially be
in combination with a variety of drugs under development at Xuanzhu
Biopharm's pipeline for treatment of a number of refractory tumors.
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In March 2022, the application for the class 1 macro molecules
innovative drug XZP-KM257 (recombinant anti-HER2 domain Il and
domain IV bispecific antibody injection), independently developed by
Xuanzhu Biopharm, has been approved successfully by the NMPA to
initiate clinical trials for the treatment of advanced solid tumors with
intermediate and high expression of HER2+. KM257 is a HER2/HER2
bispecific antibody of Xuanzhu Biopharm developed from the Mebs-
lg (Monoclonal-antibody Editing Bispecific Immunoglobulin) platform
and Mab-Edit (Monoclonal-antibody Editing) technology platform
independently developed by Xuanzhu Kangming, the macromolecule
innovative drug company under Xuanzhu Biopharm. Possessing a
brand-new mechanism, it is a bispecific antibody targeting two different
domains of HER2 (domain Il and domain 1V), and highly innovative.
HER2 bispecific antibody, the next-generation drug targeting HER2,
is the focus of R&D for major domestic and foreign pharmaceutical
companies. All HER2/HER2 bispecific antibody drugs are in the clinical
stage worldwide and are not yet available. Compared with other
HER2/HER2 bispecific antibodies under development, KM257 has the
potential to become the Best-in-class with its high stability and efficacy.

In June 2022, Xuanzhu Biopharm and Shanghai SPH New Asia
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“New Asia Pharmaceutical”) reached an
agreement on exclusive license of APIs and formulations of two new
anti-infection drugs, Benapenem and Plazomicin in the Greater China
Territory (including Mainland China, Hong Kong SAR, Macau SAR and
Taiwan). New Asia Pharmaceutical will obtain the exclusive rights of
the APIs and formulations of the said two products, including all rights
in licensing, R&D, production and commercialization, and become the
marketing authorization holder (MAH) of these two products in the
Greater China Territory. Xuanzhu Biopharm will receive an upfront
payment of RMB21 million and will be eligible to receive milestone
payments of up to RMB419 million, as well as tiered royalties on sales of
up to two digits. Fully leveraging the strengths of our partners Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Pharma”) and New Asia
Pharmaceutical in product development, production and sales in anti-
infection fields, the cooperation will form a good commercial synergy
with New Asia Pharmaceutical in products under R&D and for sale, to
maximize the future commercial value of the two products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2.2

During the Year, Xuanzhu Biopharm made an application for
A-share listing to Shanghai Stock Exchange, and received a notice of
acceptance. The Group believes that the spin-off will help Xuanzhu
Biopharm further become an independent innovative drug R&D
platform company with direct access to debt and equity capital markets,
thereby increasing the financial flexibility of Xuanzhu Biopharm and
enhancing its ability to raise external funds, to support the rapid growth
and industrialization of its business. Meanwhile, the Group can also
focus on cultivating and developing high-growth medical aesthetic
business and other new businesses with existing capital and resources.
In addition, as Xuanzhu Biopharm will remain as our subsidiary after
completion of the proposed spin-off, the Group and its shareholders
will continue to benefit from the future development and growth of
Xuanzhu Biopharm.

Huisheng Biopharm: The biopharmaceutical
forerunner with full product coverage in the field
of diabetes and complications, and is likely to
become the leading platform for the whole-course
management of diabetes patients

Huisheng Biopharm is a biopharmaceutical company under the Group
focusing on the field of diabetes and complications. After over 8 years
of construction and development, the company now has a world-
class R&D team of more than 200 people, with core personnel who
once worked at domestic or international leading enterprises such
as Novo Nordisk, Ganlee and Dongbao. With extensive experience
in R&D of diabetes drugs, it has built and owned product pipelines
of nearly 40 products, covering second, third and fourth-generation
insulins (covering basic, premixed and fast-acting products), various oral
hypoglycemic drugs, new targets such as GLP-1 and SGLT-2, and drugs
for complications, etc. It is currently one of the few companies in China
that has achieved full product coverage in the field of diabetes and
complications.
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During the Year, the NDA of five blockbuster products of Huisheng
Biopharm was accepted by NMPA, and one heavyweight product was
in the pre-NDA phase, which further accelerated the commercialization
of the product pipeline and promoted the development from R&D to
commercialization of the company. During the Year, the NDA of the
insulin Degludec injection, the fourth-generation insulin analogue
developed by Huisheng Biopharm, was accepted by NMPA. It is the
first domestic fourth-generation insulin analogue, the insulin degludec,
that has applied for an NDA having been accepted in China after
the original drug Tresiba®. Insulin degludec is a new generation
of long-acting basal insulin analogue with unique long-acting
mechanism and excellent glucose-lowering effect, featuring stable
blood glucose concentration, low risk of hypoglycaemia, high safety
and long-lasting effect. Clinical data show that the insulin degludec
developed by Huisheng Biopharm has similar pharmacokinetics and
pharmacodynamics to the original drug, and the phase Ill comparative
study achieved the expected endpoint of the haemoglobin, which
has similar clinical effect comparing to the original drug. At the same
time, the product can also form a combination of insulin degludec
and insulin aspart injection, as well as insulin degludec and lirglutide
injection with other products in the product pipeline of Huisheng
Biopharm. This will also help the Group to accelerate the development
of its diabetes product pipelines, and is expected to further boost sales
growth, enhance the Group’s comprehensive strength and significantly
strengthen the Group’s core competitiveness.

At the same time, the NDA of Janagliflozin, SGLT-2 inhibitor developed
by Huisheng Biopharm has been accepted by the NMPA. It is the second
domestic Class 1 innovative SGLT-2 inhibitor that has submitted an NDA
in China with the application having been accepted. The clinical data
of Janagliflozin showed that it not only had significant anti-diabetic
efficacy. Meanwhile, it has multiple benefits such as lowering blood
pressure, reducing body weight and improving blood lipids with low risk
of hypoglycemia and good overall safety.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Besides, the NDA of Insulin Aspart Injection, Insulin Aspart 30 Injection
and Insulin Aspart 50 Injection developed by Huisheng Biopharm also
have been accepted by the NMPA. Huisheng Biopharm is currently
the only company in China that has simultaneously applied for the
biologics license of all types of insulin aspart with all applications having
been accepted, fully demonstrating the foresight and integrity of the
Company’s R&D strategy to meet the clinical needs of different insulin
treatment options for diabetic patients.

Since various products are on the marketing application stage, Huisheng
Biopharm has been equipped with a strong production capacity to
ensure the rapid implementation of industrialization development once
they are launched. The planned capacity of the phase | and phase I
biopharmaceutical bases is over 100 million units, ranking among the
top in China. By arranging the flexibility of production schedule and
ensuring the quality stability among all batches of products, Huisheng
Biopharm will be able to fully ensure the production requirements of
future commercialization.

Backed by the Group, and with full-coverage and multi-level product
layout, leading and blockbuster R&D pipelines, and strong and
comprehensive strategic resources, Huisheng Biopharm is gradually
becoming a biopharmaceutical leader providing comprehensive
solutions for diabetes and complications. This is also the characteristic
that has fully appealed to the forward-thinking and exceptional
investors in the market. During the Year, Huisheng Biopharm
successfully completed its Round A and Round A+ financing, raising
RMB1,080 million (of which RMB100.0 million was invested by a
subsidiary of the Group) in total, with a post-investment valuation of
RMB5.58 billion.

Huisheng Biopharm is one of the two innovative drug platforms
meticulously incubated by the Group. Targeting the diabetes and
complications market with huge potential in China, in the future, with
the gradual implementation of Huisheng Biopharm’s product pipelines
and the continuing emergence of innovative products, Huisheng
Biopharm will become a biopharmaceutical leader in China to achieve
full product coverage in the field of diabetes and complications,
reaching continuous value amplification.
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2.3 CDMO of Sihuan Pharmaceutical: Gradually

transferring the control over CDMO and API
while ensuring API supply inside the Group,
further adjusting the organization structure and
accelerating the strategic transformation

The CDMO business of Sihuan Pharmaceutical is an integrated CDMO
service platform of high-quality APl + formulation under the Group.
During the Year, the CDMO business of Sihuan Pharmaceutical achieved
revenue of approximately RMB49.7 million.

At present, in order to further implement the strategy for the
organization restructure of the Group, and speed up its upgrading and
development of the Company’s pharmaceutical business to innovative
drugs, the Group started to dispose of some of the business under the
segment within the year. The Group entered into an equity transfer
agreement, transferring its entire interest in Jilin Jiahui Chemical
Co., Ltd. to Beijing Lianben Technology Development Co., Ltd. In
addition, the Group transferred its entire interest in Beijing Lianben
Pharmaceutical Chemical Technology Co., Ltd. and Beijing Lianben
Technology Development Co., Ltd. at a consideration of RMB46.5
million, further enhancing its operational efficiency.

While ensuring the internal demands of the Group for API, the CDMO
and APIs business segments of Sihuan Pharmaceutical will contribute to
the overall operational development of the Group, and accelerate the
Group’s upgrading and development towards innovative drugs. And for
the parts whose business performance fails to reach the expectations
or goes against the long-term strategic development objectives of the
Group will be disposed of through control transfer, in order to focus the
management of the Group’s pharmaceutical business onto the high-
value innovative drugs and biopharmaceutical field.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Generic medicine: Disposal of some generic drug and
other non-core traditional pharmaceutical businesses
and assets that do not meet performance expectations or
do not meet long-term strategic objectives, so as to fully
optimize and upgrade the Company’s asset structure and
enhance the long-term financial performance

In response to the changes in the market, industry and policies, and to face
the challenges brought by the development, the Group, following a review
of its business layout and medium- and long-term strategic development
direction, intends to dispose of some generic drugs and other non-core
pharmaceutical or healthcare businesses and assets that do not meet
performance expectations or do not meet long-term strategic development
objectives. Meanwhile, the Group intends to complete the potential disposal
in stages gradually, with the specific scope and implementation details of
the potential disposal to be finalized depending on market conditions and
negotiations with potential buyers.

The generic medicine business is the Group's steady “cash cow”. With its
two subordinate products non-PVC solid-liquid double chamber products and
midazolam oromucosal solution included into 2022 NRDL, and the successful
removal of the cinepazide malete from the key monitoring catalogue by
virtue of over 1,000 evidence-based medicine results, the Group's generic
medicine business will continuously bring stable and abundant cash flow.
However, the Group's generic medicine business has completed its “historical
mission” after a long period of platform cultivation and incubation over the
past decade, during which the Group’s innovative drug and medical aesthetics
businesses gradually matured with products beginning to generate revenues,
and each platform starting to operate separately and gaining independent
financing capabilities. The Group believes that after the selective disposal of
the traditional generic medicine business which bears declining profitability
and is materially affected by policies, the overall profit structure of the
Company will be optimized and improved efficiently; meanwhile, with the
income from cash assets generated from the disposal of the relevant business,
a series of “cages” are vacated for the Group to make room for innovative
businesses and further focus its management and corporate resources on
the medical aesthetics segment with high growth and profitability, and
the biopharmaceutical segment with high value growth, so as to solidly
implement the Group's two-wheel drive strategy of “medical aesthetics
+ biopharmaceuticals”, improve the efficiency of the Group’s resource
allocation and enhance the Group's mid to long-term financial performance.
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During the Year, the Group gradually implemented the disposal strategy for
part of generic medicine business. It sold 100% of equity interest in Beijing
Xuansheng at a consideration of RMB118 million. The Group believes that,
with the gradual implementation of the strategy, it will not only focus its
management and resources on the biopharmaceutical segment with high
value growth, but also enhance its overall profitability and improve the long-
term financial performance by disposing of and selling the business that fails
to meet the performance expectations.

The Group’s important strategic initiatives are in fact fully in line with the
past developing trends and layout of leading international pharmaceutical
giants. Through the reorganization and integration of key businesses and
the disposal of non-core businesses, the Group is able to focus more on two
major strategic segments, the medical aesthetics and biopharmaceuticals and
enhance the efficiency of resource allocation. In addition, these initiatives also
bring more clarity to the Group's valuation system and fully demonstrate the
long-term value that the innovative drugs and medical aesthetics business
system can bring to the Group after the disposal of part of the generics
business, thus helping to maximize shareholders’ value.

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE GROWTH STRATEGIES

In 2023, the Group will always implement and accelerate the two-wheel drive
strategy, focus the management on the medical aesthetic sector with higher growth
and the innovative drug and biopharmaceutical sector with high value growth,
optimize and integrate the generic medicine business, and dispose of the generic
drugs and other non-core healthcare businesses that do not meet performance
expectations.

In terms of medical aesthetic sector, the Group will continue to expand its layout
in the medical aesthetic field, merger and acquire outstanding objects, introduce
products, promote the R&D, registration and launch of new products, rapidly
enhance the upgrading and development of the medical aesthetic business, and
speed up the simultaneous upgrading of both scale and quality. It will create
new engine for cash flow, and further ensure the high growth of revenue scale,
profit, team and network coverage by focusing on the development of the medical
aesthetic business.

In terms of the pharmaceutical sector, the Group will strictly implement the
dual organizational structure comprising the Group headquarters and business
platform headquarters. As for the two innovative drug business platforms, namely
Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng Biopharm, the Group will promote the further
development of two main businesses through shareholding management, ensure
the rapid promotion of R&D pipelines and product registration and launch, gradually
implement the spin-off and listing, and guarantee the rapid business development
and the realization of high valuation.
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In terms of the generic drugs and APIs, the Group will continue to make
adjustments, gradually dispose of the generic drugs, APIs and other non-core
healthcare businesses that do not meet performance expectations while ensuring the
internal demands of the Group, convert them into cash and then use them for the
future business operation, mergers and acquisition or dividend distribution of the
Group. However, for products and businesses that still have high growth or have key
growth potential, they will continue to remain within the Group’s system and serve
as a stable source of cash income together with the medical aesthetics business.
The Group believes that these strategic measures for the generic medicine business
segment will further improve the efficiency of the Group’s resources allocation,
enhance the mid- to long-term financial performance, allow the Company to focus
on the medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical business segments.

CONCLUSION

In 2023, the Group will further implement the two-wheel drive strategy, accelerate
the disposal of some generic drugs and other non-core pharmaceutical or healthcare
businesses and assets that do not meet performance expectations or do not meet
long-term strategic development objectives, focus on the medical aesthetics
segments with high growth and profitability and the biopharmaceutical sector with
high value growth, and promote the transformation and development of the medical
aesthetics and innovative drug businesses, in order to realize the strategic objective
to build the leading medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical company in China.

The Group believes that, the strict implementation of the dual organizational
structure strategy will focus the management on the medical aesthetic sector with
higher growth and the innovative drug and the biopharmaceutical sector with
high value growth, further focus on the management and expand the business
of the medical aesthetics businesses, motivate and encourage the development,
growth and independent financing of the biopharmaceutical sector, and continue
to consolidate the transformation of the Group to the leading medical aesthetics
and biopharmaceutical company in China. Meanwhile, the Group will continue
with the optimization and integration of generic medicine business, dispose of
some generic drugs and other non-core pharmaceutical or healthcare businesses
and assets that do not meet performance expectations or do not meet long-term
strategic development objectives. Insists on being a friend of time, and through
continuous implementation of the two-wheel drive strategy of “medical aesthetics
+ biopharmaceuticals” with high efficiency, Sihuan Pharmaceutical will promote
the further release of corporate value, and achieve the strategic goal of building
China’s leading medical aesthetic and biopharmaceutical company, and bring more
and better investment returns to the respected shareholders and investors who have
always been firmly believing in and supporting the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue from continuing operations of the Group for the Year decreased by 28.2%
to approximately RMB2,181.2 million (2021: RMB3,038.4 million) due to the impact
of the continued development of the domestic epidemic and policy changes of the
pharmaceutical industry. Among it, the revenue from medical aesthetic products
decreased by 62.5% to approximately RMB149.8 million (2021: RMB399.0 million).
In addition, revenue from innovative medicine and other medicine increased by
47.5% to approximately RMB60.9 million (2021: RMB41.3 million), whereas the
remaining revenue from sales of generic medicine, which contributed to 90.3%
of total revenue, decreased by 24.2% (approximately RMB627.6 million) to
approximately RMB1,970.5 million (2021: RMB2,598.1 million).

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately RMB693.6
million (2021: RMB607.9 million), accounting for approximately 31.8% of the total
revenue.

Gross profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to approximately RMB1,487.6 million (2021:
RMB2,430.5 million) with a decrease of approximately RMB942.9 million, mainly due
to the significant decline in the revenue. Overall gross profit margin declined from
80.0% for the last year to 68.2% for the Year. The lower gross profit margin was
resulted from the combined impact of centralised procurement which caused a slight
decrease in selling prices and the increase in costs.

Other gains - net

Other gains — net for the Year increased by approximately RMB36.1 million to
approximately RMB350.2 million (2021: RMB314.1 million). It was mainly due to an
increase in gain on derecognition of subsidiaries.
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Impairment losses on non-current assets

The Group performed impairment testing on assets annually or more frequently
if events or change in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair
value of an asset less costs to sell and value-in-use. Due to the policy changes in
the pharmaceutical industry, the sales price and sales volume of the products were
affected in different degrees. The Group impaired the related assets according to
impairment test. Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, goodwill, right-of-use assets, investment properties, and investments
accounted for using the equity method during the year amounted to approximately
RMB1,130.6 million, RMB113.1 million, RMB8.8 million, RMB84.5 million, RMB0.8
million and RMB389.3 million respectively (2021: Nil, RMB131.3 million, Nil, Nil, Nil
and Nil). The main businesses involved in the impairment losses included generic
pharmaceuticals, APIs and healthcare.
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M - BB MEE Property, plant and equipment 1,130,627 =
A E Intangible assets 113,138 131,297
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REME Investment properties 772 -
EREREHENRE Investments accounted for using the equity method 389,311 -
1,727,119 131,297
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Distribution expenses

Distribution expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB471.1 million
(2021: RMB536.7 million), accounting for 21.6% of revenue for the Year, increasing
from 17.7% for 2021. The increase was mainly due to the decrease in sales prices.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year was approximately RMB552.2 million (2021:
RMB592.2 million), and basically there was no change.

R&D expenses

R&D expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB936.6 million (2021:
RMB868.1 million) which represented an increase of approximately RMB68.5
million compared with last year. It was mainly attributable to many R&D pipelines
of Xuanzhu Biopharm and Huisheng Biopharm which have entered into phase 2 or
phase 3 clinical trials and development of medical aesthetic segment.
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Other expenses

Other expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB139.4 million (2021:
RMB36.6 million), which represented an increase of approximately RMB102.8 million
compared with last year. It was mainly attributable to an increase in write-down of
inventories to net realisable value.

Finance expenses

Finance expenses for the Year amounted to approximately RMB211.2 million (2021:
RMB117.4 million), which represented an increase of approximately RMB93.8
million compared with last year. The non-cash expenses of approximately RMB151.5
million (2021: RMB89.3 million) included in finance expenses were due to the
corresponding interest incurred on the share repurchase rights of Xuanzhu Biopharm
and Huisheng Biopharm which were recognized as liabilities for accounting
treatment.

Loss before tax from continuing operations

Taking into account all the above reasons, the loss before tax from continuing
operations of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately RMB2,122.8
million (2021: profit of RMB496.0 million). The loss incurred for the Year included
non-cash impairment losses of approximately RMB1,727.1 million (2021: RMB131.3
million).

Income tax expense

Income tax expense of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB196.8 million (2021: RMB253.1 million). Although the consolidated financial
statements showed a loss for the Year, the generic medicine segment and the
medical aesthetic segment showed taxable profits under the PRC statutory tax
regime.

Loss for the Year from continuing operations

Taking into account all the above reasons, during the Year, the Group’s loss for the
Year from continuing operations amounted to approximately RMB2,319.6 million
(2021: profit of RMB242.9 million).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB1,914.9 million (2021: profit of RMB416.5 million).
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group maintained strong financial position. During the Year, net cash flows
from operating activities amounted to approximately RMB46.5 million. Huisheng
Biopharm successfully achieved funds raising of RMB1,080.0 million (of which
RMB100.0 million was invested by a subsidiary of the Group) and dividends of
approximately RMB1,315.5 million were paid to shareholders of the Company.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB3,828.9 million (31 December 2021: RMB5,682.4 million).
As at the same date, bank borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB1,135.5 million (31 December 2021: RMB1,013.2 million) and other borrowings
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB54.2 million (31 December 2021:
RMB31.5 million). Accordingly, the Group maintained net cash of approximately
RMB2,639.2 million (31 December 2021: RMB4,637.7 million). Approximately 73%
of total amount of borrowings were at floating rates and the remaining 27% were
at fixed rates (31 December 2021: 78% floating; 22% fixed). The Group's debt-to-
equity ratio, expressed as a percentage of borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company, was 25.1%.

In general, the Group places its excess cash into interest-bearing bank accounts. The
Group may use extra cash for short-term investments for higher returns. Thus, the
Group has entered into agreements with certain banks for surplus cash investment.
According to the terms of the agreements signed, the total amount of investment
conducted by the Group for the Year was approximately RMB16,163.4 million. The
investments made by the Group were short-term in nature and mainly consisted
of financial planning products purchased from certain state-owned banks. At their
discretion, issuing banks for the above-mentioned financial planning products
may invest in financial instruments such as government bonds, discounted bank
acceptance bills and commercial acceptance bills and bank deposits. As the highest
applicable percentage ratio in respect of the investments in each bank (after
aggregation according to rules 14.22 and 14.23 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange) separately is less than
5% as at the time of the investments according to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules,
such investments did not constitute notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 of the
Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recognised total financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately RMB963.0 million, comprising principal of
investment of approximately RMB962.0 million and approximately RMB1.0 million
of interest income, in the consolidated statement of financial position. As at the
date of this annual report, the total amount of sold/redeemed investment principal
amounted to approximately RMB113.1 million.

SEZ R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 53



B IR E RS am Mo AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AEER-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HERHER
T BEEFRR AEEYEEMERESRR

The Group had sufficient cash as at 31 December 2022. The Directors are of the
opinion that the Group does not have any significant capital risk.
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As at 31 December 2022, inventories decreased RMB108.6 million to approximately
RMB606.7 million (31 December 2021: RMB715.3 million). The inventory turnover
period for the year was 343 days (31 December 2021: 359 days).

Trade and other receivables

The Group's trade receivables and notes receivable include credit sales of its
products to be paid by its distributors. Other receivables of the Group mainly consist
of prepayments to suppliers and deposits. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
trade and other receivables were approximately RMB1,118.6 million (31 December
2021: RMB1,234.4 million). Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
trade receivables as a result of decreasing revenue.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment include buildings, production and
electronic equipment, vehicles and construction in progress. As at 31 December
2022, the net book value of the property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB2,301.0 million (31 December 2021: RMB3,304.9 million). The decrease during
the Year was mainly attributable to the provision of impairment of approximately
RMB1,130.6 million (2021: Nil). For details, please refer to notes 14 and 19 to the
financial statements.

Goodwill

The Group’s goodwill arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries and business
combinations. As at 31 December 2022, the net carrying amount of goodwill
was approximately RMB1.9 million (31 December 2021: RMB14.2 million). The
decrease during the Year was mainly attributable to the provision of impairment of
approximately RMB8.8 million (2021: Nil). For details, please refer to notes 17 and
19 to the financial statements.
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Intangible assets

The Group's intangible assets mainly comprise customer relationships, deferred
development costs, product development in progress and trademark and software.
The deferred development costs and product development in progress mainly
referred to the acquisition of several drug R&D projects and its R&D projects
featuring independent development. As at 31 December 2022, net intangible assets
amounted to approximately RMB626.5 million (31 December 2021: RMB610.1
million). The provision of impairment during the Year was approximately RMB113.1
million (2021: RMB131.3 million). For details, please refer to notes 18 and 19 to the
financial statements.

Trade and other payables

The Group’s trade and other payables mainly comprise trade payables, deposit
payables, accrued expenses and others. As at 31 December 2022, trade and other
payables amounted to approximately RMB1,926.9 million (31 December 2021:
RMB1,971.3 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (31
December 2021: Nil).

Off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had neither entered into any off-balance
sheet arrangements nor commitments to provide guarantees for any payment
obligations with any third party. The Group did not have any variable interests in any
unconsolidated entities which provide financing or liquidity funding, or incur market
risk or provide credit support, or engage in the provision of leasing or hedging or
R&D services to the Group.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's total capital commitment was approximately
RMB294.9 million. It was mainly set aside for purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, notes receivable,
wealth management products and other receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in certain PRC reputable
financial institutions and high-quality international financial institutions outside
Mainland China. All those irrevocable bank bills, classified as notes receivable, are
issued by banks in the PRC with high credit rating. There was no recent history
of default of cash equivalents and bank deposits in relation to these financial
institutions.
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In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk and has policies in place to ensure that certain cash advance has been received
upon the agreement of the related sales orders with customers. For those with credit
periods granted, the credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into
account their financial position, credit history and other factors. It also undertakes
certain monitoring procedures to ensure that proper follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group regularly performs aging analysis, assesses credit
risks and estimates the recoverability regarding such receivables based on historical
data and cash collection history of groups of trade receivables bearing similar credit
risk.

Wealth management products are the bank financial products issued by certain
PRC reputable banking institutions. There was no recent history of default and the
executive directors of the board of the Company are of the opinion that the credit
risk related to the investments is low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors is assessed by taking
into account their financial position, relationship with the Group, credit history and
other factors. Management will also regularly review the recoverability of these other
receivables and follow up on the disputes or amounts overdue, if any. The executive
Directors are of the opinion that the default by counterparties is likely to be low.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s functional currency is RMB and financial instruments are mainly
denominated in RMB. The Group has some cash balances mainly denominated in
United States Dollar (“USD") and Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"). It is expected that any
fluctuation of these foreign currencies’ exchange rates would not have material
effect on the operation of the Group. In addition, dividend payment in foreign
currencies converted from RMB is subject to foreign exchange rules and regulations
promulgated by the PRC government. The Group would closely monitor such
exchange risk from time to time.

During the Year, the Group did not purchase any foreign exchange, interest rate
derivative products or relevant hedging tools.

Treasury policy

The Group finances its ordinary operations mainly with internally generated
resources. The principal objective of the Group's capital management is to maintain
its ability to operate on a continuous basis. The Group regularly reviews its capital
structure to ensure that the Group has sufficient financial resources to support its
business operations.
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Capital expenditure

The Group's capital expenditure mainly includes purchase of property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and intangible assets. For the Year, the
Group's capital expenditure amounted to approximately RMB594.0 million, of which
approximately RMB402.5 million and RMB191.5 million were spent on purchase of
property, plant and equipment and purchase of or self-development of intangible
assets, respectively. For the Year, the Group’s investment in capital expenditure
for R&D amounted to approximately RMB318.3 million, of which approximately
RMB149.1 million was spent on property, plant and equipment. The remaining
approximately RMB169.2 million related to, the purchase of, and self-development
of intangible assets.

Material acquisitions and disposals

The equities of Lianben Technology, Lianben Chemical, Jilin Jiahui and Beijing
Xuansheng were disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2022. For details,
please refer to note 37 to the financial statements.

Future plans for material investments or capital assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged certain assets to secure banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries. For further details, please refer to note 34 to the
financial statements.

Human resources and remuneration of employees

Human resources are indispensable assets to the Group’s success in a competitive
environment. The Group is committed to providing competitive remuneration
packages to all the employees and regularly reviewing human resources policies,
to encourage employees to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and promoting the sustainable growth of the Company. The Group has also
adopted share option scheme and share award scheme to recognise and reward the
contribution of the employees for the benefit of the Group’s operations and future
development.

The Group continues to promote the building of talent training and development
system, and conducts online and offline training based on the competency standards
for positions at different levels to promote the cultivation and development of
talents in the Group and ensure continuous supply of various types of talents.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,313 employees. For the Year, the
Group's total salary and related costs were approximately RMB718.2 million
(2021: RMB686.1 million), including bonus and non-cash share-based payments of
approximately RMB49.1 million and RMB89.7 million (2021: RMB39.7 million and
RMB59.4 million). Salary for employees was determined based on their job nature,
personal performance and the market trends. The Group provides basic social
insurance and housing accumulation fund for company employees as required by the
PRC law.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Che Fengsheng, aged 61, is our executive Director and chairman of the
Company (the “Chairman”) and was appointed to the Board on 18 May 2006.
He is a co-founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of the Group and is instrumental to
the Group’s growth and business expansion since its establishment in 2001. Prior
to the Group's establishment, Dr. Che had more than 8 years of experience as a
medical doctor/neurologist and more than 20 years of experience in the sales and
marketing of pharmaceutical products and the management of pharmaceutical
companies. From 1997 to 2001, Dr. Che was a general manager of Hainan Kang
Tong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. where he was in charge of the company’s overall
management. From 1995 to 1997, Dr. Che was the assistant general manager and
manager of marketing centre of Shenzhen City New Special Pharmaceutical Products
Co., Ltd. where he was responsible for the marketing and overall management
of the company’s business. Between 1993 and 1995, Dr. Che was the product
promotion manager and East China Regional manager of Shenzhen City Healthcare
Pharmaceutical Company, in charge of sales and marketing. From 1991 to 1993,
Dr. Che held the position of neurologist attending physician and lecturer in First
Military Medical University, Zhu Jiang Hospital, Guangzhou City, PRC. Dr. Che was
a neurologist and an assistant lecturer at the Fourth Military Medical University in
Xi'an City, PRC and at the Fourth Military Medical University, Xi Jing Hospital in Xi‘an
City, PRC from 1984 to 1991 respectively. Dr. Che was the vice chairman of several
committees and associations including China Political Science Training Centre, China
Medical Economics Magazine Board and the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association. Dr.
Che is also a deputy supervisor of the Hainan Food and Drug Working Committee
in the Hainan Entrepreneurs Association as well as a specially appointed research
member of the China Enterprise Reform and Development Research Institute.
In 2006, he was awarded the title of one of the Top 10 New and Enterprising
Businessmen in Hainan Province by the Hainan Province Commerce Association, the
Hainan Industry & Economics Association and the Evaluation Committee of Top 10
Leading Businessmen and Top 10 New and Enterprising Businessmen in Industry and
Commerce in Hainan. He was vice chairman of the Medical Pharmaceutical Chamber
of the All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce from 2010 to 2011. He won
the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur Award for Life Science Industry of China in 2012.
He was awarded the National Labour Day Medal in 2014. He was appointed as the
director for the Fourth Session of the board of the Beijing Society of Biomedical
Engineering in 2014. He was recognised as the National Labour Model in 2015. Dr.
Che received his Bachelor of Medicine (Aviation) and Master of Medicine (Neurology)
from the Fourth Military Medical University, Xi'an City, PRC in 1984 and 1990
respectively. He also received an Executive Master of Business Administration from
China Europe International Business School in 1999.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Guo Weicheng, aged 59, is our executive Director, deputy chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. He was appointed to our Board on 18
May 2006 and is a co-founder of the Group. Dr. Guo is responsible for the overall
operations of the Group, sales and marketing and our R&D activities, with a focus
on strategic planning, particularly in relation to mergers and acquisitions and
product collaborations. He has also become responsible for the overall operations
of Shenzhen Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. after it was acquired in 2007. Dr.
Guo has been instrumental to the Group’s growth and business expansion since
our establishment in 2001. Prior to our establishment, Dr. Guo had more than 4
years of experience as a general surgeon and more than 20 years of experience in
the sales and marketing of pharmaceutical products. From 1992 to 1993, Dr. Guo
held the position of chief surgeon in Guangzhou Military 177 Hospital. Dr. Guo was
a surgeon and an assistant lecturer at the Fourth Military Medical University, Tang
Du Hospital, Xi‘an City, PRC from 1986 to 1989. Dr. Guo received his Bachelor of
Medicine and Master of Medicine (General Surgery) from the Fourth Military Medical
University, PRC in 1986 and 1992, respectively.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong, aged 61, is our executive Director and was appointed to the
Board on 20 April 2018. He is in charge of the Group’s investment and mergers
and acquisitions. He joined the Group in 2005 and was first appointed to the Board
as a non-executive Director on 18 May 2006 until 8 December 2017. Dr. Zhang
has more than 10 years of experience as a medical doctor. From 1983 to 1992, Dr.
Zhang worked as a medical doctor in Shenzhen People’s Hospital, one of the largest
hospitals in Shenzhen City, PRC. Dr. Zhang obtained an Undergraduate Certificate in
Medical Treatment from Shantou Medical College (JIZBE&E2H R ZBz) (now known
as Shantou University Medical College (JI 28 K2 % Zft)) in 1983. In 1992, Dr.
Zhang was conferred the professional title of attending physician by the Shenzhen
City Title Conferment Reform Leadership Group (# 3T BEFE L 488/ |\ 48).

Ms. Chen Yanling, aged 45, is our executive Director, one of the joint company
secretaries and the co-chairman of the Risk Management Committee and was
appointed to the Board on 20 April 2018. Currently, her main responsibilities are to
manage day-to-day matters of the Board, the daily compliance matters relating to
the listing of the Company, the ESG and risk control and management matters of
the Group and day-to-day matters on the management of the Group in Hong Kong,
Macau and overseas companies. She joined the Group in March 2006 and has served
in the Group for 17 years. Since joining the Group in 2006, she has been working as
an assistant to the Chairman of the Group and the Board secretariat. Prior to joining
the Group, she worked as an English translation officer at the information centre of
Guangzhou Tourism Bureau in 2001. In 2002, she worked as an assistant to general
manager at Yip’s Ink & Chemicals (Zhongshan) Company Ltd. (2 M2 (F L) B
2~ |]) and was in charge of the daily management of the general manager’s office as
well as planning and promotion. In 2004, she worked as an assistant to the president
of Guangzhou Culturecom Company Ltd. (BN 32L& A 7)) and was in charge
of the daily management of the president’s office, planning and budgeting, media
resources integration and development, and maintenance, etc.
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Ms. Miao Guili, aged 49, is our executive Director, deputy chief executive officer
and chief financial officer of the Company. She was appointed to our Board on
17 October 2022. Ms. Miao has over 15 years of management and investment
experience in the PRC pharmaceutical industry, and had held senior management
positions as the general manager, deputy general manager, chief financial officer,
etc., respectively, in various well-known enterprises, such as China Resources
Pharmaceutical Group Limited (stock code: 3320.HK), Top Spring International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3688.HK) and Edding Group Company Limited ({8
B2 £ B AR /AF]), for more than 10 years. Ms. Miao obtained a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Hong Kong. She is a Chartered Certified
Accountant (CA) of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants (ISCA), a
fellow member of each of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(FCCA), the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA) and the
Chartered Global Management Accountants (CGMA).

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 71, is our independent non-executive Director and
was appointed to the Board on 4 September 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Tsang was a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China.
He has over 30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for initial
public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang is currently an independent
non- executive director of a number of companies, including China Merchants
China Direct Investments Limited (stock code: 133), TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 2283) and Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (stock
code: 312) (all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Tsang is currently an
independent director of HUYA Inc. (which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
NYSE: HUYA). Mr. Tsang was an independent director of Agria Corporation (formerly
listed on the New York Stock Exchange) from August 2011 to October 2017, a
director of PGG Wrightson Limited (a company listed on the New Zealand Stock
Exchange) from December 2014 to October 2017, an independent non-executive
director of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 231) from
February 2016 to March 2020 (a company that was listed on the Stock Exchange)
and CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (stock code: 1566) from November
2014 to November 2022 (a company listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Tsang
received a bachelor degree in business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Zhu Xun, aged 65, is our independent non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board on 20 February 2014. Dr. Zhu is a native of Changchun City.
From 1995 to 2000, he served as the vice principal of Norman Bethune University of
Medical Science. From 2000 to 2003, he served as a deputy secretary general of the
Changchun Municipal Government and from 2004 to 2006, he served as a special
assistant to the mayor of Changchun Municipal Government. Prior to joining the
Group, Dr. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. He is
currently the chairman of the board of directors of the Tongxieyi New Drugs Talent
Club* (F1% B B4 A B 445T), the Chief of Medicine and Strategy* (Z&JE8LES), and
the Honorary Principal of Shell University* (B3 AX2). He is also a special medical
expert of Advantech Capital Investment* (i&3%#& 7), an independent director of
Shenzhen ChipScreen BioS (& 3l 5 it 4 #1), a senior consultant of Changchun
Jinsai Pharmaceutical* (R&E&BEZ:%), and Shenzhen Osa Pharmaceutical* (&3l
BEfEEE ). Dr. Zhu is currently an independent non-executive director of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (stock code: 503) (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange).

Dr. Zhu founded Changchun Medical Biotechnology Center* (& & 58 % 4 ¥)
fir # ) in 2001 as the supervisor of the center. In the same year, he founded
Changchun Boxun Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (R&EERAYFITZAR]) and served as
the chairman of the board. Funded with 8 million US dollars from the British listed
company Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited in 2003. Dr. Zhu founded
Changchunbotai* (K&1§2g) as chief executive officer until 2010.

Dr. Zhu has served as a member of the National New Drug Advisory Committee* (E{
R EEARE B ), a member of the expert review group of the Life Science Division
of the National Natural Science Foundation of China (AR EAARIERESRESE D
B E2IBERFEMK E), a member of the expert advisory group in Biotechnology
of the National Development and Reform Commission (B 228 Z AW ITHKHE
4K 8), a member of the review group of the Innovation Fund for SMEs of the
Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC (BRI EF AR /N R AT AT E & 5T
%% 8) and a member of the China Medical Science Awards Committee* (71258 £
B2 Z B EZ 8), the founding editor of the Chinese Journal of Experimental
Diagnostics* (1 Bl & B 2 i 5 55 8148 £ 4R ), the deputy editor of the Journal of
Pharmaceutical Progress* (4223 £ 558 = 47), the editorial board of the Chinese
Journal of Cancer Biotherapy* (FBIJERB AV A B E4RZ), and the editorial board
of the Chinese Journal of Immunology* (F B &% 25 HEER).

* For identification purposes only

* Eas)
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Mr. Wang Guan, aged 42, is our independent non-executive Director and was
appointed to the Board on 1 April 2023. Mr Wang specializes in legal services for
securities capital with over 20 years of experience in legal services for securities
capital and is familiar with the laws and regulations relating to securities capital
in Mainland China and Hong Kong. He is able to provide a wide range of legal
services for securities capital. Mr. Wang is a partner of Grandway Law Offices, an
independent director of Guizhou Qianyuan Power Co.,Ltd. (stock code: $Z002039),
an external internal auditor of Industrial Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: SH601377)
and a special expert of the strategy and investment advisory committee of Guizhou
Airport Group Co., Ltd. (EME&#SEEER A A]). Mr. Wang was a lawyer and
partner of S&P Law Firm and V&T Law Firm. He was also an independent director
of Shenzhen Anche Technologies Co., Ltd. (RIITHZE BB A B R A R]) (stock
code: SZ300572), and each member of the State-owned Assets Law Committee of
the 9th Beijing Lawyers Association and the Securities Law Committee of the 10th
Beijing Lawyers Association. Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in law from
Renmin University of China. Mr. Wang holds the Certificate of Independent Director
Qualification of Listed Companies issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Chen Yanling, is our executive Director and joint company secretary. Please
refer to this section headed “Executive Directors” for her biography.

Mr. Li Kin Wai, is our joint company secretary. He was appointed on 17 October
2022. Mr. Li is currently a senior manager of the Corporate Services Division of
Tricor Services Limited, an integrated provider offering business, corporate and
investor services. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in the corporate secretarial
field and has been providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed
companies as well as multinational, private and offshore companies. Mr. Li is a
Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an associate of both
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Period
From 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

Good corporate governance is favorable for the improvement of the overall
performance, transparency and accountability of the Company and is crucial to the
modern corporate administration. The Board, in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”), devotes considerable efforts to maintaining
and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate
governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate
image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the reporting period.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal activities of
the Group are the research and development (“R&D"), and the manufacture
and sale of pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products in the PRC.
By adhering to the core values of “integrity and responsibility, pragmatism and
innovation, cooperation and sharing, and pursuit of excellence”, we take integrity
and responsibility as the foundation of our work, encourage the work style of
staying realistic and daring to make breakthroughs, advocate openness and
cooperation, attach importance to teamwork, seek win-win cooperation, and
constantly pursue excellence. The four interlocking rings represent the corporate
spirit of “staying focused, staying committed, being professional and reaching a
mutual win”, highlighting the Group’s style and features. The code of conduct is a
positive interpretation of the Group’s core values and corporate spirit. The Company
advocates the practice of the cultural behaviors of “being brave, cooperative,
tolerant, passionate, diligent and pragmatic” among employees, in order to reduce
internal consumption and friction, cultivate team spirit, fully mobilize enthusiasm
and zeal for innovation, and enhance the sense of honor and responsibility.

The Company will continuously review and adjust, if necessary, its business
strategies and keep track of the changing market conditions to ensure prompt and
proactive measures will be taken to respond to the changes and meet the market
needs to foster the sustainability of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Choi Yiau Chong resigned as executive Director and Ms. Miao Guili
was appointed as executive Director on 17 October 2022. Mr. Patrick Sun resigned
as independent non-executive Director and Mr. Wang Guan was appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 1 April 2023. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, there is no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
the members of the Board. The biographical information of the members of the
Board are set out on pages 58 to 62 in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors”. During the Year, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated and such roles are exercised by Dr. Che Fengsheng as the Chairman
and Dr. Guo Weicheng as the CEO.

The Board is responsible for the governance of the Group’s strategic development,
determination of the Group’s objectives, business strategies and policies, and the
supervision and control of the operation and financial performance in pursuit of
the Group's strategic objectives. Our management team, which possesses extensive
operating experience and industry knowledge, has been delegated by the Board
with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management of the Group.
In addition, the Board has also delegated certain specific responsibilities to the
various Board committees, namely, the audit committee, remuneration committee,
nomination committee and risk management committee. Further details of these
Board committees are set out below.

The Board convened eight Board meetings during the Year. All Directors were sent
meeting notices, at least 14 days prior to the regular meetings, with the Board
meeting agendas. The views of independent non-executive Directors were actively
solicited by the Company during Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and
Board committees meetings are kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective
meetings. All Directors are provided with Board papers and related statistics in a
timely manner, which enabled the Board to make informed decisions on matters
proposed. In addition, all Board members have regularly reviewed the business
documents and information related to the Group.

All Directors are entitled to access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries. The joint company secretaries of the Company are Ms. Chen Yanling,
who is an executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Li Kin Wai. The primary
contact person of Mr. Li at the Company is Ms. Chen.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of Ms. Chen and Mr. Li, has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, during the reporting
period, is stated below:

HERE
BEREEZ
EEge3Ry
Attendance/
No. of Board
meetings eligible
to attend
HITES Executive Directors
BEARE(ER) Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman) 8/8
SRuEIk B8 A (Bl E R FRATERAEEL) Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO) 8/8
s A 3E & Dr. Zhang Jionglong 8/8
PRS2 Ms. Chen Yanling 8/8
BEHEBLZ+T(BIITHREARFEEEVTE) Ms. Miao Guili (Deputy CEO and CFO) 2/2
(R=T==F+ATEHEZRF) (appointed on 17 October 2022)

ERALEAE(R-FB-_F+HA++HBE) Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (resigned on 17 October 2022) 6/6

BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FEELAE(R-_ZE-=F1M A —HEIT) Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023) 7/8
BENRELE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 7/8
KiiE+ Dr. Zhu Xun 8/8
FRAE(R_ZTE=_=FWOA—BHEZT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023) 0/0
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

With regards to the code provision requiring directors to disclose the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved in such commitments,
the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has currently appointed three independent non-executive Directors.
At least one of the three independent non-executive Directors holds appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. One-third of the
members of the Board are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun, being the independent non-executive Directors, have
renewed their letters of appointment with the Company for a term of one year
commencing from 4 September 2022 and 20 February 2023, respectively. Mr.
Wang Guan, being an independent non-executive Director, has entered into
his appointment letter with the Company for a term of one year commencing
from 1 April 2023. The independent non-executive Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation or re-election in accordance with the Company’s
bye-laws (the “Bye-Laws”). Each independent non-executive Director has
submitted to the Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent and meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board adopted a “Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism” on 29 March
2022 to ensure a strong independent element on the Board of the Company, which
allows the Board effectively exercises independent judgment to better safeguard
Shareholders’ interests. The mechanism includes:

° Nomination Committee is established with clear terms of reference to identify
suitable candidates, including independent non-executive Directors, for
appointment as Directors.

o Nomination Policy is in place with details of the process and criteria of
identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating and integrating new
directorship.

° For independent non-executive directors (“INED(s)"):

o Every INED is required to confirm in writing to the Company his/her
independence upon his/her appointment as Director with reference to
such criteria as stipulated in the Nomination Policy as well as the Listing
Rules;

3 Each INED has to declare his/her past or present financial or other
interests in the Group’s business as soon as practicable, or his/her
connection with any of the Company’s connected persons (as defined in
the Listing Rules), if any;

3 Each INED is required to inform the Company as soon as practicable if
there is any change in his/her own personal particulars that may affect
his/her independence.
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o The Nomination Committee will assess annually the independence of all INEDs
and to affirm if each of them still satisfies the criteria of independence as set
out in the Listing Rules and is free from any relationships and circumstances
which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect, their independent
judgement. Every Nomination Committee member should abstain from
assessing his/her own independence.

o Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as an INED at the
general meeting, it will set out in the circular to Shareholders the reasons it
believes he/she should be elected and the reasons it considers him/her to be
independent.

o A mechanism is in place for Directors to seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’s expense.

o Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the Company’s senior
management independently, if necessary.

o An annual review on Board independence (the “Board Independence
Evaluation”) will be conducted, with attention to ensuring that it remains
independent in judgement and continue to present an objective and
constructive challenge to the assumptions and viewpoints presented by the
management.

o The Board Independence Evaluation may take in the form of a questionnaire
to all Directors individually and may be supplemented by individual interview
with each Director, if necessary, and/or in any other manners which the Board
considers fit and necessary.

o The Board Independence Evaluation report will be presented to the Board
which will collectively discuss the results and the action plan for improvement,
if appropriate.

o The results of the Board Independence Evaluation or a summary of the
findings of the said Evaluation will be disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Report for accountability and transparency purposes.

o The aforesaid Board Independence Evaluation will be regarded as an ongoing
exercise of the Company while the Company may seek assistance from
external consultant if an external evaluation on the same subject is needed.

The Board Independence Evaluation in the form of a questionnaire had been sent
to all Directors for assessment and the Board is satisfied with the evaluation on
structure, size, composition and independence of the Board for the Year. The Board
also reviewed the “Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism” on an annual basis
to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The Bye-Laws provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one- third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if the number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
and being eligible, can offer themselves for re-election. In addition, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election. The retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by the Shareholders at the
respective general meetings.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong, Ms. Chen
Yanling, Ms. Miao Guili and Mr. Wang Guan will retire by rotation and be eligible for
re-election as Directors at the annual general meeting to be held in 2023 (the “2023
AGM").

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company before the
expiration of his period of office (but without prejudice to any claim which such
Director may have for damages for any breach of any contract between him and the
Company) provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of
removing a Director shall contain a statement of the intention to do so and be served
on such Director 14 days before the meeting and, at such meeting, such Director
shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for his removal.

As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been put in place to
ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in this respect provides
sufficient protection for the interests of Shareholders to a standard commensurate
with the provision of the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the Year, the
Directors are committed to complying with the code provision C.1.4 of the Code
on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they received.

BEEHR
HERESHE OINBRE - B
HENRNE - REEER
2BERIEYS HEEHRER
Reading
Attending materials like
seminar, newspapers,
conference journals and
and workshop updates
related to relevant to
Director’s corporate
EEgE Name of Directors duties governance
HITES Executive Directors
ST Dr. Che Fengsheng v v/
FOHEI B Dr. Guo Weicheng v/ v/
oA geER Dr. Zhang Jionglong 4 v
PR#EIR AT Ms. Chen Yanling v v/
BRELT Ms. Miao Guili v v/
(R=ZZE_=F+A+EREZT) (appointed on 17 October 2022)
BB E Mr. Choi Yiau Chong v v/
(RZE2EZ=F+A+EHFE) (resigned on 17 October 2022)
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
FEERE Mr. Patrick Sun v/ v/
(R=—ZE-_=FM"A—HET) (resigned on 1 April 2023)
GEH L Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong v v
KEL Dr. Zhu Xun v/ v
FTEAEE(RZZT_=ZFN A —HEZME) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023) TEA N/A TEA N/A
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and with its
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to assist the Board to provide an independent view on
the effectiveness of the financial reporting procedures, internal control and risk
management system of the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as required by the Board. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong, Dr. Zhu Xun and Mr. Wang Guan), and is chaired by Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong
who has a professional qualification in accountancy.
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During the Year, three meetings were held by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee had reviewed the Group’s financial reporting matters, reviewed the
internal control system in relation to finance and accounting and submitted
improvement proposals to the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code.

In addition, the Audit Committee had reviewed, discussed and approved the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the interim results for the period
ended 30 June 2022. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
also reviewed the auditor’s remuneration for 2022 and recommended the Board to
re-appoint Ernst & Young as the Company’s auditor for the year of 2023, which is
subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2023 AGM.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members at the meetings held
during the Year was as follows:

HERE,
BERUEEZ
BRRY
Attendance/
No. of meetings

BEENF Name of Directors eligible to attend

EFELELE(EF) Mr. Patrick Sun (Chairman) 3/3
(R=ZZ==FWMA—H&T) (resigned on 1 April 2023)

SIS A (ERE) Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman) 3/3
(R=ZZE=_=FMA—BEZTAER) (appointed as chairman on 1 April 2023)

KRB Dr. Zhu Xun 3/3

FTEEE(NR-_E-_=FNM—HEZT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023) 0/0
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are, among others, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on matters relating
to the appointment of Directors. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director (Dr. Guo Weicheng) and three independent non-executive
Directors (Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, Dr. Zhu Xun and Mr. Wang Guan) and is chaired
by Mr. Wang Guan. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code. During
the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board in
accordance with the requirements as stipulated in the Code and concluded that the
Board comprised members with diversified backgrounds and skills which ensured
check and balance and safeguarded the interests of Shareholders as well as the
public.
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The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and
nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) setting out the approach to diversify
members of the Board. The Company believes that a diversified perspective can
be achieved through implementation of the Board Diversity Policy. The following
measurable objectives were adopted: selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, skills,
knowledge, experience, expertise, professional and educational qualifications,
background and other personal qualities. The ultimate decision will be based on
objective criteria, merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprised 2 females (representing 25% of the
Board), out of 8 Directors; and among the 3,313 employees of the Group, female
employees accounted for 57.26%. The Board considers that the Board and the
Group's workforce are all diverse in terms of gender. At present, the Company has
not set any measurable objectives for implementation of the diversity policies in
relation to the Board members and the workforce of the Group (including gender
diversity) and is not aware of any factors or circumstances that would make it
more challenging or less relevant for the Group to achieve gender diversity among
its employees. However, the Company will consider and review from time to time
such diversity policies (including gender diversity) and setting of any measurable
objectives (if applicable).

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, considered the re-appointment of the retiring Directors, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and considered the
appointment of the new executive Director. The Nomination Committee, had
also, taking into consideration the skills, experience and knowledge, the relevant
requirements of the Company and the structure and composition of the Board,
identified, reviewed and nominated, with diligence and care, candidates who are
suitable as Board members of the Company before making final recommendations to
the Board for their final appointment.
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The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members at the meetings held
during the Year was as follows:

HERE

BEREEZ

BB

Attendance/

No. of meetings

BEENF Name of Directors eligible to attend

WA (EFE) Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman) 2/2
(M=Z—=FmA—BTBETIEE) (ceased to be chairman on 1 April 2023)

204 B8 Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2

FEESLE Mr. Patrick Sun 2/2

(R=Z==FmMA—BBT) (resigned on 1 April 2023)
KAEL Dr. Zhu Xun 2/2
TREEEERF) Mr. Wang Guan (Chairman) 0/0
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(appointed on 1 April 2023)

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination
Policy on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a nomination policy on 18 March 2019
according to the requirements of the Code. It sets out the criteria and procedures
to be adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or re-appointed as
Directors of the Company.

NOMINATION CRITERIA

1. When considering a candidate nominated for directorship or a Director’s
proposed re-appointment, the Nomination Committee will have regard to the
following factors:

1.1 age, gender, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional and
educational qualifications, background and other personal qualities of
the candidate;

1.2 effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

1.3 commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient time to effectively
carry out his/her duties. In this regard, the number and nature of offices

held by the candidate in public companies or organizations, and other
executive appointments or significant commitments will be considered;

1.4 potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if the candidate is
selected;

1.5 independence of the candidate;

ACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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1.6 in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an independent non-
executive Director, the number of years he/she has already served; and

1.7  other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination Committee
on a case by case basis.

NOMINATION PROCEDURES AND PROCESS

2.

Subject to the provisions in the Bye-Laws, if the Board recognises the need to
appoint an additional Director, the following procedures should be adopted:

2.1 the Nomination Committee identifies or selects candidates
recommended to the Committee, with or without assistance from
external agencies or the Company, pursuant to the criteria set out
above;

2.2 the Nomination Committee adopts any process appropriate to evaluate
the candidates, which may include personal interviews, background
checks, presentations or written submissions by the candidates and
third party references;

2.3 the Nomination Committee will hold a physical meeting to consider the
matter and avoid the making of decisions by written resolutions unless
it is impractical that a physical meeting be held;

2.4 the Nomination Committee provides to the Board with all the
information required including information set out in Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules in relation to the candidates;

2.5 before recommendation to the Board, evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board to prepare a description of
the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment, then the
Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the Board including
the terms and conditions of the appointment;

2.6 the Board deliberates and decides on the appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee;

2.7 all appointments of Director should be confirmed by letter of
appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of the
appointment of the Directors, which should be approved by the
Nomination Committee; and
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2.8 pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Listing Rules, where Shareholders are
required to vote on electing or re-electing a Director, the circular
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting should
contain all the information of the candidates required under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

In cases of re-appointments of existing Directors, a physical meeting will be held to
consider the re-appointment based on the same criteria set out in above.

NOMINATION BY SHAREHOLDERS

The Shareholders may also propose a person for election as a Director, details of
which are set out in the “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” on the Company'’s website.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and with its written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things, to
make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management and to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals. The remuneration of the Directors is
determined with reference to their duties, responsibilities and experience, and to
prevailing market conditions. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
one executive Director (Dr. Che Fengsheng) and three independent non-executive
Directors (Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, Dr. Zhu Xun and Mr. Wang Guan) and is chaired
by Dr. Zhu Xun. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant sections of the Code.

During the Year, three meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee,
during which the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance of executive
Directors; reviewed the remuneration policy; reviewed and approved the proposed
remuneration for executive Directors in 2022 and made recommendation to the
Board on the Directors’ fees for independent non-executive Directors; reviewed and
approved the proposed remuneration for new executive Director.
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The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members at the meetings
held during the Year was as follows:

HERE,
BERUE
ZERIRE
Attendance/
No. of meetings

BEENF Name of Directors eligible to attend
KA (ERFE) Dr. Zhu Xun (Chairman) 3/3
HEHE Dr. Che Fengsheng 3/3
FEELEA(RN-BE-=FNA—BBT) Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023) 3/3
BENRELE Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 3/3
FRAE(NR_ZTE=_=FNOA—BEZT) Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023) 0/0
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Details of the Directors’ and executive’s remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

On 13 December 2015, the Board approved and established the risk management
committee of the Company (the “Risk Management Committee”) with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are,
among others, to review the Company’s risk management, internal control system
and environmental, social and governance (“ESG") strategies, policies, guidelines
and procedures and to review the effectiveness of the work on risk management,
internal control systems and ESG. The Risk Management Committee consists of three
executive Directors (Dr. Guo Weicheng, Ms. Chen Yanling and Ms. Miao Guili) and
one independent non-executive Director (Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong), and is co-chaired
by Ms. Chen Yanling and Ms. Miao Guili.

During the Year, two meetings were held by the Risk Management Committee.
The Risk Management Committee reviewed and assessed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company, and made suggestions to the Board. The
Risk Management Committee had also reviewed and assessed the ESG strategies,
policies, guidelines and procedures, and expressed their opinions to the Board.

4 fE %R % ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 75



ALl A~

TRERRS

)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

WAFE  EAREEZEEREHEERES
mF :

BEspnS

Name of Directors

The attendance record of the Risk Management Committee members at the
meetings held during the Year was as follows:

HERE
BERHEZ
BRI
Attendance/

No. of meetings
eligible to attend

FRER L (BEERE)
(R=ZZZ=F+AT+EHEZEERR
—E-=FNA-HEEEAMETR)

20 4 45 B8 A
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ERAEAE(ERE)
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EEREHESNESRSE
£ = A

ARRE R LR RS+ P& e EH AR
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BEEEERABEE
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Ms. Chen Yanling (Co-chairman) 0/0
(appointed on 17 October 2022 and appointed as
co-chairman on 1 April 2023)

Dr. Guo Weicheng 2/2
Ms. Miao Guili (Co-chairman) 0/0
(appointed on 17 October 2022 and appointed as
co-chairman on 1 April 2023)
Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023) 2/2
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 2/2
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (Chairman) 2/2

(resigned on 17 October 2022)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as
its own code of conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year. To comply
with the Code, the Group has also established and adopted the Model Code as the
code of conduct for securities transactions by relevant employees to regulate the
dealings in the securities of the Group by certain employees of the Group who are
deemed to be likely in possession of the inside information of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirmed that it is their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022. A statement on reporting responsibility
with respect to the external auditor of the Company is set out on pages 118 to 124
of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system is maintained within the Group. The Group has adopted
internal control procedures and policies to safeguard the assets, to ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records, to carry out reliable financial reporting and
to ensure compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board to review the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems every year. Review scope covers the
control of all major aspects, including the Company’s financial control, operation
control and compliance control. It also reviews the adequacy of resources in the
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, staff qualifications and
experience, and the level of training attended and related subsidies that employees
have received. During the Year, the Board is satisfied with the review results of the
Group's risk management and internal control and considers them effective and
sufficient.

The Group has established an internal audit team who conducts independent
auditing work under the guidance of the Audit Committee. The annual work plan of
the internal audit team was to review periodically in relation to the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems and reports to the Risk Management
Committee and Audit Committee. The internal audit team reported the audit
results to the Audit Committee, carried out follow-up actions agreed based on
recommendations of the Audit Committee and to assist the Audit Committee and
the Board to promote continuous improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal controls. The internal audit team is staffed by persons with certain
professional ethics, professional competence, audit experience and appropriate
communication skills.

In 2022, the Board has appointed a professional third party to provide professional
advice and services on risk management to the Group. The Group also implemented
internal control review at the Company level and key business processes in 2022.
The management has taken measures to control related risks and developed internal
monitoring management mechanism and rectification plan which will continue to be
implemented.

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management system and realized
organic integration with the internal control system. Through a systematical risk
management process, a list of risks is compiled by identification with respect to the
operating conditions of the Company. Judgment on the possibility of occurrence
and the effects of various types of risks is attained through assessment of risks.
Ranking the severity of the Group’s business impact by combining qualitative and
quantitative analysis to find out the causes of risks, recommendations of multi-
dimensional and effective responsive strategies are made from seven aspects,
including operation strategy, system process, structural functions, technical tools,
skills of staff, allocation of resources and performance appraisal, and a written
report is prepared for submission to the management and the Board. The Group
further developed risk management measures to maintain risk within an acceptable
level. Finally, fruitful results of risk management will be realized through effective
implementation of the internal control system. The Group has formed a regular
mechanism for daily monitoring and regular assessment of risks to realize continuing
supervision on essential risk factors in the daily operational management activities.
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In addition to internal implementation of risk management and conducting regular
review on internal control, the Group will engage external auditors annually to
perform statutory audits as well as to review the adequacy and effectiveness of
certain key risk management and internal control aspects. Under appropriate
circumstances, the Group will adopt the relevant recommendations of the external
auditors to enhance risk management and internal control.

Moreover, to regulate operations of the Group and to ensure that all businesses
of the Group comply with relevant laws and regulations, the Group’s former
surveillance department has been restructured into the compliance department
in 2015 and is responsible for the establishment, inspection and reporting of
all compliance-related work of the Group. A compliance risk management
organizational structure has been established within the Group since then to
conduct regular reviews on the compliance of conducts of the Group’s internal staff,
customers, suppliers and cooperative partners, provide training and education on
observing discipline and laws and complying with anti-corruption rules, and sign
letters of undertakings on compliance with employees annually, in order to clarify
the Group’s management requirements related to bribery, corruption and unfair
competition and standardize the employees’ honest and self-disciplined behavior.
Such practice is aligned with the applicable laws and regulations on anti-corruption
and the industry practice.

Regarding the handling and release of inside information, the Group has formulated
the “Information Disclosure Management Measures”, and has complied with
applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules, to disclose information truthfully,
timely, accurately, legally and completely in accordance with the information
processing and release procedures to perform the obligations of disclosure, and to
ensure that such information has been kept confidential prior to the proper approval
of its disclosure to protect the legitimate interests of the Shareholders, creditors
and other stakeholders. The Company has implemented necessary internal control
measures to restrict Directors, senior management and related employees to obtain
or use the inside information without prior authorisation by the Company.

The Group has established the “Whistleblowing Policy” for employees and
stakeholders to raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matter related to
the Group.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND

INVESTORS

In 2022, the Group has participated in a number of institutional investor conferences
and regularly communicated with many investors through various means. The
Group has also set to provide the highest standard and financial transparency
through publication of annual and interim reports, results announcements, other

announcements and circulars through the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

are set out below:

During the Year, the Company held the annual general meeting on 24 May 2022.

The attendance records of the Directors at the general meetings held during the Year

HERE,

BT Z2EBRH™
Attendance/

No. of meetings held

HITES

BHIEFE

U B

SR A e 8

BRIEIS £

BWMBLL
(RZZZ=F+A+tHEZE)

BERB A
(RZZ=Z=F+A+tHBE)

BYFHITES
FEFEELEE(R-TBE-=EMA—HBT)
B

KAEL
FRELE(R-_ZS-_=FNA—BEEZT)

Executive Directors
Dr. Che Fengsheng
Dr. Guo Weicheng
Dr. Zhang Jionglong
Ms. Chen Yanling
Ms. Miao Guili
(appointed on 17 October 2022)
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong
(resigned on 17 October 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Dr. Zhu Xun

Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023)
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Shareholder Communication Policy

The Board adopted a Shareholder communication policy (“Policy”) according to the

Code and will review the Policy at least annually to ensure its effectiveness. Having

reviewed the different channels of communication with Shareholders, the Board

is satisfied that the Policy has been properly implemented during the Year and is

effective.

1. Purpose

1.1

1.2

This Policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of ensuring
that Sihuan Group’s Shareholders, both individual and institutional
(collectively, “Shareholders”), and, in appropriate circumstances, the
investment community at large, are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company (including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, governance and risk profile), in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders and the investment community to engage actively
with the Company.

For the purpose of this Policy, references to the investment community
is intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as
analysts reporting and analysing the Company’s performance.

2. General Policy

2.1

2.2

2.3

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
the investment community, and will regularly review this Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the investment
community mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim and
annual reports), annual general meetings and other general meetings
that may be convened and its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Sihuan Group website.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and
the investment community shall be ensured at all times. Any question
regarding this Policy shall be directed to the Company Secretary or Head
of Corporate Communications.
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Communication Strategies

Shareholders’ enquiries

3.1

3.2

3.3

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information
is publicly available.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided with
designated contacts and email addresses in order to enable them to
make any query in respect of the Company.

Corporate Communication™*

3.4

3.5

Corporate communication will be provided to Shareholders in plain
language and in both English and Chinese versions to facilitate
Shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders have the right to choose
the language (either English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the
corporate communications (in hard copy or through electronic means).

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in
particular, their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate
timely and effective communications.

Corporate Website

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

A dedicated “Investor Relations” section is available on the Sihuan
Group website (www.sihuanpharm.com). Information on the Sihuan
Group website is updated on a regular basis.

Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange is
also posted on the Sihuan Group website immediately thereafter.
Such Information on website includes financial statements, results
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and
associated explanatory documents etc.

All presentation materials provided in conjunction with the Company’s
annual general meeting and results announcement each year will be
made available on the Sihuan Group website as soon as practicable after
their release.

All press releases issued by the Company or its subsidiaries will be made
available on the Sihuan Group website.
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Shareholders’ Meetings

3.10

3.14

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf
if they are unable to attend the meetings.

Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meetings shall be in
place to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The process of the Company’s general meetings will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served.

Board members, in particular, either the chairmen or deputy chairmen
of Board committees or their delegates, appropriate management
executives and external auditors will attend annual general meetings to
answer Shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend Shareholders’ activities
organised by the Company, where information about the Company,
including its latest strategic plan, products and services etc will be
communicated.

Investment Market Communications

3.15

Investor/analyst briefings and one-on-one meetings, roadshows (both
domestic and international), media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums etc will be available on a regular
basis in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community.

Sihuan Group’s Directors and employees who have contacts or
dialogues with investors, analysts, media or other interested outside
parties are required to comply with the disclosure obligations and
requirements.

Shareholder Privacy

4.1

The Company recognises the importance of Shareholders’ privacy and
will not disclose Shareholders’ information without their consent, unless
required by law to do so.

“Corporate Communication” refers to any document issued or to be
issued by Sihuan for the information or action of holders of any of its
securities, including, but not limited to, the directors’ report and annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report, the interim
report, a notice of meeting, a circular and a proxy form.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, there has not been any change in the Company’s
memorandum of association and Bye-Laws.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The following procedures are subject to the Bye-Laws, the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 (the “Act”) and applicable legislation and regulation. Shareholders who have
enquires about the following procedures or have enquires to put to the Board may
write to the joint company secretaries of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
at Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

A. Procedures for Shareholders to make proposals at
general meeting (other than a proposal of a person for
election as a Director)

(1) Pursuant to Bye-Laws 56 and 57, the Company holds an annual general
meeting (“AGM") every year, and may hold a general meeting known
as a special general meeting whenever necessary.

(2)  Pursuant to section 79 of the Act, Shareholder(s) holding (i) not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
Shareholders, can submit a written request for notice of any resolution
intended to be moved at an AGM or a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular general
meeting to be given to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
AGM or general meeting.

(3)  The written request/statements must be signed by the Shareholder(s)
concerned and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda with a
copy to its principal office in Hong Kong at Room 4309, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six (6) weeks before
the AGM in the case of a requisition for notice of a resolution and not
less than one (1) week before the general meeting in the case of any
other requisition.
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Pursuant to section 80 of the Act, if the written request is in order, the
Company Secretary will request the Board (i) to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM and give notice of the resolution; or (ii)
to circulate the statement for the general meeting, provided that the
Shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum of money reasonably
determined by the Board sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in serving the notice of the resolution and/or circulating the statement
submitted by the Shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the Shareholder(s) concerned
have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s
expenses for the said purposes, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will
not be included in the agenda for the AGM or the statement will not be
circulated for the general meeting.

B. RREBETEALIZEESNE B. Procedures for a Shareholder to propose a person for
FF election as a Director

(1) MEXEGEREFEEARBEERE E (1) If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
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meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of Director(s),
wishes to propose a person (other than the Shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a Director at that meeting, he/she must deposit a written
notice at the Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal office in Hong
Kong at Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of that proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a Director, his/her biographical details as required by
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned and accompanied by a notice signed by that person
indicating his/her willingness to be elected.
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The minimum length of the period, during which such written notice(s)
may be given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

If the notice is received less than fifteen (15) business days prior to
that general meeting, the Company will need to consider adjournment
of the general meeting in order to (i) assess the suitability of the
proposed candidate; and (ii) publish an announcement or circulate a
supplementary circular in relation to the proposal to the Shareholders
at least fourteen (14) clear days and not less than ten (10) business days
prior to the general meeting.

C. Procedures for Shareholders to convene special general
meeting (“SGM")

)

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s registered office
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11,
with a copy to its principal office in Hong Kong at Room 4309, Office

Bermuda and

Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the general meeting,
be signed by the requisitionists and may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more of those requisitionists.
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If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the requisitionists will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as
requested.

The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionists at a SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

i at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company, which cannot be amended
other than a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent error;
and

ii. at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the Act.

In accordance with the provision of section 74(3) of the Act, if the Board
does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3) months from
the said date.
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(7)  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to
the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum so repaid shall be
retained by the Company out of any sums due or to become due from
the Company by way of fees or other remuneration in respect of their
services to such directors as were in default.

D. Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are as
follows:

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
Room 4309, Office Tower,

Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3628 3911

Fax: (852) 3101 0362

Email: ir@sihuanpharm.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 18 March 2019 according
to the requirement of the Code.

1. The Company may declare dividends in any currency through the
Shareholders’ meeting, but the dividends declared shall not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. The Board may also declare dividends or
other distributions from time to time.

2. Any dividend declared by the Company shall be conducted in accordance with
the Bermuda Companies Act, the Bye-Laws and other applicable laws and
regulations, and shall not affect the normal operation of the Company and its
subsidiaries as the principle.

SEZ R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 87



ALl A~

TRERRS

H
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

w

ERE EXE-RWARERT @ ARAR
BERKBEUARERERE - BEURK A
NAEINMPBEE  BREens8 B BRE
MR - 2BRESHER - EBBRM
REE - RARMEL MU - EAZRM
M8 EAE AT 2K A
SHEANREFERREAKEFHNE
P B

EXeRBRNAREBE  LRERE
B B1E ~ 2R/ (S) BUB AR
EBRNEBHAEEN - KRBT FRE
FEEMRBEESE - REECAFESEN
BB - I A RFDRA AR ST REE MK
BE -

EERBEE
EFARRRANRTERNEEEEEN
REF - EEREEBEREASRITATOE
AR

(@ HEMBRAABNEEEARRENT
B XMEESREEE

(b) RAMERAQATNEENEIRFEZ
HER

(0 BIAMERARTNBRREREELR
REERETENERIBEN

(d HIE BIARETEARARRESK
EEMITATARDGEERSTEAME
3l(E) + &

(e) MEARRETAREMEBARAUNG
HRERREEERMSTORERB -

Subject to the second paragraph above, whether the Company declares
dividends and the declared amounts will depend on the Company’s financial
results, cash flow and financial status and conditions, operating and funding
needs, business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans, the amount of profit that can be
distributed under the applicable accounting standards and other factors that
the Board considers relevant to the Group.

The Board will continuously review this dividend policy and reserves the
absolute autonomy to update, amend, modify and/(or) cancel this dividend
policy at any time. The Company does not guarantee the payment of any
specific amount of dividends for any given period of time and does not have
any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes good corporate

governance practices and procedures. The Audit Committee is authorised by the

Board to perform the corporate governance duties as below:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors of the Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual to corporate governance matters (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees of the Company; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and other related rules
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the auditor of the Group provided audit services for the Group. The
service fees for audit and non-audit services in 2022 amounted to RMB4.2 million
and RMB36,000, respectively.

COMPLIANCE OF THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng Xianhui and Dr. Zhang
Jionglong (collectively, the “Covenantors” and each a “Covenantor”) had
provided an annual declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of the
deed of non-competition undertaking (as disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated 15 October 2010). Pursuant to the deed of non-competition, each of the
Covenantors has, among other things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken
with the Company that at any time during the relevant period, each of the
Covenantors shall, and shall procure that its associates (other than members of the
Group):

(i) not, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in, participate in, or attempt to
participate in or render any services to or provide any financial support to or
otherwise be involved in, whether on its own account or with each other or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person or company, any business which is
the same as, similar to or in competition with the business of the Group; and

(i) not take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may interfere with or
disrupt the business of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by the
Covenantors with the deed of non-competition undertaking.
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(iv)

The Board presents the Report of Directors together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Key Relationships

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Employees

Employees are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the Group
regards the personal development of its employees highly important. The
Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes
necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard. The Group has
also adopted share option scheme and share award scheme to recognise
and reward the contribution of the employees for the benefit of the Group's
operations and future development.

Suppliers

We have developed long-term relationships with a number of suppliers and
to ensure that they share our commitment to quality and ethics. We carefully
select our suppliers and require them to satisfy certain benchmarks.

Distributors

We sell our products to the end-user customers through distributors. We work
closely with the distributors to ensure that we share the view for enhance our
brand value and customer services.

Hospitals

We are committed to offer quality products to hospitals. We also stay
connected and maintain a close relationship with the hospitals through
various channels such as visits, marketing materials and meetings.
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A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on
pages 21 to 24 of this annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 25. Also, the financial risk management analysis of the Group
can be found in Note 42 to the Financial Statements. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the Year using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Group Financial Summary on page 20 of this annual report. In addition,
discussions on the Group's risk management, internal control, ESG, relationships
with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group are contained in the Chairman’s Statement,
the Corporate Governance Report and this Report of Directors on pages 21 to 24,
pages 63 to 89 and pages 90 to 117, respectively, and in the Group's corporate
website.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company has always abided by the environmental-friendly sustainable
development commitment in the process of production and operation, strictly
complied with the environmental protection laws and regulations in the places
where it operates, established and improved the environmental management system
and monitoring system, promoted an efficient and green pattern for production
and operation, committed to building a resource-saving and environment-friendly
enterprise. For the Year, the Group focused on promoting its subordinated
production units to conduct various lean production transformation projects, so as
to promote an energy-saving and profit-increasing production pattern; proactively
responded to national policies to strengthen the management of hazardous wastes;
at the same time, further standardized the environmental information management,
laying an information foundation for setting the corporate goals of energy
conservation and emission reduction.

The Group is committed to creating a green and comfortable office environment,
carries out a variety of green publicity and energy consumption management
methods, encourages all employees to participate in self-inspection to constantly
strengthen employees’ awareness of environmental protection and energy saving.
Meanwhile, the Group further regulates garbage classification management to make
a beautiful environment.

The Group will review its environmental protection work from time to time and
continue to explore the direction of improvement and optimization of environmental
management in its business operations in order to fulfill its commitments to realize
corporate economic and environmental sustainability.
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In order to further improve our information disclosure level in environment,
society and governance and respond to our stakeholders’ concerns, the Group
will continuously disclose the independent Environmental, Social and Governance
Report. For details of the Group’s environmental protection work and performance,
please refer to the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to be published in due course.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, income and segment information for the Year
is set out in note 4 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The Group's results for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 125 to 126 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the declaration and payment of a final cash dividend of
RMB3.2 cents per share (equivalent to HK3.7 cents per share) for the year ended 31
December 2022 in thanking Shareholders’ support, subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the Group's results and assets and liabilities for the last five financial
years is set out on page 20 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 14 to the Financial Statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint venture as at
31 December 2022 are set out in notes 20, 21 and 39 to the Financial Statements,
respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year together
with the reasons for such movements are set out in note 27 to the Financial
Statements.

SHARES AND RESERVES

Details of movements in the shares and reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and also in notes 27 and 29 to the Financial Statements. As at the end of the
reporting period, the reserves available for distribution to Shareholders amounted to
RMB1,306,486,000 (2021: RMB4,546,223,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND REMAINING LIFE

The Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting (the “Share Option Scheme”) held on 24 October 2017
(the “Share Option Scheme Adoption Date"”), which will be valid for ten (10)
years from the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date. As of the date of this annual
report, it has a remaining life of approximately 4 years 7 months.

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate Eligible Persons (as set out
in paragraph (b) below) (i) to optimise their future contributions to the Group; (ii)
to reward them for their past contributions; and (iii) to attract, retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with Eligible Persons who are significant to and/
or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth and
success of the Group.

(a) Eligible persons

Our Board may, at its sole discretion, invite any director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group, any executive director of, manager of, or other employee holding
an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in, any member of
the Group, any proposed Employee, any full-time or part-time Employee,
or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-time for
any member of the Group, a consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member of the Group,
a person or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of the Group, or an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules)
of any of the foregoing persons (together, “Eligible Persons” and each an
“Eligible Person”).
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(b) Determination of eligibility

(i) The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant to any Eligible
Person (a “Grantee”) an option to subscribe for the Company’s shares
(the “Shares”) under the Share Option Scheme.

(i) The basis of eligibility of any Eligible Person to the grant of any option
shall be determined by our Directors from time to time on the basis
of their contributions to the development, growth and success of the
Group.

(iii)  For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any option by our Company for
the subscription of Shares to any person who falls within the definition
of Eligible Persons shall not, by itself, unless our Directors otherwise
determine, be construed as a grant of options under the Share Option
Scheme.

(iv)  An Eligible Person or a Grantee shall provide the Board such information
and supporting evidence as the Board may in its absolute discretion
request from time to time (including before the offer of a grant of
option, at the time of acceptance of a grant of option and at the time of
exercise of an option) for the purpose of assessing and/or determining
his eligibility or continuing eligibility as an Eligible Person and/or a
Grantee or that of his close associates or for purposes in connection
with the terms of an option (and the exercise thereof) or the Share
Option Scheme and the administration thereof.

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme (and under any other
post- IPO share option scheme of our Company) shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the Share Option Scheme Adoption Date
(“Scheme Mandate Limit"), provided that the Company may at any time
as the Board may think fit seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit, except that the maximum number of Shares
to be issued upon exercise of all options which may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme of
our Company) shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
approval by the Shareholders in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.

Despite the above-mentioned, the maximum number of Shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme
of our Company) shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to
time.
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The total number of Shares that may fall to be allotted and issued under the
Share Option Scheme after the resolution regarding the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme was passed at the special general meeting on 24 October
2017 would be 947,108,220 Shares, representing approximately 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue as at the Share Option Scheme Adoption
Date. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of securities
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 83,876,000 Shares and
the percentage of the issued shares that it represents is approximately 0.90%.
During the Year, no option or award was granted under any scheme of the
Company. Therefore, the number of shares that may be issued in respect of
options and awards granted under all schemes of the Company during the
Year divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue for the Year
is not applicable to the Company.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to any one Eligible Person (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. Where any further grant of options to
such an Eligible Person would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and which may be granted to such
Eligible Person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant would
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at such time, such further grant shall be
separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible
Person and his associates or close associates (as the case may be) abstaining
from voting.

Grant of options

On and subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
shall be entitled at any time within a period of ten (10) years commencing on the
Share Option Scheme Adoption Date to offer the grant of any option to any Eligible
Person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select, and on acceptance of the
offer, grant such part of the option as accepted to the Eligible Person.

Subject to the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any condition, restriction
or limitation in relation thereto in addition to those set forth in the Share Option
Scheme as the Board may think fit (to be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option), including but without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing continuing eligibility criteria, conditions, restrictions or limitations relating
to the achievement of performance, operating or financial targets by our Company
and/or the Grantee, the satisfactory performance or maintenance by the Grantee of
certain conditions or obligations or the time or period when the right to exercise the
option in respect of all or some of the Shares to which the option relates shall vest,
provided that the period within which the Shares that the option relates shall vest on
a date not more than ten (10) years from the date of the grant of the option.
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The rules of the Share Option Scheme provide that the Board may specify the
Eligible Persons to whom options shall be granted, the number of Shares subject to
each option and the date on which the options shall be granted. The options may
be exercised at any time during the option period subject to certain conditions,
restrictions or limitations imposed pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme.
The basis for determining the subscription price is also specified precisely in the
rules of the Share Option Scheme. There is no performance target specified in the
Share Option Scheme. The Directors consider that allowing the Board discretion
to fix, among other things, the minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised, performance targets and the subscription price, upon the
grant of options will better serve the purpose of the Share Option Scheme as this
will allow the Board to grant options that cater to the specific circumstances of the
Grantee, taking into consideration the Grantee's seniority, experience, past work
performance, field of expertise, etc., and thereby providing appropriate motivation
and incentive to the Grantee.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted when
the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the Grantee
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company within the period
specified in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option. Once such
acceptance is made, the option shall be deemed to have been granted and to have
taken effect from the offer date.

An option shall be exercised in whole or in part by the Grantee according to the
procedures for the exercise of options established by the Company from time to
time. Every exercise of an option must be accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise of such
option.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be such price as
our Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of the grant of the
relevant option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer of the grant of
the option) but the subscription price shall not be less than whichever is the highest
of:

(i) the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date; and

(iii)  the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date.

The subscription price shall also be subject to adjustment in accordance with
reorganization of capital restructure.
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The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that were still

outstanding as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

L3 RZB=zF rEE REE REE REE  RZBoZE
RRAREZSEN  REAE (Br) RS (H2) -B-H 554 Bfif BE# B4% t=A=t-B
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
Name or Category Price 1 January during during during during 31 December
of Grantees Date of Grant (HKS) Exercise Period (Note 2) 2022 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2022
(@) EZ
(a) Directors
RERLE 3 0972 ZE-%f 4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000
NAZ17H NAZ+7EZ
o BT
/\ﬂ ZtEA
Ms. Chen Yanling 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
ZRBLt 3 0972 —%-%% 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
NAZ17H NAZ+7BZ
“2=%F
NA=tRA
Ms. Miao Guili 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
—Z--EnA-H 2200 —E--Enf-AZE 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
—Z=-f\f=1-H
1 September 2021 1 September 2021 to
31 August 2031
FRERE 3 0972 —%-%% 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
(W=%==% NAZ17A NAZ+7EZ
MA-H&E) “B-TE
NA=t3A
Mr. Patrick Sun 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
(resigned on 1 April 25 August 2030
2023)
BEyLE 3 0972 —Z-%f 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
NAZ17A NAZ+REZ
~E=34
/\ﬂ ZtEA
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
KEL 3 0972 —%-%% 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
NAZ17H NAZ+RBZ
I 3
NA=tRA
Dr. Zhu Xun 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030

)
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T8 R=B=Z% AEE AEE rEE AEE  RIB-ZF
REAREREN  BHEH (Br) RS (RE2) -B-H (254 Bk Bt BX% t=A=t-H
Exercise As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at
Name or Category Price 1 January during during during during 31 December
of Grantees Date of Grant (HKS)  Exercise Period (Note 2) 2022 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2022
BERAE “T-%F 0972 —Z-%F 6,000,000 = = = 6,000,000 -
(RZB=—%+tH NAZtrH NAZt7AZ
THARTE) “F-%fF
NA=t+#A
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
(resigned on 17 25 August 2030
October 2022)
(b) fE& “E-%F 0972 =—Z=%f% 70,276,000 - - - 8,900,000 61,376,000
NAZT7E NAZt/RZE
“E-ZF
NA=t+#A
(b) Employees 26 August 2020 26 August 2020 to
25 August 2030
ZTZ-F 220 =Z3=-% 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500,000
hA-A NA-RZE
—%=-F%
NA=t+-H
1 September 2021 1 September 2021 to
31 August 2031
@t 98,776,000 = = = 14,900,000 83,876,000
Total:
B3 Note:

(1) EBE-FT-_TFNA-F+AAR=ZT=—Fh (1)
A—H(ERERL B )i ERKTES B

£1.050# 7T &%2.310#7T °

(2) BRESZETRLMNBRESSFERE TS )
BIEE(WME)IRREHBHE=FAREHE
RAEEEHHERE - FHA3333% (=02
—) c FERETEREXREHRETEES
Z(nAE)% - BRET S =F R EmATET

{5 e

08 | Mz EEyEiR & E AR A A SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

respectively.

The closing prices per Share immediately before 26 August 2020 and 1 September
2021 (the dates on which the options were granted) were HK$1.050 and HK$2.310

Options granted under the Share Option Scheme would be subject to certain vesting
conditions (if any) and vested in tranches of 33.33% (one-third) each on each anniversary
date following the date of grant for three years. Subject to the satisfaction of certain
performance appraisal conditions and certain performance targets (if any), options could
be exercised in three-year installments and until the expiry of options.
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2022 SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND REMAINING LIFE

The 2022 Share Award Scheme (the “2022 Share Award Scheme”) was adopted
by the Board at a Board meeting held on 25 October 2022 (the “2022 Share Award
Scheme Adoption Date”), which will be valid for ten (10) years from the 2022
Share Award Scheme Adoption Date. As of the date of this annual report, it has a
remaining life of approximately 9 years 7 months.

Purpose of the 2022 Share Award Scheme

The 2022 Share Award Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognize and acknowledge the contributions which the grantees have made or may
make to the Group. The 2022 Share Award Scheme will provide the grantees with
the opportunity to own a personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving
the following objectives: (i) motivating the grantees; and/or (ii) attracting and
retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going relationship with the grantees whose
contributions are, will be or are likely to be beneficial to the long-term growth of the
Group.

Eligible Participants

Eligible participants who may participate in the 2022 Share Award Scheme include
Directors or candidate Directors (including independent non-executive Directors),
senior and mid-level management, professional technicians, personnel to be
introduced by the Group and other eligible participants.

Scheme Limit

In any event, the aggregate number of shares under the 2022 Share Award Scheme
available to be granted to the grantees during the valid period shall not exceed
3% of the issued share capital of the Company, being around 250 million Shares
(as changed from time to time) throughout the valid period; and the number of
shares which may be awarded to an individual grantee under the 2022 Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company (as changed
from time to time) in any 12-month period. Any Shares covered by an award (or
portion of an award) which is forfeited, not vested, canceled or expires (whether
voluntarily or involuntarily) shall remain with the trustee and become available for
granting new awards under the 2022 Share Award Scheme.
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Source of the Shares

The Company, during the valid period of the 2022 Share Award Scheme, will at all
times reserve or instruct in writing the trustee to purchase existing Shares on Stock
Exchange to keep available such number of Shares as shall be sufficient to satisfy the
requirements of the 2022 Share Award Scheme. The Company will not issue new
Shares to satisfy the awards under the 2022 Share Award Scheme.

Grant of Awards

The Board shall periodically approve each grant plan which shall include (1) the
range or the maximum number of the Shares to be granted; (2) the scope of the
proposed grantees; (3) the price range or the minimum price of the purchase price;
and (4) the duration of the grant plan for each batch of the proposed grant under
the 2022 Share Award Scheme from time to time during the valid period (the “Grant
Plan”) and such Grant Plan shall be proposed by the administrator.

With prior approval of the Board, the administrator may choose any eligible
participant as the grantee from time to time, such eligible participants shall be
granted awards within the valid period if relevant terms and conditions are met.
When determining the grantees, the administrator shall consider, among other
things, the grantees’ current and expected contributions to the Company, the
financial situation of the Company, and the objectives and future development of
the whole business of the Group.

Any grant of an award to any Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
any member of the Group, or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules),
shall be subject to the prior approval of the independent non-executive Directors and
shall otherwise be subject to compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules,
unless exempted from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.95 of the Listing Rules if the award
forms part of the relevant Director’s remuneration under his/her service contract.

Conditions and Vesting of Awards

The term of each award shall be the term stated in the award agreement. During
the valid period, the administrator may, subject to all applicable laws, determine the
provisions, terms, vesting standards and conditions of each award including, but not
limited to, the vesting schedule, the number of shares upon vesting of the award,
and satisfaction of any target setting. Each award shall be subject to the terms of
an award agreement approved by the administrator and the administrator shall have
the right to adjust the vesting schedule of the awards granted to the grantees and
waive any vesting conditions subject to applicable laws.

The vesting of the awards granted under the 2022 Share Award Scheme is subject
to the continuous service, the fulfillment of the vesting conditions of the relevant
grantees and any other applicable conditions stated in the award agreement. The
awards shall be vested in phases, which shall be determined by the administrator and
stated in the award agreement.
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The unvested awards in each vesting period shall lapse automatically and be
forfeited for no consideration upon cancellation, except as otherwise determined by
the administrator in its sole discretion.

Shares granted upon settlement of an award (or any portion thereof) shall be
transferred to the grantees in the name of the Trust.

Unless otherwise agreed by the administrator, the specific vesting arrangements are
as follows: the awards, subject to the Two Target Adjustments (as defined below)
and further reductions and restrictions as stipulated in the rule of the 2022 Share
Award Scheme and the award agreement, shall vest in six (6) years from the grant
date (the grantee is available to vest and settle the Shares by the trustee subject to
the satisfaction of the terms and conditions on each anniversary date from the grant
date or any date determined by the administrator, a “Vesting Date"”; each of the
three one-year period, a “Vesting Period”), provided that the grantee (1) remains
an employee in the respective Vesting Period ending on the corresponding Vesting
Date, (2) has not provided notice of his or her intention to resign or be subject to
any termination process on or before such date, and (3) otherwise complies with this
2022 Share Award Scheme and the award agreement. In accordance with this term,
the following vesting schedule applies to each award granted hereunder: the first
33.33% (one-third) of the awards shall vest on the first Vesting Date; and the second
33.33% (one-third) of the awards shall vest on the second Vesting Date, and the last
33.33% (one-third) of the awards shall vest on the third Vesting Date.

The amount of the awards vested may be further reduced by a certain percentage
as specified in the award agreement if the following targets are not met: (1) the
performance target of the Company, or (2) the performance target of the grantee
(collectively, the “Two Targets”; such reduction, the “Two Target Adjustment”).
The Two Targets shall be further elaborated in the award agreement.

Subject to the fulfillment of all the vesting conditions of the vesting of the awards,
the administrator may determine at its sole discretion to either: direct and procure
the trustee to transfer the number of Shares underlying the vested awards to the
grantee or its wholly owned entity or in the event of the grantee’s death, to the legal
personal representative(s) of the grantee; or direct and procure the trustee to sell
the number of Shares underlying the vested awards, by on-market transactions and
pay the grantee the actual selling price in cash arising from such sale after the full
payment of the purchase price and tax within a reasonable time period.

Award Purchase Price

Subject to any applicable laws, the purchase price or the consideration for the
purchase of an award (if any), and the method of payment, shall be determined by
the administrator with the previous approvals of the Board.

Since the 2022 Share Award Scheme Adoption Date, no awards had been granted,

exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the 2022 Share Award Scheme and there are no
outstanding awards.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the laws of
Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company'’s listed securities (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2022, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers were 4.6% and 14.6% respectively of the Group’s sales for the
Year.

In 2022, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers were 10.6% and 26.3% respectively of the Group's purchases
for the Year.

Neither the Directors or chief executive or any of their close associates or any
Shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In October 2010, the Company allotted 1,437,500,000 ordinary Shares at a price
of HK$4.60 through international placing and public offer. Save as disclosed
below, the net proceeds raised from such international placing and public offer,
being approximately HK$6,365.7 million (equivalent to approximately RMB5,407.6
million), are used in accordance with the purposes disclosed in the prospectus of the
Company dated 15 October 2010.

As at 31 December 2022, proceeds from the international placing and public offer of
the Company have been fully utilized.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Che Fengsheng (Chairman)
Dr. Guo Weicheng (Deputy Chairman and CEO)
Dr. Zhang Jionglong
Ms. Chen Yanling
Ms. Miao Guili (Deputy CEO and CFO)
(appointed on 17 October 2022)
Mr. Choi Yiau Chong (resigned on 17 October 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Dr. Zhu Xun

Mr. Wang Guan (appointed on 1 April 2023)
Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong
and Ms. Chen Yanling shall retire by rotation, and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2023 AGM.

Ms. Miao Guili was appointed by the Board as an executive Director on 17 October
2022 and Mr. Wang Guan was appointed by the Board as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 April 2023. In accordance with Bye-Law 83(2) of the Bye-
Laws, Ms. Miao and Mr. Wang shall hold office until the annual general meeting,
and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2023
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng being the executive Directors,
renewed their service contracts with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 October 2022, subject to termination before expiry by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other. Each of
Dr. Che and Dr. Guo currently receives an annual salary of RMB7,000,000 and
RMB3,000,000 respectively as an executive (such annual salary is subject to annual
review by the Board and the Remuneration Committee) and a discretionary bonus as
may be decided by the Board and the Remuneration Committee at their discretion,
having regard to the performance of the relevant executive Director.

Ms. Chen Yanling has entered into service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 20 April 2021, subject to termination before expiry
by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other.
Ms. Chen currently receives an annual salary of HK$1,440,000 as an executive
(such annual salary is subject to annual review by the Board and the Remuneration
Committee) and a discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board and the
Remuneration Committee at their discretion, having regard to her performance.

SEZ R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 103



HESHES
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

BHBTLTEEHARNRRIIREEL BT
——F+At+tARFAEH=F AR EMA
H—FhRE—ABELEL=—@AEEAENT
AR IE - B L HRIKWEBIERAEBABZEH
2,760,000 T (FHEHEETSRTMER S
BFERHRESSRFHEE ST RERRE
AIRERIBEE E BB AT -

RAEBELEERARNRRIRBEALN =%
AT RBARH=F  AIRERA
H—As—HBEHEL=EAZEEBMNT
AL - REARKRBMIERERABZFH
700,000 T (FHAMESENFNERESE
FRA)REFERFHES ST REARREA
BERIBEE MBS IEAL -

BRTESANESSHEB ERAE TR
e TAREMEMNNETMRBERER
B AR AEEAZA -

BUIERTESSENREERFAB L HAIHE
ARARERENZEEH BT ==
NANBE-_ZE-_=F_A_-_+HEAH—
FoFTEAERARBNVYEZER BT
“=FMNA—HABAR—F  BEXEERSE
ABtTEE_T-_—F+_A=+—HLEE
MEEWBREH A A412,000/% 7T &% 412,000
JL o ER AR RESETF300,0008THES
e o

BRAFMABEEIN  E_Z_=FRRBEF

SLMEENEFRRNR AW EFTLEMA
RERAIR—F AL LT BAEHRECEER
BRRIN 2 IRIEEKI ©

EEEHN

MAFE  ARATEREEEBREMNER
B2 ERSITRIIERF FAEMAL -

/|

EERBFEER 5 B8
REf iR

RAFE  BEEEREESEZIBMBEAESR
SRETRAD RSN EREEBRBEFHE
iR pem (R EE) 2 X Bh A%
i BE 0 EFERIAFERAEMER - AR
A EF I EHAREEGENBE RN N
EFEAHENERNETEERHEEREFERXR
BEHNR S RHREHL -

3
i
o
i
B
=
i
5]

104

Ms. Miao Guili has entered into service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 17 October 2022, subject to termination before
expiry by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other. Ms. Miao currently receives an annual salary of HK$2,760,000 as an executive
(such annual salary is subject to annual review by the Board and the Remuneration
Committee) and a discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board and the
Remuneration Committee at their discretion, having regard to her performance.

Dr. Zhang Jionglong has entered into service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 20 April 2021, subject to termination before
expiry by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other. Dr. Zhang currently receives an annual salary of HK$700,000 as an executive
(such annual salary is subject to annual review by the Board and the Remuneration
Committee) and a discretionary bonus as may be decided by the Board and the
Remuneration Committee at their discretion, having regard to his performance.

Each of the executive Directors shall abstain from voting, and not be counted in the
quorum, in respect of any resolution of the Board approving the determination of
the salary, bonus and other benefits payable to him/her.

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu Xun, being the independent non-executive
Directors, renewed their respective letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of one year, commencing from 4 September 2022 and 20 February
2023 respectively. Mr. Wang Guan entered into his appointment letter with the
Company for a term of one year, commencing from 1 April 2023. The Director’s
fee for the year end 31 December 2022 for Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Dr. Zhu
Xun are HK$412,000 and HK$412,000 respectively. Mr. Wang Guan is entitled to a
Director’s fee of HK$300,000 per annum.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors standing for re-election
at the 2023 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than the
statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS,
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

During the Year, no Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) are considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group. Furthermore,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in Note 39 to the Financial Statements. None of these
transactions constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed below, the Group has not conducted any other connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction (as defined under the Listing Rules)
which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

1. Disposal of Equity Interests in Beijing Lianben Pharm-
chemicals Tech. Co., Ltd. (“Lianben Chemical”) and
Beijing Lianben Technology Development Co.,

Ltd. (“Lianben Technology”) (collectively, “Target
Companies”) (the "Equity Transfer 1)

Reference is made to the 2020 annual report of the Company dated 30
March 2021 in relation to, among other things, the acquisition of 100%
equity interests in the Target Companies by the Group with a consideration
of RMB46.50 million by entering into equity transfer agreements with Mr. Li
Gongben (“Mr. Li”) on 31 January 2020.

Due to the overall changes in the pharmaceutical market environment, the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the active pharmaceutical ingredient
industry and the impact of the increasing logistic costs to raw material exports,
the cost of the raw material business has increased and the profits of the
Target Companies have showed a downward trend in recent years, falling
short of the Company’s performance expectations, and the Company expects
that the downward trend may continue. Having considered and reviewed
the financial data and operating conditions of the Target Companies, the
Directors are of the view that the Disposal will facilitate the Company to focus
its management on business segments with higher growth and improve the
operational efficiency of the Group.

On 3 October 2022, the Company and Mr. Li and Ms. Xia Zhihua (“Ms.
Xia”) unanimously agreed that Jilin Shengtong Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin
Shengtong”) shall enter into the equity transfer agreements with Mr. Li, as
well as with Mr. Li and Ms. Xia, respectively, and resell 100% equity interests
in the Target Companies back to Mr. Li, as well as Mr. Li and Ms. Xia, on
similar terms and at the equivalent price as those set out in the equity transfer
agreement entered into between Jilin Shengtong and Mr. Li on 31 January
2020, at a consideration of approximately RMB37.10 million and RMB9.40
million, respectively, amounting to a total of RMB46.50 million.
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As at the date of the Equity Transfer 1, Mr. Li is a director of Jilin Shengtong,
and Jilin Shengtong is a subsidiary of the Company that is not an “insignificant
subsidiary” (as defined in Rule 14A.09 of the Listing Rules) of the Company.
Mr. Li is therefore a connected person of the Company. Ms. Xia is the spouse
of Mr. Li, and is therefore an associate of Mr. Li and a connected person
of the Company. The transactions under the equity transfer agreements
constitute connected transactions of the Company according to Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, as
the equity transfer agreements were entered into between a subsidiary of
the Company and the same and connected person(s), the disposal shall be
aggregated. As a number of applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the
Listing Rules) in respect of the Equity Transfer 1 exceed 5% but are less than
25% on a combined basis, the Equity Transfer 1 constitutes a discloseable and
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to
Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules, the Equity Transfer 1 shall be subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempted from the circular,
independent financial advice and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, as (1) Mr. Li and Ms.
Xia are connected persons at the subsidiary level; (2) the Board has approved
the Equity Transfer 1; and (3) the independent non-executive Directors have
confirmed that the terms of the Equity Transfer 1 are fair and reasonable and
the Equity Transfer 1 is on normal commercial terms or better and is in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to announcement of the
Company dated 3 October 2022.

Disposal of Equity Interests in Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co.,
Ltd. (“Jilin Jiahui"”)

On 30 December 2022, the Company and Lianben Technology ultimately
agreed that Jilin Shengtong would enter into the equity transfer agreement
with Beijing Lianben Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“Lianben
Technology”) and transfer 75% equity interests in Jilin Jiahui to Lianben
Technology at a consideration of approximately RMB18.75 million (the
"Equity Transfer 2"). Meanwhile, Lianben Technology agreed to repay Jilin
Jiahui’s borrowing of approximately RMB45.3 million in total due to Jilin
Shengtong in installment on behalf of Jilin Jiahui, and committed that Jilin
Jiahui would procure all Jilin Shengtong's surplus inventories at book value
and pay for the goods within a term of 45 days.

The Directors are of the view that the Equity Transfer 2 will facilitate the
Company to focus its management on the medical aesthetics and innovative
drug business segments with higher growth, accelerate the promotion of the
Group’s two-wheel drive strategy of medical aesthetics and biopharmaceutical
businesses, and improve the operational efficiency of the Group.
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Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 3 October
2022 in relation to, among other things, the disposal of equity interests in two
subsidiaries by the Company (the “Previous Equity Transfer”). Pursuant to
Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, as the Previous Equity Transfer and the Equity
Transfer 2 (the “Equity Transfers”) were entered into between a subsidiary
of the Company and the same person, such disposals shall be aggregated.
As the highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined in the Listing Rules)
in respect of the Equity Transfers exceeds 5% but is less than 25% on an
aggregated basis, the Equity Transfers constitute discloseable transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules. As at the date of Equity Transfer 2, Mr.
Li is the controlling shareholder of Lianben Technology. Since Mr. Li was a
director of Jilin Shengtong within the past twelve months, and Jilin Shengtong
is a subsidiary of the Company that is not an “insignificant subsidiary”
(as defined in Rule 14A.09 of the Listing Rules) of the Company, Lianben
Technology is therefore a connected person of the Company. The transaction
under the equity transfer agreement constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company according to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to
Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules, the Equity Transfer 2 shall be subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements, but is exempted from the
circular, independent financial advice and the independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, as (1) Lianben
Technology is a connected person at the subsidiary level; (2) the Board has
approved the Equity Transfer 2; and (3) the independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the terms of the Equity Transfer 2 are fair and
reasonable and the Equity Transfer 2 is on normal commercial terms or better
and is in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to announcement of the
Company dated 3 January 2023.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries has been entered into between the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries nor the Company’s controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:

EERRAOSEERONER Directors’ interests in Shares or underlying Shares
EEpE BENE 5% R A8 RESATIE
Approximate
Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding
B REE 5,133,125,7048 (47 8) 55.02% (4 &)
Dr. Che Fengsheng 3,379,917,225/ (41 &) 5,023,666/% (4 &) 0.05% (%% )
Interest in controlled corporations 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)
3,379,917,225 Shares (L) 5,023,666 Shares (S) 0.05% (S)
—BITB AL (FizET)

1,745,084,8138% (7 &)
A concert party to an agreement (Note 1)
1,745,084,813 Shares (L)

H e (i sE2)
8,123,666M (17 8)
5,023,666/% (4 &)
Other interest (Note 2)
8,123,666 Shares (L)
5,023,666 Shares (S)
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REBNE 2L
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

JR43 48 2

Total Number of Shares

S
Dr. Guo Weicheng

RAER
Dr. Zhang Jionglong

BRI Lt
Ms. Chen Yanling

BB T
Ms. Miao Guili

EFEEE(N-_Z-=FMA—HET)
Mr. Patrick Sun (resigned on 1 April 2023)

wEH
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

REL
Dr. Zhu Xun

EnBEAA
11,350,000/ (¥ &)
Beneficial owner
11,350,000 Shares (L)

R EEER
1,100,884,399f% (41 &)

Interest in a controlled corporation
1,100,884,399 Shares (L)

—HITA L (HEE3)
4,020,891,305/& ({7 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 3)
4,020,891,305 Shares (L)

XA
255,582,886/ (17 &)

Interest in a controlled corporation
255,582,886 Shares (L)

—HITBA L (H5T4)
4,877,542,818R% (47 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 4)
4,877,542,818 Shares (L)

EnEA APHEES)
4,000,0000% (172 )
Beneficial owner (Note 5)
4,000,000 Shares (L)

EniEs AES)
9,000,0008% (47 &)
Beneficial owner (Note 5)
9,000,000 Shares (L)

EnlEA APHEES)
3,000,000/ (5F &)
Beneficial owner (Note 5)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

EmfEAa APHRES)
3,000,0000% (5 &)
Beneficial owner (Note 5)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

EmEA APHEES)
3,000,0008% (47 &)
Beneficial owner (Note 5)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

55.02% (47 &)
55.02% (L)

5,133,125,704f% (15 &)
5,133,125,704 Shares (L)

55.02% (41 &)
55.02% (L)

5,133,125,7040% (47 2")
5,133,125,704 Shares (L)

0.04% (¥ &)
0.04% (L)

4,000,000/ (478")
4,000,000 Shares (L)

0.10% (47 &)
0.10% (L)

9,000,000/ (¥ &)
9,000,000 Shares (L)

0.03%(F&)
0.03% (L)

3,000,000f% (47 &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

0.03% (47 &)
0.03% (L)

3,000,000/ (¥ &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)

0.03%(F&)
0.03% (L)

3,000,000/% (47 &)
3,000,000 Shares (L)
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RIBEESH KB GOIE317%3181& - EFFA
& AE AR R 9 Bl BB 2B 4 B A - Successmax
Global Holdings Limited * Victory Faith International
Limited %% Mingyao Capital Limited § & &
11,350,000 f% - 1,100,884,399 % - 377,267,528
P& %2255,582,886% A% 17 7 #E 5 faw

R B8 FH 88 4 A Sihuan Management (PTC)
Limited B AN EENMERFAZ— i
W48 A7 Sihuan Management (PTC) Limited#
B 98,123,666 A 15 (47 & ) H K 5,023,6660%
A&t G B ) R A s o

REBEBSFRPEROIE317R31815 - FBHM
BAEWR ARSI BEBFELE - Network
Victory Limited - Proper Process International
Limited - Victory Faith International Limited
% Mingyao Capital Limited # & 88,123,666
f& - 497,448,000 g - 2,882,469,225 fx
377,267,5280% % 255,582,886 X ik 15 5 #

°

Bl

RIBEES R EEGOIE317 231815 - RME
BERERNORIBESAEE AN E
A4~ Network Victory Limited * Proper Process
International Limited - Victory Faith International
Limited & Successmax Global Holdings Limited 3%
5 #98,123,666 8% * 11,350,000 % - 497,448,000
f% - 2,882,469,225 % - 377,267,528 Kk K&
1,100,884, 399R% A% 7 - 5 2

RZZZZTFNAZ+H  RER=Z—+
F+AZ+HBRMANANARIERESE - &
IS TR BE R B8 H 4,000,000 B 19
BIE 7 + % K AR B & 3,000,000 A% Ak
7 FEFELEREBEREREE3,000,0008
A& (¢ e o A E I B AR B B 3,000,000
% A% 19 e oK 3R 13 4 5% B AR A B B 3,000,000
R H - R=ZT=Z—FNLA—8 BER=
T—tF+ A TMBERBOAD B ERIET
2 BREZTREEBERERE6,000,000/8K

Betn o

Notes:

(1

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be interested
in the 11,350,000 Shares, 1,100,884,399 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and 255,582,886
Shares held by Dr. Guo Weicheng, Successmax Global Holdings Limited, Victory Faith
International Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Since Dr. Che Fengsheng is one of the settlors of the trust for which Sihuan Management
(PTC) Limited is a trustee, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be interested in the long
position of 8,123,666 Shares and the short position of 5,023,666 Shares held by Sihuan
Management (PTC) Limited.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Guo Weicheng is deemed to be interested in
the 8,123,666 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares
and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper
Process International Limited, Victory Faith International Limited and Mingyao Capital
Limited, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is deemed to be interested
in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares,
377,267,528 Shares and 1,100,884,399 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International Limited, Victory Faith
International Limited and Successmax Global Holdings Limited, respectively.

On 26 August 2020, Ms. Chen Yanling was granted to purchase 4,000,000 Shares; Ms.
Miao Guili was granted to purchase 3,000,000 Shares; Mr. Patrick Sun was granted to
purchase 3,000,000 Shares; Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong was granted to purchase 3,000,000
Shares and Dr. Zhu Xun was granted to purchase 3,000,000 Shares pursuant to the
Company s Share Option Scheme adopted on 24 October 2017. On 1 September 2021,
Ms. Miao Guili was granted to purchase 6,000,000 Shares pursuant to the Company’s
Share Option Scheme adopted on 24 October 2017.

The letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”
denotes the Director’s short position in such Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executive and their associates
had any interests or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he/she/it was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31
December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the Year, the Company did not grant any rights to any Directors, chief
executive or their respective spouse or children under 18 to acquire beneficial
interests by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company,
and none of the above persons have exercised the said rights during the Year.
The Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries were not a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's charitable donations during the
year amounted to RMB535,000 (2021: RMB22,127,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Employee Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, the Company did
not enter into any equity-linked agreement during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, every Director or other officers of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their respective offices
or trusts, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of the said persons.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Directors
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
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RREE BB BENEE 56

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the following Shareholders, other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, had interests of 5% or
more (including short positions) in the issued share capital, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company:

AP B REBAB DL
Approximate
Percentage of

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity Total Number of Shares Shareholding

HEBRE RimEERR

5,133,125,704/% (47 2") 55.02% (47 &)

Mr. Meng Xianhui 377,267,528 (57 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)
Interest in a controlled corporation
377,267,528 Shares (L)

—RITBA L (M)
4,755,858,176/ (11 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 1)
4,755,858,176 Shares (L)

Proper Process International Limited ~— Bz % & A

5,133,125,704/% (47 8") 55.02% (47 &)

2,882,469,2250% (11 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)

Beneficial owner

2,882,469,225 Shares (L)

—RTBA L (HEE2)
2,250,656,4795% (17 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 2)
2,250,656,479 Shares (L)

Network Victory Limited EnEBA

5,133,125,7040% (47 2") 55.02% (47 &)

497,448,000/ (47 &) 5,133,125,704 Shares (L) 55.02% (L)

Beneficial owner

497,448,000 Shares (L)

—BITBA T (HEE3)
4,635,677,704fR (1T &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 3)
4,635,677,704 Shares (L)
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AP BREBNEAL
Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding

Successmax Global Holdings Limited —~ Z##EHB A

,100,884,399% (17 8)
Beneficial owner
1,100,884,399 Shares (L)

— BT AL (M5E4)
4,032,241,305R ({7 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 4)
4,032,241,305 Shares (L)

Victory Faith International Limited ERBEEA

377,267,528 (%F &)
Beneficial owner
377,267,528 Shares (L)

—STBAL (KIES)

4,755,858,176/k ({1%)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 5)
4,755,858,176 Shares (L)

Mingyao Capital Limited EnlEA

Bt
(1)

255,582,886 (472 )
Beneficial owner
255,582,886 Shares (L)

—ETE AL (F5E6)
4,877,542,818/R ({7 &)

A concert party to an agreement (Note 6)
4,877,542,818 Shares (L)

5,133,125,7040% (47 8)
5,133,125,704 Shares (L)

5,133,125,704f% (15 &)
5,133,125,704 Shares (L)

5,133,125,7040% (47 8)
5,133,125,704 Shares (L)

55.02% (47 8)
55.02% (L)

55.02% (47 8)
55.02% (L)

55.02% (47 8)
55.02% (L)

Notes:
BEFFRAEERAEITRIISKFRE & (1) Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mr. Meng Xianhui is deemed to be interested
TEAAHEBRNESTEL - S e in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares,
Proper Process International Limited - Network 1,100,884,399 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Victory Limited - Successmax Global Holdings Weicheng, Proper Process International Limited, Network Victory Limited, Successmax
Limited & Mingyao Capital Limited 2 Bl ¥ & Global Holdings Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

8,123,666 fi% - 11,350,000 f% - 2,882,469,225
f% - 497,448,000 B% - 1,100,884,399 % &
255,582,886/% A% (n A #E A
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RIFZEF kB ERHIE317 R318IKHETE -
Proper Process International Limited # 18 & %
BESFE AL - BAEE L - Network Victory
Limited » Successmax Global Holdings Limited
Victory Faith International Limited }% Mingyao
Capital Limited % B ¥ & 8,123,666 A%
11,350,000% - 497,448,000f% - 1,100,884,399
% + 377,267,528 % % 255,582,886 A% AR 15 1
A -

N

!

BERZ R BE KD E 37 X318 KR
E - Network Victory Limited # % & % &=
Vilbanh =R

International Limited

* Proper Process
Successmax Global
Holdings Limited - Victory Faith International
Limited & Mingyao Capital Limited % 5l # &
8,123,666 A% - 11,350,000 A% - 2,882,469,225
A~ 1,100,884,399 fix - 377,267,528 fx K&
255,582,886 % A% 7 A #Eas

BEZESFRAEHRAE317 R318FRTE
Successmax Global Holdings Limited % 48
RRESAEE  BHEME
Victory Limited - Proper Process International
Limited -+ Victory Faith International Limited
¥ Mingyao Capital Limited 2 B # &
8,123,666 i& - 11,350,000 A% - 497,448,000
f& - 2,882,469,225 X - 377,267,528 ik &
255,582,886/ A% {7 h A 2 o

~ Network

REESRBEGOEINT7TRIBHERE -
Victory Faith International Limited # 13 &
RES AR R A
Victory Limited - Proper Process International
Limited Successmax Global Holdings
Limited & Mingyao Capital Limited % Bl # &
8,123,666 A% * 11,350,000 % - 497,448,000
f& - 2,882,469,225 X - 1,100,884,399 fix [
255,582,8861% it 7t #E A 14k

> Network

RIBEFESRBEGROIFEIT7RIIBHHRE
Mingyao Capital Limited # 18 & 7 B 7 &
4 - FWHEREE A - Network Victory Limited
Proper Process International Limited
Successmax Global Holdings Limited &
Victory Faith International Limited % 3l # &
8,123,666 i + 11,350,000 A% - 497,448,000
& - 2,882,469,225 % - 1,100,884,399 fix [
377,267,528 A {0 h A 2 o

FRILRRBRRZEROOFE -
[SIRIREZBRRNZERMDEDXR -

e

)

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Proper Process International Limited is deemed
to be interested in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares,
1,100,884,399 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che
Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Successmax Global Holdings
Limited, Victory Faith International Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Network Victory Limited is deemed to
be interested in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225 Shares,
1,100,884,399 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che
Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Proper Process International Limited, Successmax Global
Holdings Limited, Victory Faith International Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited,
respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Successmax Global Holdings Limited is
deemed to be interested in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares,
2,882,469,225 Shares, 377,267,528 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che
Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Victory Faith International Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Victory Faith International Limited is deemed
to be interested in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares,
2,882,469,225 Shares, 1,100,884,399 Shares and 255,582,886 Shares held by Dr. Che
Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International
Limited, Successmax Global Holdings Limited and Mingyao Capital Limited, respectively.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Mingyao Capital Limited is deemed to be
interested in 8,123,666 Shares, 11,350,000 Shares, 497,448,000 Shares, 2,882,469,225
Shares, 1,100,884,399 Shares and 377,267,528 Shares held by Dr. Che Fengsheng,
Dr. Guo Weicheng, Network Victory Limited, Proper Process International Limited,
Successmax Global Holdings Limited and Victory Faith International Limited, respectively.

The letter “L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”
denotes the shareholder’s short position in such Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, according to the records in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, no other parties had an interest or
a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company recorded under
section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 63 to 89 of this
annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital were
held by members of the public as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

With effect from 1 January 2022, the Listing Rules have been amended which
requires, among others, listed issuers to adopt a uniform set of 14 “Core Standards”
for shareholder protections for issuers set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules. As
such, the Board proposes to make certain amendments to the Bye-Laws in order to
(i) bring the Bye-Laws in line with the amendments made to the Listing Rules and
the applicable laws of Bermuda, (ii) provide flexibility to the Company in relation to
the conduct of general meetings (including allowing general meetings to be held
as hybrid meetings or electronic meetings in addition to physical meetings) and (iii)
make some other housekeeping improvements.

The proposed amendments to the Bye-Laws and adoption of amended and restated
bye-laws of the Company (the “New Bye-Laws") are subject to the consideration
and approval of the Shareholders by way of a special resolution at the Annual
General Meeting.

A circular containing, among other things, further information regarding the
proposed amendments to the Bye-Laws and adoption of the New Bye-Laws, together
with the notice of the Annual General Meeting will be published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange and sent to the Shareholders in due course.

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no significant events
after the reporting period up to the date of this annual report.
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RE-APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The audit committee was satisfied with Ernst & Young's work, its independence, and
its objectivity, and therefore recommended the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
(which has indicated its willingness to continue in office) as the Group’s external
auditor for 2023 for Shareholders’ approval at the 2023 AGM.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 were audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in the auditor of the
Company in the preceding three years.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors subsequent to the date of the Company’s interim report 2022 are as
follows:

1. Ms. Chen Yanling was appointed as one of the joint company secretaries
and the chairman of the Risk Management Committee of the Company
on 17 October 2022. She was appointed as the co-chairman of the Risk
Management Committee on 1 April 2023.

2. Ms. Miao Guili was appointed as an executive Director and a member of the
Risk Management Committee of the Company on 17 October 2022. She was
appointed as the co-chairman of the Risk Management Committee on 1 April
2023.

3. Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, an independent non-executive Director, resigned
as an independent non-executive director of CA Cultural Technology Group
Limited (stock code: 1566), listed on the Stock Exchange, on 3 November
2022. He was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee, and ceased to be the chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 1 April 2023.

4. Dr. Zhu Xun, an independent non-executive Director, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited (stock code: 503), listed on the Stock Exchange, on 23 September
2022.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Guan was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 1 April
2023.

As Mr. Choi Yiau Chong intended to serve as a senior management in the
headquarters of other business platforms of the Group and continued serving
the Group with his rich professional experience, to implement the adjustment
on the Group's organizational structure and accelerate the update and
development of business, he resigned as an executive Director, one of the joint
company secretaries and the chairman of the Risk Management Committee of
the Company on 17 October 2022.

Mr. Patrick Sun resigned as an independent non-executive Director and ceased
to serve as the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Management
Committee of the Company on 1 April 2023 due to the upcoming expiry
of term of office and his intention to devote more time on his other
commitments.

By Order of the Board
Dr. Che Fengsheng
Chairman of the Board

24 March 2023

F R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 117



BB RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EY:

FMRBEEREEERARAKRE
(REREZTMALBERAE])

=R

RPEETHNE125EEF300E HIURER
BEEREEERAG(TERR]) REKBA R
(BESEDNREVBRE  ZSWBE®RER
BRZZE-Z_F+-A=+—HHNEETBHK
RBENBEEZELFENLEEEBERR L EA
THBEER  GEEZEHREGEERERE
®URGEUVBHRENTE  EPpREEEE
BRI E -

BMRAE - GREMBREDBEEER 2 ER
BEe((HEE ST EIRES ) BB
BmEER([RHRTBEREEN D EEMATF
WrE BEER-_T-_—_F+=-A=+—H
WEREHMIEIRN - REEZB LFENRAE
BRBNGABESRE  YEREFBARE
Bl HBEEREZBHRR -

RRENER

BHPERBER S ENEESEMOBERE
SRR (TR ERT R ) EITES - BAIPZ
SRR AENBEERMINH S E O3 T
HEHBHRIXAENE LD HE— TR -
BREEESHMAGHN(EE SRR EERT
AN(T=p8I]) - BB EEE - WEET
SRR E BB EE - RPIRBA - B
ESHETRIRATEEEHREMANE
TR RIEHER -

Ernst & Young Lok EEHETE AR Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place  FEMISAREEITI5E  Fax{BH: +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road Kt —EE2748 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 125 to 300, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
("ISAs") issued by the IASB. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

118 | miBEe AR @A B A & SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



FREEITEE

HREFFESRBRMANEEHE - BRY
BMAMGEMBREINEARAEENSE
B mhEHEREHGAMBRRERBETE
AUEKERNER TETREN - RMTY
BLEREREHEBNER - RAETAE—F
BEERHENMESOEL LA RS S -

BPERET TRMNBRERHMA TS5 S
B HREAZMEFBOBROES  BIFH
ELEEMBOEMR - BEM  BRMANEFT
EBRATREENENGES B RREKE
RER A E e T AR A RO EATIZ R o RAIBMITER

BN = AN E
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit

BFENER S EY THREBRHITHIE procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
F o AHERGENBRERERESERIEM provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
TERE statements.

BREEE BRANESTOWEEEARETSE

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Capitalisation of development costs
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We assessed the compliance of the accounting policy and

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capitalised development
costs in progress amounting to approximately RMB552 million for
the development of new pharmaceutical products. The expenditure
on development activities was capitalised when all the criteria
mentioned in note 2.11(a) “Research and development”
satisfied. Significant management estimation and judgement were
required in determining whether the Group met the capitalisation
criteria.

were

AR B M AL S M RMEMTE2.11()
[FAERANER | R 18 B EE] -
Related disclosures are included in note 2.11(a)
development”, note 3(e) “Capitalisation of development costs” and
note 18 “Intangible assets” to the consolidated financial statements.

[FFFCERRAZE | - METE3(e)

“Research and

methodology for capitalisation of expenditures used by the
Group with International Accounting Standard 38, obtained and
examined trial readouts and regulatory announcements, and
evaluated the management judgement on the satisfaction of
criteria through comparison to industry practice.

BT FEMART SEERERBERARERCHRIFIEM
FRBFHOBBAAIES - WES T ABEEMBAMAITIERS
We obtained an understanding of, assessed and tested the
relevant internal controls over the Group's internal governance
and approval process on capitalisation of development costs and
examined the internal commercial and technical feasibility reports.

BT EREAHUBBRRTFERIAENMENBESS
5 ©

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures of
capitalisation of development costs in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

EMNBFSANAEEBRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment
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The Group had significant property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB2,301 million as at 31 December 2022. During
the year, an impairment loss of RMB1,131 million was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. A series of major policies
related to the in-depth reform of the pharmaceutical industry
imposed by the government of the People’s Republic of China have
created uncertainty in the financial performance of the Group’s main
products in general.

Bt - ERERTE TRERSRILEBNAEERABENER N M
RESRBAGATRESE - HUE - B AREBEENREES
BA([REELBM)ETTRERNE - ZFERKMHETTIE
FEER  ARBESEFREML S N EEHE NG5 -

Accordingly, the management identified impairment indicators and
performed impairment assessment of the cash-generating units
("CGUs") that the property, plant and equipment were related to
by estimating the recoverable amount based on the value in use
calculation using discounted cash flow projections. This matter
was significant to our audit because the process of impairment
assessment was complex and involved significant judgements and

estimates.
$E?ﬁ%&§'§%&iﬁwk,ﬁ$éﬁﬁ&$&?§ﬁﬁﬁzz8F3Féﬁﬁi§§5fmﬁj Mi5E2.9
(% - BFERBEARITE] - M3 - BEREERE]R

MiEE14T 3 - B MR
Related disclosures are included in note 2.8 “Impairment of non-
financial assets”, note 2.9 “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation”, note 3(c)

equipment” and note 14 “Property, plant and equipment” to the

“Impairment of property, plant and

consolidated financial statements.

HPEABEEZR BB BRMFTERESTHAAREITE
We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in the
evaluation of the methodologies used in the impairment analysis.

BMBBERBANMERCELEMNEL ZEMERE R
A THAREBR  BREEMmMNBEATSOE  BHEERK
R ARAR & AR AR E A o

We evaluated the key assumptions including the product’s
projected market share, expected selling price and associated
costs applied in the future revenues and operating results
forecasts by comparing the forecasts with the historical
performance of the respective CGUs and the business
development plan.

BTG ESEBRGA
HEBREERRE

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures concerning

MHHEFEME - BERREORE

impairment of property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

BN ESNANEERRETSE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BB ERE

Impairment of intangible assets
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had product development
in progress and deferred development costs amounting
to approximately RMB552.3 million and RMB32.4 million,
respectively, and the Group recognised impairment provision
for product development in progress of RMB3.9 million and
deferred development costs of RMB103.9 million during the year
ended 31 December 2022. The management made impairment
assessment based on estimated future cash flows generated
by all pharmaceutical patents or licenses in capitalisation of
development costs and all product development in progress that
the Group possessed, and projected product lifecycles experienced
in the pharmaceutical industry. This matter involved significant
management judgements and estimates, such as forecasted
revenue growth, future beneficial life, profit margin and discount
rate. Changes in these assumptions might lead to a change in the
impairment results.

HEAEBREANALEMSRENE2.8[ECREERE] - MizE2.11
[EREE | - WMaE3(a)l EIE 5 3 BOAR KT EE an B BORE | B M =
18[BIZEE] °

Related disclosures are included in note 2.8 “Impairment of
non-financial assets”, note 2.11 “Intangible assets”, note
3(a) “Impairment of deferred development costs and product
development in progress” and note 18 “Intangible assets” to the
consolidated financial statements.

BMEABEEZER BB BMTERES TR E KRR
We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluation of the methodologies and discount rate used in the
impairment analysis.

BAFAENERRSRENERERBEEMORATHMNE -
TRHEBREGEENMERAKAR - ¥E T RRERMN — B &
BB ARMEEZIE (M ES) RMABBLBRERGSREL
A BRRE AT VEHE BIPR AT (R B IR ETE R

We evaluated the key assumptions in the cash flows forecast,
including the product’s projected market share, expected selling
price and associated costs to be incurred against consensus
forecasts of certain therapeutic area and benchmark data
for comparable companies where available. We assessed the
management’s forecast by comparison of the actual results and
the projections made in prior periods.

BAEE &S
KR °

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’'s disclosures of
impairment of intangible assets in the consolidated financial
statements.

RNiFAMBRERTHBVEERENNERST
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
sO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report
is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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F PROFIT OR LOSS AND

PREHENSIVE INCOME
BE_T__Ft+t_A=1T—HLHFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

—=—-= T —%F
2022 2021
=3 AR® TR AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BEREER CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Wz Revenue 5 2,181,189 3,038,391
PHERK A Cost of sales (693,608) (607,903)
ER GROSS PROFIT 1,487,581 2,430,488
E AU A Other income 5 157,919 192,263
H s — F 58 Other gains — net 5 350,174 314,105
SEMBVEEREEIE Impairment losses on non-current assets 19 (1,337,808) (131,297)
FARRATEMNIREMERE  Impairment losses on investments accounted
for using the equity method 21 (389,311) -
DA Distribution expenses (471,144) (536,739)
TR Administrative expenses (552,192) (592,219)
M R EERAY Research and development expenses (936,581) (868,069)
HiMAx Other expenses (139,365) (36,587)
(| SR5F OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT (1,830,727) 771,945
BRI s Finance expenses 7 (211,176) (117,351)
DIRE R A E IR EAEIE  Share of losses of investments accounted
for using the equity method 21 (80,875) (158,581)
BESEEENRB A (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM
(&518), %A CONTINUING OPERATIONS 6 (2,122,778) 496,013
FT{S %% A 2 Income tax expense 10 (196,794) (253,119)
BEREEXBNFE (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
(E518) %7 CONTINUING OPERATIONS (2,319,572) 242,894
BRIEREER DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
DR IS EB R, EE Profit/(loss) for the period/year from
@A (EE) discontinued operations 11 36,296 (10,124)
FE(EE) 5R (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (2,283,276) 232,770
LA ARG - Attributable to:
VIN/NETEZ 2 =N Owners of the Company (1,914,918) 416,509
SEIERR R A Non-controlling interests (368,358) (183,739)
(2,283,276) 232,770
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-Z-_—_F+-_A=1T—HLLFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

—E-F —E-—F
2022 2021
=3 AR® TR AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FEFR) H5F (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (2,283,276) 232,770
FEHMEEWKE @ NRBIIE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX - =
FEZHEEE) W EHE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR
THE YEAR (2,283,276) 232,770
LA ARG - Attributable to:
KARERB A Owners of the Company (1,914,918) 416,509
AR M 2 Non-controlling interests (368,358) (183,739)
FEZHE(EE) W BHE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR
THE YEAR (2,283,276) 232,770
AR AREETT
RMB RMB
AAREBEEZFEAELSR  (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
(&58),BF ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
TFREA(EE), BT Basic (loss)/earnings per share
FE(EE)wH For (loss)/profit for the year (20.52) S cents 4.42 Hcents

SECEEBN(BIR), E T

For (loss)/profit from continuing operations

(20.90) o cents

4.49 fycents

FEEE(ER), &7
FE(BE)a8F
SBICE BN (BE), 8T

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
For (loss)/profit for the year
For (loss)/profit from continuing operations

(20.52) Zcents
(20.90) Zcents

4.39 73cents
4.46 73cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZBE-Z—F+=-A=+—H

AS AT 31 DECEMB

ER 2022

R+=ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
B = ARETR ARETFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(& E75)
(Restated)

FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BEKRK Property, plant and equipment 14 2,300,959 3,304,929
KB E Investment properties 15 221,059 224,269
EREEE Right-of-use assets 16 697,367 787,773
e Goodwill 17 1,853 14,165
EILEE Intangible assets 18 626,462 610,103
FRESETENRE Investments accounted for using the equity method 21 682,174 705,533
BRAFEFABZNEMEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 225,164 266,999
HiIERBEE Other non-current assets 23 594,359 392,302
EIETRIBE A E Deferred tax assets 33 96,774 303,464
BHERFR Pledged deposits 26 143,994 144,631
EMENEELRE Total non-current assets 5,590,165 6,754,168
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 24 606,700 715,298
B 5 N HMERERER Trade and other receivables 25 1,118,628 1,234,428
BAFEFABENESREE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 22 962,988 109,304
RE KRB EEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 3,828,863 5,682,425
BHEMAER Pledged deposits 26 33,207 =
MENEEEEE Total current assets 6,550,386 7,741,455
REE TOTAL ASSETS 12,140,551 14,495,623

F [Z ¥ 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

127



fra MO R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

R+=ZA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E2-= —E %
2022 2021
B = ARETR ARETFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
(&=51)
(Restated)
Em EQUITY
AATEE AEGRER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
&N Share capital 27 77,058 77,058
RD (B Share premium 27 3,882,304 3,882,304
HibEE Other reserves 29 (528,850) (221,437)
REAEF Retained earnings 29 1,306,486 4,546,223
4,736,998 8,284,148
IR ER Non-controlling interests 902,828 865,918
B Total equity 5,639,826 9,150,066
kRBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 33 99,040 222,390
FTEIRITIE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 34 808,383 813,216
HEB&E Lease liabilities 16 45,856 31,463
ARAaE Contract liabilities 32 5,660 9,969
HIERsasE Other non-current liabilities 30 3,008,786 1,766,684
eI NNk Total non-current liabilities 3,967,725 2,843,722
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B NHMEMNER Trade and other payables 31 1,926,944 1,971,289
FTEIRITIEX Interest-bearing bank borrowings 34 327,075 200,000
aHEaE Contract liabilities 32 164,010 206,425
FERTFTISHR Income tax payable 67,862 111,247
HEA®RE Lease liabilities 16 13,184 5,193
HEtrnsaE Other current liabilities 30 33,925 7,681
mENE BB Total current liabilities 2,533,000 2,501,835
Bmes TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,500,725 5,345,557
EankEEEE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12,140,551 14,495,623
BHSH Y377
Che Fengsheng Guo Weicheng
=0 £
Director Director
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B BB
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BE-_F__F+-A=1t—HLEFE

/NIt 2PN/
Attributable to owners of the Company
BRA  RIDEE  HtREE  REER B FERER s
Non-

Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total

capital  premium reserves  earnings Total interests equity

iz ARETr ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:T

Notes ~ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RZZE-—%—A—H At 1 January 2021 78,186 4,084,846 725,222 4,302,088 9,190,342 758,383 9,948,725

FRRH Profit for the year - - - 416,509 416,509  (183,739) 232,770
ESRHREEE Employee share award scheme:

-BIRKEE - Value of employee services - - 59,350 - 59,350 - 59,350
“EZERPRE Final 2020 dividend 12 - - - (123,054)  (123,054) - (123,054)
BN EERIRERRS Dividends paid to non-controlling

shareholders - - - - - (73,500)  (73,500)
BETHEATREES  Transfer to PRC statutory reserve

fund 29 - - 49,320 (49,320) - - -
R R HR Repurchase and cancellation of

shares 27 (1,156)  (205,251) - - (206,407) - (206,407)
BITEERE Share options exercised 27 28 2,709 - - 2,737 - 2,737
—RMB ARG Z Recognition of redemption liabilities

B & EER on a subsidiary’s shares - - (1,573,500) - (1,573,500) - (1,573,500)
FU—EMBARELR  Non-controlling interests arising on

FERER establishing a subsidiary = = = = = 1,000 1,000
TR & Partial disposal of equity interests

NS e in subsidiaries without change

of control 29 - - 51,067 - 51,067 53,163 104,230
Wi FEim it e Acquisition of non-controlling
interests - - (8,844) - (8,844) (1,656) (10,500)
NG ) Capital contribution by
FERRELE non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - - 475,948 - 475,948 312,267 788,215
R-ZZE-—F At 31 December 2021
+-A=1+—H 77,058 3,882,304  (221,437) 4,546,223 8,284,148 865,918 9,150,066
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RAEREBHE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BE_T-__F+-A=+—HILFE

FARERAES

Attributable to owners of the Company

kx  ROEE  HtREE  REEN axt FERER LRy £

Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserves  earnings Total interests equity

Wi AR®TR ARMTR AREBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARETR AR%TR
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

R-B--_%-A-H At 1 January 2022 77,058 3,882,304  (221,437) 4,546,223 8,284,148 865,918 9,150,066
FREE Loss for the year - - - (1,914,918) (1,914,918) (368,358) (2,283,276)
ESRH RS Employee share award scheme
-BIRKEE - Value of employee services - - 89,666 - 89,666 - 89,666
T —FRERER  Final 2021 and 2022 interim
- —FhERE dividends 12 - - - (1,315,530) (1,315,530) - (1,315,530)
BESHEATERES  Transfer to PRC statutory reserve
fund 29 - = 9,289 (9,289) - - -
HEREERS ZER Special reserve for maintenance and
RBDTE() production funds (i) - - 3,368 = 3,368 = 3,368
MER RN EE Recognition of redemption liabilities
BERR on subsidiaries’ shares - - (989,949) - (989,949) - (989,949)
B ARMIEHERARRLE Capital contribution by non-
controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries - - 580,213 - 580,213 399,787 980,000
HERBATF Disposals of subsidiaries - - - - - 5,481 5,481
R-B-_—_F+-RA At 31 December 2022
=t+-H 77,058 3,882,304  (528,850) 1,306,486 4,736,998 902,828 5,639,826
B3 Note:
(i) RIBERBEHBEE  ANEEESEENREEE (i) Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required to transfer production

SREANETEL X E SR ERHBRP © £
EREEESTEREEERERTZHEIER
XRERZHEER - FERBEESNEA
SEBEERBRP P HIER

and maintenance funds at fixed rates based on revenue, to a specific reserve account.
The production and maintenance funds could be utilised when expenses or capital
expenditures on production maintenance and safety measures are incurred. The amount
of production and maintenance funds utilised would be deducted from the specific
reserve account.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

—E2-= —E-—%F
2022 2021
Bt = ARET AR®FT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
RETHEERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
EEEENRE Cash generated from operations 35 203,473 868,825
DTSR Income tax paid (156,980) (203,532)
RESTENREREEE Net cash flows from operating activities 46,493 665,293
REZBHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEENT N —BEa4 %P4 Capital contribution to associates and a joint venture (478,000) =
BEME « BB MR Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment (402,459) (601,017)
BEELEE Purchases of intangible assets (191,478) (124,565)
BN T ET ABRENELFEE Purchases of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (16,163,360) (20,041,950)
HEEAFEFABRD Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value
TREEMGIA through profit or loss 15,451,028 20,193,103
HEWE - BEREENAT T Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 35 14,353 3,133
HEETEENTSRIE Proceeds from disposal of items of intangible assets 3,984 -
FE=HERBA Advances of loans to third parties (79,464) (4,346)
BN B B2 Advances of loans to associates (78,000) (70,371)
E=HENERZE Repayment of loans from third parties 57,609 15,058
BN B EN B EZIE Repayment of loans from associates = 37,412
HERBAR - NKRFE Disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash 37 88,448 =
WEEHE AR - RRES Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash - (153,377)
[REEwiREEe il Increase in pledged deposits (32,570) (83)
B F 8 Interest received 148,788 133,644
FER TR E R R Prepaid land lease payments 16 - (41,847)
B U A% 8 Dividend received 21 - 317,637
REZHMARSRETFE Net cash flows used in investing activities (1,661,121) (337,569)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HE_T__F+_A=1+—HILFE

—=E=-= —E-—F
2022 2021
Bt = ARET AR®FT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
METBHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BN RITERKIE Repayment of bank borrowings (313,926) (537,970)
(& E At (& R 8 Repayment of other borrowings (1,500) (4,470)
SRITERTS A Proceeds from bank borrowings 456,168 832,083
HiE RS RIA Proceeds from other borrowings 24,152 4,000
Hﬁlﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬂx Repurchase and cancellation of shares 27 = (206,407)
ENFHAREHD Principal portion of lease payments 16 (12,620) (3,187)
WE AR FEIEPRRR R & Capital contribution by non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 980,000 788,215
TEﬁZ“ i 2 E B A R Partial disposal of equity interests in subsidiaries
e without change of control - 104,230
BT E Share options exercised 27 - 2,737
Wi IR Hﬂ’?éﬁ{l Acquisition of non-controlling interests - (5,250)
Bravialnlii)EPN Non-controlling interests arising on establishing
EERIFESE HXTE o a subsidiary = 1,000
B RIAR A MR SRS Dividends paid to Company's shareholders 36 (1,315,530) (122,889)
B AR R IEERARR Dividends paid to Company'’s
XA E non-controlling shareholders 36 - (73,500)
BRFE Interest paid 36 (55,678) (27,932)
BMEFE(FA)FEE Net cash flows (used in)/from
HEehasam financing activities (238,934) 750,660
RERBESZEEYUORD), NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
R CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,853,562) 1,078,384
FNRE MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,682,425 4,604,041
FRREERELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 26 3,828,863 5,682,425
RERASEEMERDN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
R e RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 3,144,842 3,689,923
EERZ THER Unpledged time deposits 684,021 1,992,502
e MBI R & Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
IREReRERMINZ the consolidated statement of financial position
B MBS EEY and the statement of cash flows 3,828,863 5,682,425
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B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated
in Bermuda under the Bermuda Companies Act as an exempted company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are the research
and development (“R&D"), and the manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical
products and medical aesthetic products in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of the principal place of
business of the Group in Hong Kong is Room 4309, Office Tower, Convention
Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and the address of the
principal place of business in Beijing is 22/F, Building 4, Zhubang 2000, West
Balizhuang, Chaoyang District, Beijing 100025, the PRC.

The Company had its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28 October 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which include all
IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and interpretations,
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for wealth management products, notes receivable and equity
investments which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results
in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
year as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.2

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

F i F 2 i

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the
fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

B ER Z St

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

YR B MR - RE REATM RS FOR

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

BEAN—ETAHNRA

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BRI EERIE 158 - BRI HREELFESR -

& AR5 1655 BE MY 88 O S BIFR & 5T 2E RSB 4157

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41

Xﬁ?ﬁ%
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework"”) issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to
the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an
asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37
or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed
in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer
to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there
were no contingent assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
within the scope of the amendments arising in the business
combination that occurred during the year, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described

below:(continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead,
an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items as determined by IAS 2 Inventories,
in profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after 1 January 2022. Since there was no
sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and equipment
being available for use, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described

below:(continued)

(@]

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour
and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for which
it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no
onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described
below:(continued)

(d)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022.
As there was no modification or exchange of the Group's
financial liabilities during the year, the amendment did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 CHEM1E R LK KB
& 2R
7 55 B30 4 10 8 25 B 7 SR SRR A A
T B8 i R R T AT RAG 1S
STEURR B 3R R

B PR B 7 SR 5 HE RIS 1 058 R BARR = 5T RI B 285 M5 R
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B B B 745 R 5 BRI 25 1 65RO IS AT
Amendments to IFRS 16 IFRS 17

B B B 75 SR 5 HE RI B2 1 7558
Amendments to IFRS 17

e E ERIE SRS ET
Amendments to IAS 1

REEtERIE S MBS RS ER BN E
FE25RMERT
Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

BIPR & 5 AR 8IS T
Amendments to IAS 8

BB st AR E 1255 1S ET
Amendments to IAS 12

. W-E-—=F—A—BRZ%MH '
52 AR

2 R-FB_OF—A—BRZEH ?

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

REEHABEN AN E SR BN EE L E3)F A3
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint venture®

EREEXR S HEE A E
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

wREREAT

Insurance Contracts'*

R ES R RB LI

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current’

BEHEERE
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Bit that T E

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

HE - GEENEERE R BELFE
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

YRH A E HAR AR

WAREERGIMEEKBH - B
R

MR —F-FF XA TIBERE
BRELRIE17HRER] - BE
ISR E B F 45K EERT AT
REBEHHRR  AFRRARZE
—=F—A—BRRAKRNEED
MR A B & 5t ERIE 395 M IE
B % B 75 5 5 A2 B S5 955

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

9 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

& As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS
4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023
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2.3 B HEMR1E i R A Rk A B R B 2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)
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Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by
the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liability at the end of the year if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application
is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy
disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases
and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs (continued)

2.4

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial application
of these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset
and a deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and
recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
as an adjustment to retained profits at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented.

Prior year restatement

(a)

Restatement of prior years’ financial
statements as a result of business combinations
for Genesis Biosystems, Inc (“Genesis™)

On 31 December 2021, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Genesis Biosystems, Inc. (“Genesis”), an unlisted
company based in Taxes USA which is a manufacturer of aesthetic
and biomedical products specialising in the development,
manufacture and distribution of beauty devices with a focus
on microchannel systems and fat harvesting products for
cosmetic and skin care treatments as well as plastic surgery, at
a consideration of USD3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB19,138,000). The consideration of USD3,000,000 was
settled in cash in 2021. The assessment of the fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of Genesis was still undergoing
and the information of the fair values of the identifiable assets
and liabilities was provisional as at 31 December 2021.

During the year, the Company finalised the assessment of the
fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Genesis and
the Company retrospectively adjusted the provisional amounts
recognised at the acquisition date to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as at the
acquisition date.

The comparative information as at 31 December 2021 have been
restated in the consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Prior year restatement (continued)

(b) Restated consolidated statement of financial
position for the year ended 31 December 2021

BAEFE
KR 28] AELE RE5
Effect of
As previously prior year
reported adjustments As restated
AR®T T AR®T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RS Goodwill 28,352 (14,187) 14,165
W EE Intangible assets 595,916 14,187 610,103

2.5
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HEZES - KREHEERRS
BERFTHENE TN EL—
HRBARERFE

2.5 Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
itis in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Investments in associates and joint ventures

(continued)

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in associates or
joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and non-current assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. EEREHBRBE ) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
29 ¥ BERREBURITE 2.9 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
M BELRREETZSEIEI®RE Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly factories and offices.
WAE - ME - BENRE(BRE Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
BIRINDERNRRIER stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
ERERIESIER - ME - BRE K The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
REEEXRABIEELBEEEREE purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
ERKHEEER G T 1EiRRE R b2, to its working condition and location for its intended use.
BRI FE (L EBER AN ©
E - BENMREHEB RANEEE Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
FMEAZ #ERSESE - —KR been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
EAHEBEREEANTG - EERE charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
HERZERT  TERBFESE situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
ZHAYEZEERAEFRERNEE for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
EE o WA YME - BEKRERE asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
BIRBEE  AIAEBRSEEBEL and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
PDHERABEEEFERFHR ZERNE recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
B WARREEHRITE - depreciates them accordingly.
WEDNERFREGFAIERSF Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
HEmE  BMEMERESEER 2 of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
BRAMSE E R ETE - BULATE its estimated useful life. The residual rate and estimated useful lives
AREER R AEAFEN used for this purpose are as follows:
™
BEX AU EASEH
Estimated
Residual rate useful lives
1’5 Buildings 5% 105354
10 to 35 years
EEREFEE Production and electronic equipment 5% 3E104F
3 to 10 years
b N Office equipment 5% 3E10%F
3 to 10 years
B Motor vehicles 5% 4104

4 to 10 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

210

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings, production
and electronic equipment, office equipment, motor vehicles under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purpose.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation
is calculated using a straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over the estimated useful lives of the properties. The
residual values and useful lives of investment properties are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
effects of any revision are included in the profit or loss when the
changes arise.
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2.

SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(a) R&D
(i)

(i)

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and understanding, is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities (relating to the design and testing of new or
improved products) is capitalised under the category of
“product development in progress” if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
the development, the Group has sufficient ability to use
or sell the asset, the asset will generate future economic
benefit, and the cost can be reliably measured. Upon
the commencement of the commercial production of
a product, the expenditure on development activities
is transferred to “deferred development costs” and
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of its
expected benefit. R&D costs comprise costs that are directly
attributable to R&D activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities.

Deferred development costs that are acquired by the
Group are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

R&D (continued)

(iii)  Subsequent expenditure on development activities after
its acquisition or its completion is recognised as an
expense when it is incurred unless it is probable that
this expenditure will enable the asset to generate future
economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed
standard of performance and this expenditure can be
measured and attributed to the asset reliably. If these
conditions are met, the subsequent expenditure is added to
the cost of the intangible asset.

(iv)  Amortisation of deferred development costs is charged
to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products which is not
exceeding 5 to 15 years.

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are initially recorded at historical
cost. Trademarks acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Computer systems

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 5 years.

Customer relationships

The customer relationships have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of 5 years.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. The effects of any revision are recognised
in profit or loss when the changes arise.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for

all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-

of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

25&504F
25 to 50 years

2E6%F
2 to 6 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of buildings (that is those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets
(a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(a)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit
or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in
other comprehensive income is recycled to the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group
had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the consolidated profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:
o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from

the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.15 Impairment of financial assets
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The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

4 fE %R 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 163



B RS ek
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

FESHHREME »)

215 ERMEERE®)

—REE %)

IR AT ES AR b2 E R B
BREMS  AEEERESER
BELE - AERERH  ALEE
AT BRI EBE KA RIEN
EATEB Y AB R BB T
ERRERTHREERRK - N
FTETAERE - AEMENTEERR
B2 INBSE SR o W hh - AEE
Bh - BAHNEEII0RIA LE
RASERRHRBEZEM -

HEeERMEENANNKET A0
B AXKERREREERLY -
AW - EETERT - AR
BMERBR - LREFTRASEM
FAENEREERAER - K&
B AT BE R BB R ER R A5
B AARETARASTREER
7)o MEESEEHAKES RS
meE - BMEeREE -

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At each reporting
date, the Group evaluates whether the debt investments are considered
to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
the Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments.
In addition, the Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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2. TESHHEEME ») 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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216 £REE 2.16 Financial liabilities
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Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings, and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises R&D costs, raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the year
in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
year and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred tax (continued)

(c)

Outside basis differences

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal of
the temporary difference for the associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and an
associate only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where

there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the

Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with

the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are

included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and

are credited to the consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis

over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in the retirement insurance and medical
insurance scheme organised by the local social security bureau
pursuant to the relevant provisions. The Group is required to
make monthly contributions in respect of the above insurance
scheme to the local social security bureau based on the monthly
salaries of its employees. The Group has no further liabilities other
than the above defined contributions. The Group’s contributions
under the scheme are charged to the consolidated profit or loss.

Be BTy £ @ A FR A 7] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



2. TESHHEEME »)

222 EEER (&)
(b) RBEEFEF
BRI RME B L EERIK

(c)

(d)

BRI A EK I ARE
ERY BMBEBIA MG L&
BRI - REBZUAT

EHH(LMFE%F%/&)TJEW
BARA - (QRAEETEE
H 1 it Z#?aaﬂﬁﬁ ; &(b)

EREIABBRE S ELE
3755 # IS ) [0 K B B AR A
NRZEBEHEKAER -
TEIR B4 LA B D & FE BB
BIERT - BT AR
BB EZLHMNES ARG
2 - EFEREBBEAT=
AR R FERLIR B
WA -

D EBFIRIEALETE
REBRE-HEAAGRIELD

EaMorzwREERRA
X ZAREERTRELSE
FHRAERZEARDRREEG
WA AEEFERHE K
e DBEED G EEHETE
BEmMEREAE -

EE B
BENKRAEERANZHSF
R-EREEEEFREHR
#) BR 7 1 h R R AL E B
1o

]

EENRBRRERE
AR KRB ERR ©

\
/

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at
the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope
of IAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In
the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the year are discounted to their
present value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the year.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transaction

The group operates a Share Option Scheme and Restricted Share Unit
("RSU") Schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration in exchange for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using
market-value model, further details of which are given in note 28 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest.

Be BTy £ @ A FR A 7] SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

2. TESHHEEME ») 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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2.23 R AERNNRE) 2.23 Share-based payments (continued)
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Equity-settled share-based payment transaction
(continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products and medical
aesthetic products is recognised at the point in time when control
of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)
(b) Revenue from other sources

(c)

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Income from the provision of R&D services is recognised over
time, using an input method to measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the service, because the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises income based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of
the services.

Sale of distribution rights is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

2.27

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(a)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the note 12 to the Financial Statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_—_+-_A=1+—HILFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.

All the foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated profit or loss within “other gains — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2. FESHBEME ») 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.28 SV () 2.28 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) EFALA (c) Group companies
FIEEE B EHESEET The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
ﬁzﬁlgﬁf(ﬂéﬁi%’lﬁﬁ of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy)
R E 2 EW) 2 2 E KRBT that have a functional currency different from the presentation
BHRRBEAEUNTEYNE currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
e
() ZEETEBEMNEENE (i)  assets and liabilities for of these entities are translated at
BRFR KT ER the closing rate at the end of year.
(iy ZEBREBBEzZZEA (i) income and expenses in the profit or loss of these
KR X iR 1 & R i entities are translated at average exchange rates (unless
- BRIFEBATFHA this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
FERHAB ML x cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
ZRIFEZAER dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
TE - mEER the rates on the dates of the transactions);
T WARBZERR
SHBZEERRE
iy BEMMBEBRE (iiiy  all resulting currency translation differences are recognised
Z= R ,\ﬁﬂiﬁqﬂl/\ in other comprehensive income.
R o
WEESRINERRELE L HER Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
NEEFABEBRINERE a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
EEMNBE  KREKTER entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation
,%f FTELNEKBREZR differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
Hitb2 MU ER - income.
2.29 BB 2.29 Related parties
ETHERT - G5 SHE AR A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
EE R AT
@) BREITA—SBATHZAL (a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
BIEE - AL and that person
() s R A S () has control or joint control over the Group;
H
iy HAE@DESAY (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
2.5
(iii) g$¢@jﬁ$/§. (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
NEHEEEEAS ; Group or of a parent of the Group;
;% or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Related parties (continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The

resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of deferred development costs and
product development in progress

The Group’s management determines the estimated future cash flows
generated by all pharmaceutical patents or licences in capitalisation of
development costs and all product development in progress that the
Group possessed. These estimates are based on projected product life
cycles in the pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management will
recognise impairment loss on the capitalised development costs when
future cash flows are less than expectation and fall below the amount of
related development costs.

The carrying amount of deferred development costs as at 31 December
2022 was RMB32,358,000 (31 December 2021: RMB164,299,000). The
carrying amount of product development in progress as at 31 December
2022 was RMB552,318,000 (31 December 2021: RMB410,405,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Useful lives and residual values of property, plant

(c)

and equipment

The estimate of useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment was made by management with reference to the established
industry practices, technical assessments made on the durability of
the assets, as well as the historical magnitude and trend of repair
and maintenance expenses incurred by the Group. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are less than
those previously estimated or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated future cash flows
of each cash-generating unit that the property, plant and equipment
are assigned to. These estimates are based on product life cycles in the
pharmaceutical industry.

It could change significantly as a result of medicine innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management will
recognise impairment loss on the property, plant and equipment when
future cash flows are less than expectation and fall below the amount of
related property, plant and equipment.

fFFE ¥R ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 181



B HSERR Mot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—_T_—_—

F+-A=+—BLEFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

3.

182

EEEHEFTRHE 2

(d) FBHRELRE

(e)

BRAE T AR E R I =58 R BiE
EENECHEELEE  eREEE
R A PR AT BE A FE SR T vk ) LA K 8
AT HRE B 1 R s P A TR IS S
BRTURR - HEREALER
BETE - BRIEERIEAFIE B
TERFRMITEIEE -

PSR AN ERL

BB AREY B HREMNE
2.11(a) BB B B AN & E ISR
BITERE - BMEENEWNEE
EEEEEUWEAENTBHARRR
REK - FTERARARERTES
W BEH B - RZZFE ==
+-ZA=+—8 BEREFH
BRABAEHLBOAARE
552,318,000 L( =T =—%&F : A
R ¥ 410,405,0007T ) ° #EEH#H R
WIS MR8 »

3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different. Details of the
deferred taxation are disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

Capitalisation of development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting
policy for R&D costs in note 2.11(a) to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires management to
make assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the
assets, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
At 31 December 2022, the management estimated the amount of
capitalised development costs was approximately RMB552,318,000
(2021: RMB410,405,000). More details are given in note 18 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_—_+-_A=1+—HILFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based
on their products and services and has three reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@)  the medical aesthetic products segment including the filling, shaping,
supporting, supplementing, optoelectronic device, body sculpturing,
skin care and others to provide non- or minimally invasive medical
aesthetics comprehensive solutions;

(b)  the innovative medicine and other medicine segment; and
(c)  the generic medicine segment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax
from continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax from continuing operations except that interest income, non-
lease-related finance costs, dividend income, fair value gains/losses from the
Group's financial instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses
are excluded from such measurement.

Information relating to segment assets and liabilities is not disclosed as such
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating decision-maker
who assesses the performance of the operating segments based on their
revenue and operating profit rather than their assets and liabilities.
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4. DEHEFR #)
BE-®B--—F+-A=t+-ALEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

BXER ANBERHMESR {h s gt
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
AR¥ET T AR%T R AR¥T R AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2 2Pk (M EES) Segment revenue (note 5)
IERFIHE Sales to external customers 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189
AER L E Intersegment sales - 104,798 - 104,798
149,780 165,711 1,970,496 2,285,987
iR - Reconciliation:
D EPFEIHE T8 Elimination of intersegment sales (104,798)
g e Revenue from continuing
operations 2,181,189
IERBEERERIE Impairment losses on non-current
assets - (314,455) (976,588) (1,291,043)
DEEE Segment results 3,576 (1,400,204) (16,009) (1,412,637)
iR - Reconciliation:
A ERE A Unallocated other income 13,018
R DB EHAM S —F%  Unallocated other gains - net 19,000
T H#ENER Unallocated expenses (625,964)
TP ERE ST Unallocated finance expenses (35,320)
DaE AR AT ERN Share of profits and losses of
BA R REE investments accounted for
using the equity method (80,875)
RERFEREER L Loss before tax from continuing
B iRl EE operations (2,122,778)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-_F__F+-A=1T—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

BXEm AIEEREMESR gL o
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
22Uk (MEEES) Segment revenue (note 5)
IERFIHE Sales to external customers 398,954 41,296 2,598,141 3,038,391
DEPFEIEE Intersegment sales - 63,814 = 63,814
398,954 105,110 2,598,141 3,102,205
R - Reconciliation:
73 B 85 Y Elimination of intersegment sales (63,814)
RELE N Revenue from continuing
operations 3,038,391
ERBEERERERE Impairment losses on non-current
assets - (131,297) - (131,297)
DEEE Segment results 248,472 (879,610) 1,307,001 675,863
B Reconciliation:
A ERE A Unallocated other income 22,778
Al DB E MU —F5%  Unallocated other gains - net 59,235
R HEHE A Unallocated expenses (101,930)
Al D E R BT R Unallocated finance expenses (1,352)
AMEFE AR ETERN Share of profits and losses of
HE RN R EE investments accounted for
using the equity method (158,581)
REFERLEER 2 Profit before tax from continuing
BR 754 A4 7 operations 496,013
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4. DEER @) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
i & & % Geographical information
(a) SIBEF Kz (a) Revenue from external customers
—E-= — T —F
2022 2021
AR T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
i B TS Geographical market
[==lE7kvNpsi Mainland China 2,166,784 3,038,391
ESET United States of America 14,405 -
2,181,189 3,038,391
i e zg > BRI iR The revenue information of continuing operations above is based on the
EEMEMRED o locations of the customers.
(b) FEREIEE (b) Non-current assets
—E-C—F —E - —F
2022 2021
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 Geographical market
Fh A3, Mainland China 4,531,294 5,651,478
ESE United States of America 13,982 10,196
4,545,276 5,661,674

SRS RE 2 ERDEER
HOEEERENESS - TTE
EeRTARBEHEAE -

BE-Z-_—_F+=-A=+—HLt
FE - AHEEHRESHEEAR
EEFEREEAERERE10%K
NE(ZZ=—F : E)ND#HE -

186

The non-current asset information of continuing operations above is
based on the locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all sales were from
distributors and there were no distributors of the Group from which the
revenue amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue (2021: Nil).
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5. W& Ht AR W= 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WD TIAT An analysis of revenue is as follows:
—E-C—F —E - —F
2022 2021
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
P& HNE Revenue from contracts with customers 2,181,189 3,038,391
EFEEHWE Revenue from contracts with customers
(a) BEUZEH (a) Disaggregated revenue information
BE-B-_—_f+-A=+—-HL Year ended 31 December 2022
FE
B &AM Revenue from contracts with customers
BXER AFERHMER s Fob
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
AR®BT R AR®T R AR®T R AR®BT R
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EmER Type of goods
HEREEDNEXER Sale of pharmaceutical products
and medical aesthetic products 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189
B 5 Geographical market
B A Mainland China 135,375 60,913 1,970,496 2,166,784
Ee United States of America 14,405 - - 14,405
TEAMNG BT Total revenue from contracts
with customers 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189
63T Timing of revenue recognition
EX-BHEZEBNES  Goods transferred at a point
in time 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189
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5. W& -

Hm ARW= ez 5.

BEEA#HWE#)
(a) TEUAEHR &)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

BE—ZT-—#+-_F=+—Hit Year ended 31 December 2021
FE
BXEm AIFERAEMER fhgisE wst
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
EmER Type of goods
HEREERNEEER  Sale of pharmaceutical products
and medical aesthetic products 398,954 41,296 2,598,141 3,038,391
@5 Geographical market
B A, Mainland China 398,954 41,296 2,598,141 3,038,391
g 225 2 s Timing of revenue recognition
ER-BREZEBENESR  Goods transferred at a point
in time 398,954 41,296 2,598,141 3,038,391
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BEEAHWE2)
(a) PERAEH @)
TERIES A L5 8R S WER

B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with

PIRERE RV HIAR customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information:
BE-—ZE-—f+=-H=+—H1Lt Year ended 31 December 2022
FE
BXER AFERHMER Bl gE Fob
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
AR®BT R AR®T R AR®BT R AR®BTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
) Segments
IBEPIHE Sales to external customers 149,780 60,913 1,970,496 2,181,189
DEFEEE Intersegment sales - 104,798 - 104,798
149,780 165,711 1,970,496 2,285,987
R - Reconciliation:
DEEHELH Elimination of intersegment sales (104,798)
BEAH 1A% Total revenue from contract
with customers 2,181,189
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5. Wz HWARUWE (2 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

BEEEHNWE®) Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a) BEUAEF &) (a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)
TREINFFEH RS I E R Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts
RIS REMEER (&) with customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information:

(continued)
BE-_Z-_—%®+-_A=+—H1t Year ended 31 December 2021
FE

BIFTER

BXEMm Hh B fhgisE wst
Innovative
Medical medicine
aesthetic and other Generic
products medicine medicine Total
ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
) Segments
INIRPIHE Sales to external customers 398,954 41,296 2,598,141 3,038,391
DEbEEE Intersegment sales - 63,814 - 63,814
398,954 105,110 2,598,141 3,102,205
iR Reconciliation:
o ERFE 8 Y85 Elimination of intersegment sales (63,814)
BEP&aH =GR Total revenue from contract
with customers 3,038,391
TR VN ARE FHERI A F G The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised for the
AGREERR E—FEHKRET year that were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
HBABEETHER WG SR year and recognised from performance obligations not yet satisfied in
previous years:
R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E=-= —E-—%F
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FFAFIA A ERERN K Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year:
SHERLE M NEXEM Sale of pharmaceutical products and
medical aesthetic products 201,042 186,354
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5. Wz HWARUWE (2 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

BEEENWE )
(b) BHEME

HEEEER R EXEm

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations

Sale of pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products

BROEENBUWESEERREXE The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of the
ma R ERK - A AR — AR XA 1290 pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic products and payment
REISORNEE - EHEFPBET is generally due within 90 to 180 days from delivery, except for new

ATRSTR o

customers, where payment in advance is normally required.

PERERTROEBENR HERTE The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
SRR —FEAER AR o Dt performance obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue
BB TREIRAOATER within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include variable
g - consideration which is constrained.
Hitglg A Other income
—E-= —E -4
2022 2021
AR¥T R AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUA Interest income 146,794 163,948
BEMEKEREZHES A Gross rental income from investment property
EEA() operating leases (i) 6,079 7,116
& 5 SHAE (i) Sale of distribution rights (ii) 2,409 3,526
U AGili) Research and development income (iii) 195 6,183
H it Others 2,442 11,490
157,919 192,263
0) MRS B R RS Y S A (i) Gross rental income from investment property operating leases is
EEW RN ANERN ISy included in other income as it is not derived from the Group’s principal
& E I AU A - LU activities. An analysis of rental income is as follows:
AR DT -
—E-—F —E -
2022 2021
AR®TRT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
WE™ 5 Geographical markets
aBE Hong Kong 3,372 5,219
R A b Mainland China 2,707 1,897
6,079 7,116
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BE_Z_—F#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

5. W& HbWARWEH = 5.

HiWA (#)

(i) HREHESHELIFRAENAEE
MEBEXRT - ARt AEMYK
A o HEDHENMERTIFE AT
BA - BAR EERHEIREEE
REETT  XHEEFBERTARE
RIS RITAN FIR o HE D HER
EHNHRA=2RF - X+ _H
=+t—B SEEHTEMNEE
(RETTRIBO KRBT HER

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Other income (continued)

(ii)

Sale of distribution rights is included in other income as it is not derived
from the Group’s principal activities. The geographical market of all
the sale of distribution rights is Mainland China. The performance
obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered and advances
are normally required before rendering the services. Sale of distribution
rights contracts is for periods of three to five years. The amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

U
R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E-—%F
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B ERAEE MM ANESEE Amounts expected to be recognised as other income:
—ER Within one year 2,830 5,383
—Fi% After one year 5,660 9,969
8,490 15,352

TR 25 ENRBILRF A

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised for the

AmaErseE year that were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
year:
—E-= —E -
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RIREET A S LB EREZRMNUE © Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period
HE D Sale of distribution rights 2,409 275
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

5. Wz HWARUWE (2 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Ha A (&) Other income (continued)
(i) EAHAFBRKANIERERAREEY (i) R&D income is included in other income as it is not derived from the

TEEY - AU AEMBEA -
MBEWANMRTIHHR/TER
o [BHVE R IR AR TS B BE B ]

Group's principal activities. The geographical market of all the R&D
income is Mainland China. The performance obligation is satisfied over
time as services are rendered and payment is generally due within 30

BT —MARFARABE308R days from the date of billing.
R e
Hihlrzs — 55 Other gains - net
—E_ T —F
2022 2021
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
KR —HHE AR M Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary 194,068 =
HERANFEFABZNEREER  Gain on disposal of fair value of financial assets at FVPL
N EH Y S 111,945 =
BT BN G) Government grants (i) 57,493 250,805
BIEHE —RB AN R 2 #25MUzE  Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate 9,554 7,136
BRI EABEREN K Gain on transferring R&D intellectual right 7,000 =
Rk [ =PNGI ol € Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary = 59,228
Hity Others 54 203
I 5 18 F 58 Exchange losses, net (18,392) (4,571)
AT EFAEBSHNEREERN (Loss)/gain on changes in fair value of financial assets
RTEZH(FE), W at FVPL (11,548) 1,304
350,174 314,105
(i) BT 48 Bh 48 5B H5 14 3 05 BT W B B (i) The total government grants represented the subsidies received from
7 48 B A B EY %5 B o the local government and no specific conditions were attached to them.
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BE_ZT-_—_F+-A=1+—HILFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

6. BRBLAT(EBE)
45 R 8 A 2 13 B (U

18), s R

A 6.

after charging:

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's (loss)/profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at

—=-— —E-—F
2022 2021
B e ARET AR%TT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BEERIAX(BEEER Employee benefit expenses
BEITHRAB®H M) (HEEs) (including directors' and chief executive's
remuneration (note 8))
ITERYN < Wages and salaries 513,430 513,841
BRINEETEIER Pension scheme contributions (i) 96,016 94,325
&5 Welfares 19,040 18,588
DARRAD B BB~ R Share-based payments 89,666 59,350
718,152 686,104
BEFERAK Cost of inventories sold (i) 693,608 607,903
MR MRS Research and development expenses (i) 936,581 868,069
Y - BB R EITE) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (i) (iii) 36,194 36,106
BEYEIE) Depreciation of investment properties (ii) 15 8,292 7,904
A& EITE) Depreciation of right-of-use assets (ii) (iii) 31,980 23,472
B E () Amortisation of intangible assets (ii) (iii) 22,684 31,070
HEWE  BERERENEIR Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2,663 2,411
HE®EFEENEE Loss on disposal of intangible assets 23,537 -
E - BERRERE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 14 1,130,627 =
B EERE Impairment of intangible assets 18 113,138 131,297
"EMERE Impairment of investment properties 15 772 =
FREEERE Impairment of right-of-use assets 16 84,510 -
EERE Impairment of goodwill 17 8,761 -
fFAEREIRNIRE RE Impairment of investment accounted for
using the equity method 21 389,311 -
B 5 MEmEWERFOREE R Impairment losses of trade and other receivables 25 28,443 36,509
WRIFEZR#RFE Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 90,778 9,047
AT ATHEBBEFEMNHEENI  Lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities 7,823 8,113
b 5 & 1R F 58 Exchange losses, net 18,392 4,571
ZERH & Auditor’s remuneration 4,200 5,000
WITFES Bank charges 3,055 2,109

(i EREEX AEER

=

—F-- ()

There are no forfeited contributions at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil)

T A=1+—BEAREELR
REFRARFUKFEHE QUK
(ZZE=—F ) -

that may be used by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions in the future years.

iy —ZTBEZZ—ER-ZE-_—%+=-H (i)
=+T—HRAREERAEAENY
¥ BELRE FAREERE
WEEFNE BHT N REEER
EmemBarn BEEFEMRA]
R TR -
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The depreciation/amortisation of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets for manufacturing and research
function for 31 December 2022 and 2021 is included in “Cost of
inventories sold” and “R&D expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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6. BRBAI(ER) R &) 6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

(i) WELCEEBOWE  BWE KK (i)  Depreciation/amortisation of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
B CRAREEMEREAENT use assets, and intangible assets from continuing operations:
E i
—E-C—F —E - —F
2022 2021
ARETT AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FFAC: Included in:
Paki=17i53 Distribution expenses 39 74
1THRAX Administrative expenses 90,819 90,574
7. HBHAX 7. FINANCE EXPENSES
BHELEEBOVBRISTET - An analysis of finance expenses from continuing operations is as follows:
—E-C—F —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET T AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
UTEREHNFERX : Interest expenses on:
AT BERTT R EALE R (FIEE34) Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 34) 58,748 42,779
BB A mIR% 17 H B =] & & (B 7E30) Redemption liabilities on subsidiaries’ shares (note 30) 151,529 89,283
HEABEEE6) Lease liabilities (note 16) 2,754 815
FRATEFABENEREE Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at
FEFRX 8% fair value through profit or loss 213,031 132,877
B BARERFE Less: Interest capitalised (1,855) (15,526)
211,176 117,351

4 fE %R %5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 [ 195



B RS ek
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. EERSARTHAEMNE 8. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
B FTTR A - B A B 6655 383(1) Directors’ and executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
@~ (b): OROEARAT(HEEEF Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
HEREOE 2N EEER SKT Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
BAEERNFMMT : Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
—E-—F T —F
2022 2021
AR¥T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fees 1,056 966
Hig : Other emoluments:
e Salaries 14,860 21,220
RAKEBFTEIE Pension scheme contributions 46 45
TEAL Bonus 898 -
H A BL & BN & Other allowances and benefits in kind 143 73
VAR 45 S ) B SRR T =2 Equity-settled share option expense 934 4,591
17,937 26,895

196

FA- RARBARFBRE SRS
TEERHBERE  URFHEULEHE
MR - FIEERN M IS IRAM TE28 © %
EEEE(CREBMNBE AR M
RFPEERRLAREE - AFEHMH
BRABSHEHINLAEER KT
A BHF B S -

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 28 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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(a) BUFHITEER
FRXN FELENTERNRS

EERERITHRAENH 8.

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year

mr were as follows:

LUREEEM
we B IR RERA X #5t

Equity-settled

share option
Fees expense Total
AR¥T T AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

T 2022

FEELE Mr. Patrick Sun 352 110 462
el Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 352 110 462
KEL Dr. Zhu Xun 352 110 462
1,056 330 1,386

VARR ¥ 45 5 1Y
ke RERRRE A 2 Bt

Equity-settled

share option
Fees expense Total
ARBTFT ARBTFT AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

—E—— 2021

FEEFELE Mr. Patrick Sun 343 725 1,068
I S A Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong 343 725 1,068
KL Dr. Zhu Xun 280 725 1,005
966 2,175 3,141

FABBRBIERTESZHHE
e (ZF=—F : &) -

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2021: Nil).

F [Z ¥ 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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8. EEREGRITHAEWNF 8. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

EH (&) (continued)
(b) HITES - kHITEERE (b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
SITHAE chief executive
Bifhe DRELEEN
ik e SRR A Htt BRERX it
Pension Equity-settled
scheme share option
Fee Salaries contribution Bonus Other expense Total

ARBTRE  ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARBTR ARE®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

—F-zC 2022

WITESR: Executive directors:
BEE Dr. Che Fengsheng - 7,000 - = = = 7,000
PhHR Dr. Guo Weicheng - 3,150 - = = = 3,150
RMEE Dr. Zhang Jionglong = 727 15 - - - 742
BRBEE Mr. Choi Yiau Chong* - 2,259 13 - - - 2,272
BREL L L Ms. Chen Yanling - 1,232 15 308 100 147 1,802
BRBRL** Ms. Miao Guili** - 492 3 590 43 457 1,585

14,860 46 898 143 604 16,551
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M =)

(b) BITEE - FAUTEERR

B 165 e 2k P
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-_F__F+-A=1t—HLEFE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and the

BITBAE®) chief executive (continued)
el WREEER
ik e HEEE fEa Hih BRER 6y
Pension Equity-settled
scheme share option
Fees Salaries  contributions Bonus Other expense Total
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
“T-—fF 2021
HIEE: Executive directors:
BEARE Dr. Che Fengsheng - 10,000 - - - - 10,000
DlHEE Dr. Guo Weicheng = 6,000 = = = = 6,000
RiMERE Dr. Zhang Jionglong - 831 15 = = = 846
BRERLE Mr. Choi Yiau Chong* = 2,987 15 = - 1,450 4,452
BER LT Ms. Chen Yanling = 1,402 15 = 73 966 2,456
= 21,220 45 = 73 2,416 23754
FanEs: Non-executive director:
SEE L Mr. Kim Jin Ha*** - - - - - - -
- 21,220 45 - 73 2,416 23,754
@ BEREEER-_ZT-__F1A * Mr. Choi Yiau Chong was resigned as an executive director and the chief

* %

* %k

TEABRERDANATEER
BREMBERI

BRBZITR _T_-_—_F+A
TLtREZFARDRINNITE
EREEMBE °

SHEELEAEN T -_—F)\AX
ABEAAARFFENITESR -

FARBEELARSTHRABNE
SR BREEAHFM 5

finance officer of the Company on 17 October 2022.

it Ms. Miao Guili was appointed as an executive director and the chief
finance officer of the Company on 17 October 2022.

**%  Mr. Kim Jin Ha was resigned as a non-executive director of the Company
on 6 August 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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9. IERGHEE 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FR IAReHFEERE=Z28% (= The five highest paid employees during the year included three director (2021:
T—F:ZHESF)  EFEHFBEIR three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
FXHES - FRANBTRA (T —— Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2021: two)
F:MB)WIIERRRZEESRSITEHA highest paid employees who are not a director nor chief executive of the
BNEEFEENHFIEEIIHAT : Company are as follows:
—E-C—F —E - —F
2022 2021
AR®TT AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
e R REYMHE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,534 3,854
BERAIELL Performance related bonuses 1,801 1,222
LA RS #E 45 & ) BE IS RE B 2 Equity-settled share option expense - 2,563
BIREBEEIMER Pension scheme contributions - 50
6,335 7,689
FHN T THENR=HES (FES The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
RIFSEHITBAB)ABAT : whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
3,000,001 7T 3,500,000/ 7 HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 1 1
4,000,001 7E 54,500,000 7T HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 1 -
5,500,001/% 7 %6,000,000/% 7 HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 - 1
2 2
BHE_ET-_—_F#R_ZFTE_-_—F+_A4 For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no payments had been
=+—HLIEE AEFBWEAMESK made by the Group to the directors or the highest paid individuals in respect
SEHMMA TR E A Sk mEEs of an inducement to join or compensation for loss of office, and no directors
B NRIE T EESS s S 5 or the highest paid individuals waived any of the emoluments.

ATHERBEFNERME -
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AEBHE-_T_—_FR-_T=_—F

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

B HS R Mo
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_T-_—_F+-_A=1+—HILFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The income tax expense of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022

T A=+ —HALFENMESHRAXS and 2021 is analysed as follows:
AT
—E-C—F —E - —F
2022 2021
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BREAR 1A Current tax 98,454 290,432
RIEFIIE (M15E33) Deferred tax (note 33) 98,340 (37,313)
KEBERESEBHNFEATIE Total tax charge for the year from continuing operations
i 458 196,794 253,119
REBRIEEEEBNFRATRIE Total tax charge for the year from discontinued operations
i 458 141 160
196,935 253,279
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BE-Z-_—F+-A=+—RALFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

10. FREBLRA X () 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
REERBAT(EER) 5 f B 1E E i The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax differs from the theoretical
AEARAEHER G EERRTE amount that would arise from using the statutory tax rate applicable to profits
IEREGETR - &AW of the consolidated entities as follows:
—E-C—F —E - —F
2022 2021
AR®TT AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRELAT(E1R), SR T (Loss)/profit before tax (2,086,341) 486,049
KEFELSSER From continuing operations (2,122,778) 496,013
REBRIHEEER From discontinued operations 36,437 (9,964)
A EMR R ERNTIA Tax at the statutory tax rates (504,771) 121,512
THEE R E Tax effects of:
—E BRI AR RS E R — Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (11,490) (59,119)
—HIEERENRENTE — Effect of tax concessions and exemptions (19,602) (344,811)
— AR — Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 97,219 1,073
—AHEAAERA BB EAF ) — Adjustments recognised in the period for
T current tax of prior periods 24,338 30,685
— B RIE S E YR ER B 2 — Effect on opening deferred tax of increase in rates - 3,666
—RBALDEMBERARAEF KL - Profits and losses attributable to joint ventures
E518 and associates 17,830 37,868
—EAMTBUA — Income not subject to tax (65,645) (4,733)
— KR IERE — Tax losses not recognised 659,056 467,138
FisfiA X Income tax expense 196,935 253,279
KA EREEENERNTIE Total tax charge for the year from continuing operations
M 8% 196,794 253,119
REBKRIEREEBHFATIE Total tax charge for the year from discontinued operations
M 8% 141 160
BRENEH Bermuda profits tax
REBFENEZ DA R B ARREM The Group was not subject to any taxation in this jurisdiction during the year
ME(CZ——F: &) (2021: Nil).
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EaaERR (S REER)NRITH
BEEBREH
BEENMEGRNRENERBEENME
JERBORFAKRE16.5% (T = —4F :
16.5% ) FHE & - HAbib[= ) R R
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R )RITHEE -

FEIERASH((HECRME
Bl
PECEMEGHERSARAEENR
IR e B A M FERBUR A (AR B
BRERERERRBAT IR P AR
EMSBIMIRR ) FHREE -
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B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

United States of America profits tax

Pursuant to Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“TCJA") enacted on December 22, 2017,
the US federal statutory income tax rate for the subsidiary is 21%. The
subsidiary in the US was incorporated in the state of Texas with no income tax.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries (or jurisdictions) in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries (or jurisdictions) in which the Group operates.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT")

PRC CIT is provided on the assessable income of the companies now
comprising the Group derived from the PRC, adjusted for those items which
are not assessable or deductible for the PRC CIT purposes.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group have determined and paid the corporate
income tax in accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC at
the tax rate of 25%.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group were qualified as high-tech enterprises.

Accordingly, those subsidiaries’ corporate income tax for 2022 and 2021 was
provided at the rate of 15%.
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BE-Z-_—F+-A=+—RALFE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

M. CRIEEEEK

—E-—F  ARAMBRAEMAIE
EIERAR(EMHAE])BBLE
RIERBE A B L BRI AR AR (B
AR ARBARKERER DA
(AR D) REMEEBLCTERAA
(TEMEE ) PR (i [ 28R
IHEEEB DRRER - R-T-_—F
TZA=+—H  BRLELEXBTE
ARE BRI 5 HRE

BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—BLHEE
M2 —-F-—HEHEEHH
fil - BRI EEBHEEZIMT ¢

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In 2022, the Company’s subsidiary, Jilin Shengtong Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin
Shengtong”) passed a resolution on disposals of all the equity interests
in Beijing Lianben Pharm-chemicals Tech. Co., Ltd. (“Lianben Chemical”),
Beijing Lianben Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“Lianben Technology”)
and Jilin Jiahui Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Jiahui”), (collectively “discontinued
operations”). As at 31 December 2022, the discontinued operations were
excluded from the financial statements of the Group.

The results of the discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the period from 1 January 2022 to the disposal dates are presented
below:

—E-C—F —E - —F

2022 2021

AR T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

W =5 Revenue 199,474 252,879

SHE A Cost of sales (159,138) (234,851)

sz Expenses (36,169) (27,992)

& Wam Gain on disposal 32,270 -

BrAi AR A (E518) Profit/(loss) before tax 36,437 (9,964)
FRig#i : Income tax:

BRABRTIATEE Related to pre-tax loss (141) (160)

B/ EREH(EE) Profit/(loss) for the period/year 36,296 (10,124)
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M. BERLEREER 2 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
ERIEEEEBEENR S REFEN The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operations were as follows:
T
—E-—HF —E - —F
2022 2021
ARETT AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KEEH Operating activities 27,482 28,582
LEEE Investing activities (3,480) (524)
& RS Financing activities (11,783) (20,653)
BERANFEE Net cash inflow 12,219 7,405
TRER,(E8) Earnings/(loss) per share:
ERCREBRILELEER) Basic, from the discontinued operations 0.38% cents (0.07)% cents
BE(REERILEEER) Diluted, from the discontinued operations 0.38% cents (0.07)% cents
ERIEREEBENERERNRESE The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share from
(B8 et B &R - discontinued operations are based on:
—E-CHF —E-—F
2022 2021
ERIEGEXEBNE R RER Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity
EEEHEARMEER,(EE) holders of the parent from the discontinued
(AR®EFIT) operations (RMB’000) 34,672 (6,356)
HEGREREN,(ER)FAEAN  Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
BT @R INE T8 issue during the year used in the basic
(FA%) (FFE13) earnings/(loss) per share calculation
(Share’000) (note 13) 9,329,999 9,431,297
TESREERET(EEB)FTR Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TmAR e T8 used in the diluted earnings/(loss) per share
(FR&) (Ht3E13) calculation (Share’000) (note 13) 9,336,768 9,483,383
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12. R 2 12. DIVIDENDS
N —E-—FRMNBOKE The dividends paid in 2022 and 2021 were RMB1,315,530,000 and
S RlAARER1,315,530,0007T kA R RMB123,054,000, respectively. A final cash dividend for the year ended 31
123,054,0007C - EEE&EZ  HE-T December 2022 of RMB298,560,000 was recommended by the Board and
T+ A=+ —RALFEREBRS will be subject to approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
&2 A AR 298,560,0007T « HEERA Company.

RAEREBRRBFERG LEGHAE -

REEZ RN ELRMN TARRFHEES AL Dividends approved and paid to owners of the Company during the year:
SN
—E-—F — B
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REAERRKN T =—4F Final 2021 dividend of RMB1.3 cents
NEAREBREBRARE1.35 (2021: Final dividend for 2020 of RMB1.3 cents)
- —F: ZZTFEREKE  per ordinary share declared and
AR¥1.35) paid during the year 121,290 123,054
RERNT KSR Special cash dividend of RMB9.5 cents (2021: Nil),
HRIREREARKISH declared and paid during the year
—E_—F:F) 886,350 -
REAE IR RS HR S Interim dividend of RMBO.1 cents (2021: Nil),
ARBOAID(ZE_—F : T) declared and paid during the year 9,330 -
RERNET K MR A HB Interim special cash dividend of RMB3.2 cents (2021: Nil),
HRIREREARK3.2H declared and paid during the year
—E_—F:F) 298,560 -
1,315,530 123,054
FARZZARARE : Dividends proposed by the Company for the year:
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BN SR B G EA Proposed final cash dividend of RMB3.2 cents
ARB3 2D (ZB=—%: (2021: RMB1.3 cents) per ordinary share
AR¥135) 298,560 121,290
EREFAIR SRS FRE B Proposed special cash dividend of Nil
T(ZE=-—F: AR¥95%) (2021: RMB9.5 cents) per ordinary share - 886,350
298,560 1,007,640
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13.

BR(EE) BF

BRER(ER) BISBEHIREFA
AABEBERES ARG (ER) &
& B AR 1,914,918,000 7t ( =
T = —F % F AR 416,509,000
T)RFREBEEHETEARMETY
£ 9,329,999,000 ik ( = T = — % :
9,431,297,0000%) 5+ & -

BREE(BE) BISEDRGAES
BEAR(EBER)  BINFARRR LR
A AEE(BR) CRFEE o &t
HE R SRR mEF OB ARNE
BREXR(BE) /BAIOFABBTYE
BIRBE  YRRMEEEREEER
REETERBRAEBREARET
BT E BB INE TR -

FRERREE(BER) BHIHETE
BURRTE -

B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is based on
the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of loss RMB1,914,918,000 (2021: profit RMB416,509,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 9,329,999,000 (2021:
9,431,297,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted (loss)/earnings per share amount is based on
the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, as used in the basic (loss)/earnings per share calculation. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic (loss)/
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are based on:

—E-—F — B
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&58) BF (Loss)/earnings
BIEAtEEREALRBE(ER),/ (Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
BAHARRAREBEREE A of the Company, used in the basic and
FEE (E518) /4 F diluted (loss)/earnings per share calculation
KEFELSSER From continuing operations (1,949,590) 422,865
REBRIHEEER From discontinued operations 34,672 (6,356)
RATEBERES ARG (Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
(1), a7 of the Company (1,914,918) 416,509
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13. 8 (E58) ZF») 13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
—EC-C—F —E - —F
2022 2021
TR TFh&
Shares’000 Shares'000
gy Shares
REREARN(BE) BFMEH Weighted average number of ordinary shares
BT AR N S & in issue for basic (loss)/earnings per share 9,329,999 9,431,297
BEyE TR MNETHE : Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
RE AR Share options 6,769 52,086
9,336,768 9,483,383
BE-_ZT-_—_F#+-_A=+—B8BI#&E The calculation of diluted loss per share has not considered shares options
B A EEREEEERIL SRR under the share option scheme of the Company as the inclusion would be
AAIBRETEETHERE  Ha® anti-dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2022.
HEt A EEREERE -
—E-C—F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR AR
RMB RMB
FIRER(BE) BT Basic (loss)/earnings per share
FR(EE),EF For (loss)/profit for the year (20.52) % cents 4.42 %cents
RABESEER 2 (BEB),%F For (loss)/profit from continuing operations (20.90) % cents 4.49 7ycents
GRS (BE) BT Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
FR(EE),EF For (loss)/profit for the year (20.52) % cents 4.39 %cents
REFBEREEB 2 (BB),EF For (loss)/profit from continuing operations (20.90) % cents 4.46 % cents
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

£ER
BT EFRE BARE RE EEIRE @t
Production
and
electronic Office Motor  Construction
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
AR%T R ARBT T AR%TR AR®T T AR%TR AR%T R
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000
RZZ-—F+-F=+—H At31 December 2021 and
k—E-—F—f—H: at 1 January 2022:
5% Cost 2,956,393 1,199,930 49,773 38,428 819,924 5,064,448
ZHTERAME Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (1,011,204) (675,416) (43,834) (29,065) - (1,759,519)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,945,189 524,514 5,939 9,363 819,924 3,304,929
RZE==%—-H—H At 1 January 2022, net of
Nk 2 ERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 1,945,189 524,514 5,939 9,363 819,924 3,304,929
R Additions 53,381 169,599 4,308 345 250,941 478,574
EEAEETR Transfer from construction
in progress 631,889 87,458 4,651 - (723,998) -
HE Disposals (3,241) (10,357) (3,269) (149) - (17,016)
A (FTEE19) Impairment (i) (note 19) (902,745) (178,137) (1,136) (4,745) (43,864) (1,130,627)
HENB AR (P:E37) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) (18,896) (17,036) (360) (132) = (36,424)
BEREREYE Transfer to investment properties (5,854) - - - - (5,854)
WERY Depreciation charge (136,342) (150,439) (3,608) (2,234) - (292,623)
R-ZE-—&+-§ At 31 December 2022, net of
=t+—H8 MBRE accumulated depreciation
WERRE and impairment 1,563,381 425,602 6,525 2,448 303,003 2,300,959
RZZZZF+-A=1—H: At31 December 2022:
5% Cost 3,595,527 1,414,551 53,506 36,866 346,867 5,447,317
ZEMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (2,032,146) (988,949) (46,981) (34,418) (43,864) (3,146,358)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,563,381 425,602 6,525 2,448 303,003 2,300,959

4 fE R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 209



B HSERR Mot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_Z_—F#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

14. 9%  BERRZE =

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

EER
BF BFR YN AE EEITR 5
Production
and
electronic Office Motor  Construction
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles in progress Total
AREFT ARBTFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZE-THEF+-F=+—H At 31 December 2020 and
k=Z=—%—-A—H: at 1 January 2021:
5% Cost 2,763,000 1,059,338 47,609 40,236 680,284 4,590,467
ZEMERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (894,377) (571,169) (41,940) (29,693) - (1,537,179)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,868,623 488,169 5,669 10,543 680,284 3,053,288
R-E-_—%—A—H8" At 1 January 2021, net of
Nk 2T ERRE accumulated depreciation
and impairment 1,868,623 488,169 5,669 10,543 680,284 3,053,288
R Additions 7,695 49,600 2,346 2,165 548,229 610,035
RAEEEHAE Additions due to business
combinations - 2,995 534 - - 3,529
EEAEETR Transfer from construction in
progress 186,418 111,892 217 7 (298,534) -
HeE Disposals (469) (4,242) (5 (828) - (5,544)
RIELE—RHBAA Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (89) (23) 31 (86) (110,055) (110,284)
TERZ Depreciation charge (116,989) (123,877) (2,791) (2,438) = (246,095)
R-ZE-—&+=-8 At 31 December 2021, net of
=t—8 " KR&t accumulated depreciation
WERRE and impairment 1,945,189 524,514 5,939 9,363 819,924 3,304,929
RZE-—F+-A=F—H: At 31 December 2021:
B AR Cost 2,956,393 1,199,930 49,773 38,428 819,924 5,064,448
ZAMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (1,011,204) (675,416) (43,834) (29,065) - (1,759,519)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,945,189 524,514 5,939 9,363 819,924 3,304,929
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14. 9%  BERRZRE =

() HARBETENIIIFEFNAEE
BRORH - NEEHBARER
EZESETHEENRRERE
ﬁﬁv%i%iimﬁamﬁ—
WAl AEBEWRT
?EEI&W%E1@*%M@
B URBE-ZT-_—_F+=A
=+-BUEFEHESREBBEAR
#£38,884,0007T ° R EEE SRR
TEREREEBE#EITHE +
FTAERE S E L BAARMERR
o

R-B-—_F+-RA=+—HNERET
RIEFEETEAMBETART

R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 ' x&HE
im ARG AR 42 A 49 A R #5756,447,000
T(ZE-—F+-A=+—H: AR¥
209,011,00070) & THEFH A EE
(IREFMAEEE] - ARAESRA
ZIS%IEEa kRS EEMAREL&EE
BRY - B TEHAEENERLLEE
EEMERTHEE -

RZEZZF+-A=+—8 " UK
SEEmAE AR 1,052,599,0007T
ZEZ—F+ZA=1+—H: ARK
802,340,0007T) M2 - BB R 1E
A -

B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(i) Due to the fierce competition within the pharmaceutical industry and
the limitation of the Group’s resource, the management of the Group’s
subsidiary considered the future return rate of certain projects was low
and decided to discontinue further development of the aforementioned
projects. Accordingly, the Group recognised full impairment loss for the
carrying values of certain construction in progress and an impairment
loss amounting to RMB38,884,000 was recorded during the year ended
31 December 2022. This amount of impairment loss was assessed based
on the individual-asset level, and was not included in the impairment
testing based on CGUs.

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2022 mainly comprised buildings
being constructed in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2022, the ownership certificates of certain buildings
("Building Ownership Certificates”) of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately RMB756,447,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB209,011,000) had not been obtained by the Group. The directors of the
Company consider that there is no legal restriction for the Group to apply for
and obtain the Building Ownership Certificates and it should not lead to any
significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, mortgages over the Group's property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate carrying value of RMB1,052,599,000 (31
December 2021: RMB802,340,000).
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15. REY X

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—E-C—F —E - —F

2022 2021

AR®TT AREBFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BF BF

Buildings Buildings

R—A—BWEAEE Carrying amount at 1 January 224,269 232,173
EEAWE - BENEE(HE14) Transfers from property, plant and equipment (note 14) 5,854 =
BEMEE19) Impairment (note 19) (772) -
ERX Depreciation charge (8,292) (7,904)
Rt A=+—HMEEE Carrying amount at 31 December 221,059 224,269

212

FEENKRENEELEHERHET
B R S ER R E R BB M (E
B E - WA HRITENERRE
&I -

REMERBELEHELHATE=T
HAgE— S FBERRAR MR 16

AEBMWR-_ZE-_—_F+-_A=+—82
BEWEZ AN FEHAREA433,142,000
T(ZE-—%+-A=+—8: AR%
364,448,0007T) IR A AR EELRE
FEEMEZGAMEET  BRE2EA
FEFEBAR -

The Group’s investment properties consist of six commercial properties
in Mainland China and two commercial properties in Hong Kong under
operating lease arrangements and are stated at cost less depreciation and any
impairment.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 16 to the Financial
Statements.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties of approximately
RMB433,142,000 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
RMB364,448,000) has been determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to the estimated market values of similar properties, which is in level
2 fair value measurement hierarchy.
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HE

REBEEREBEA

AEEEETRBTRAREXBZEN
BFOHEESL - DA EL —REN
FARMEETWERE T BHA25E
50F - MBRBEZ ST BEENET - 1§
TEBBEMEMRIE - HERTHOMR
H—RR2E6F - —RME - AEET
ARARBENIIATEZERDHEHEEE
B BN

B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

16. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for buildings and buildings used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the owners with lease periods of 25 to 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of
buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 6 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group. Further details are as follows:

(a) EHEEE (a) Right-of-use assets
FAREEFHAELEENREAEN The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
BEIINT - movements during the year are as follows:
HEL i By st
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
AR¥T T AR¥TF T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE=-——F—H—H As at 1 January 2021 784,083 3,890 787,973
NE Additions 41,847 35,077 76,924
WERX Depreciation charge (19,275) (4,197) (23,472)
AL EMRB ARz HEEE Disposals as a result of disposal of subsidiaries (53,652) - (53,652)
R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H Asat 31 December 2021 and

k=T —_F—HF—H 1 January 2022 753,003 34,770 787,773
NE Additions 11 33,513 33,524
TERX Depreciation charge (19,062) (12,918) (31,980)

RHEMBARZHESRIE  Disposals as a result of disposal of
(FF3E37) subsidiaries (note 37) (6,197) (744) (6,941)
ABEEREz HEEE Disposals as a result of lease cancellation = (499) (499)
A (MIEE19) Impairment (note 19) (84,510) = (84,510)
R-ZZE-—F+-_H=+—H Asat 31 December 2022 643,245 54,122 697,367
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BE_Z_—F#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

16. HE #)

REBMEREEA @)

(b) HEAME

FAHERGENREERZESH N

16. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the

T year are as follows:
—=-— — T —F
2022 2021
AR T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—A—BNEEE Carrying amount at 1 January 36,656 3,951
HEE New leases 33,513 35,077
FRE R EILIE Accretion of interest recognised during the year 2,754 815
INE: Payments (12,620) (3,187)
AtEHBARZHEERA Disposals as a result of disposal of subsidiaries (741) =
AEERCE HESIE Disposals as a result of lease cancellation (522) =
R+ZA=+—HrEEE Carrying amount at 31 December 59,040 36,656
DA - Analysed into:
mENE S Current portion 13,184 5,193
SEmENEL D Non-current portion 45,856 31,463
—E-C-& —E-—fF
2022 2021
BRFIE -V ES
(%) I8 AR®TR (%) AH AREFT
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
RE Current
HEBE Lease liabilities 4.75 2023 13,184 4.75 2022 5,193
FRE Non-current
HEAR Lease liabilities 4.75 2024-2027 45,856 4.75  2023-2027 31,463

HEABENIHEDTRHBHRE
MEE42.1(c) R EE -

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42.1(c) to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-_F__F+-A=1t—HLEFE

16. fHE (%) 16. LEASES (continued)
AEBERERBEAE) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) HEZFHERNEEREZREN (c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as
T follows:
—E-= — T —F
2022 2021
AR T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEABHEA Interest on lease liabilities 2,754 815
FREEENERY Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 31,980 23,472
B HAE MR EEA S EEMRBN  Expense relating to short-term leases and leases of low-
B (G AEERARS) value assets (included in cost of sales and expenses) 7,823 8,113
FREEERE Impairment of right-of-use assets 84,510 -
BaPERFIERLE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 127,067 32,400

(d) FEEMR SR @R E KRS
W ERBNARES LSRR
B R & KT 3E36(c) R 38(b) 5T ©

(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows relating to

leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 36(c) and

38(b), respectively, to the financial statements.
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16. HE #)

REEESHEA

AEERBLEESELHEEEREY
E(HME15)  BRETEAMKNER
EMERBENMEFEYE - ZFH
EMBR—REREPNERERESY
REEHRTTAETERESHE -
FRAAEENCERBESWRAR/AR
6,079,000 c(ZT=—F : AR
7,116,0007C ) - & 15 &R B 7% R MY
5 e

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H HER
SEREEEABAFZTRBECERS
R FEUCR B IR EZIBIT ¢

16. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of six
commercial properties in Mainland China and two commercial properties
in Hong Kong under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB6,079,000 (2021:
RMB7,116,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

—E-—F —E-—%F

2022 2021

AR¥T AREBTFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F R Within one year 9,578 5,141
—FAEEMFUAR After one year but within two years 6,697 4,331
MEA EB=FNURA After two years but within three years 2,965 518
=FAEBNFAR After three years but within four years 542 486
PE EBRENRA After four years but within five years 542 470
AFUE After five years 316 823
20,640 11,769
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BE_T_—_Ft+t-A=t—HLFHE

17. &8 17. GOODWILL
AR¥T
RMB’000
RZZE=—F—H—H: At 1 January 2021:
AN Cost 2,891,332
REURIE Accumulated impairment (2,879,020)
BRESFE Net carrying amount 12,312
RZZZ—F—A—HHEAE - kR REHRE Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated impairment 12,312
HAEBEHIE(KET)) Additions due to business combinations (Restated) 1,853
R-ZE-——F+=-A=+—H(KEY) At 31 December 2021 (Restated) 14,165
R-ZTBE-_—F+-A=+—HB(KE) : At 31 December 2021 (Restated):
DN Cost 2,893,185
RERE Accumulated impairment (2,879,020)
AR TEDFHE Net carrying amount 14,165
RZZE-—_F— A —HHKA KR E:REE Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated impairment 14,165
B A A Disposal of a subsidiary (3,551)
BB (FTEE19) Impairment (note19) (8,761)
R-B-—&F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2022 1,853
R-E-_—_F+-A=+—8: At 31 December 2022:
XA Cost 2,889,634
Z2ERE Accumulated impairment (2,887,781)
REFE Net carrying amount 1,853
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BE_Z_—F#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

18. B EE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ETH BE
EmpR BB A BERERG EFmH% st
Product Deferred Trademark
development development and Customer
in progress costs software relationships Total
ARET T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
RZZE-ZTF+=-A At 31 December 2020 and
=+—HKE=-F-—%  at1January 2021:
—A—AR:
%N Cost 425,722 1,504,661 40,523 433,932 2,404,838
R 3 Accumulated amortisation - (551,862) (28,146) (433,932) (1,013,940)
B Impairment (123,630) (758,098) (3,549) = (885,277)
BEHEFE Net carrying amount 302,092 194,701 8,828 - 505,621
WZZ-—F—F—HHK Costat 1 January 2021,
B - IR Rtk net of accumulated
RE amortization and
impairment 302,092 194,701 8,828 - 505,621
NE Additions 117,537 - 7,028 - 124,565
REBEHAE Additions due to business
(5= E5|) combinations (Restated) 122,073 - 21,037 - 143,110
AT Amortisation charge - (30,402) (1,494) = (31,896)
RE Impairment (131,297) = = = (131,297)
WZZ = —%F+= F=+—Net carrying amount at
HEBREFE(ZEF]) - 31 December 2021
(Restated) 410,405 164,299 35,399 - 610,103
RZZBE-_—%+=8 At 31 December 2021
=+—H (Restated):
(& E7)) :
A Cost 665,332 1,504,661 68,588 433,932 2,672,513
ESE 3 Accumulated amortisation - (582,264) (29,640) (433,932) (1,045,836)
WA Impairment (254,927) (758,098) (3,549) - (1,016,574)
REFE Net carrying amount 410,405 164,299 35,399 - 610,103
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BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

ETH B
Emp% BERA BERRMY EFBF @t
Product Deferred Trademark
development development and Customer
in progress costs software relationships Total
ARBTF T ARBT T AR®T T AR¥ET R ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE-—%+=A At 31 December 2021 and
=t+—HRERZZE_Z at 1 January 2022
—RA—B(&EF) : (Restated):
%N Cost 665,332 1,504,661 68,588 433,932 2,672,513
REEH Accumulated amortisation - (582,264) (29,640) (433,932) (1,045,836)
HE Impairment (254,927) (758,098) (3,549) - (1,016,574)
REFE Net carrying amount 410,405 164,299 35,399 - 610,103
RZZE-—F—HA—HHK Costat 1 January 2022,
BRI 258K net of accumulated
A amortisation and
impairment 410,405 164,299 35,399 - 610,103
NE Additions 173,600 - 17,878 - 191,478
He Disposal (24,575) - (303) - (24,878)
BT Amortisation charge - (31,034) (5,878) = (36,912)
) (P EE19) Impairment (i) (note 19) (3,912) (103,916) (5,310) = (113,138)
HREETPERMZE  Transfer from product
development in progress (3.200) 3,200 - - -
HEMB R Disposal of subsidiaries - (191) - - (191)
N-ZE-—F+=8 Net carrying amount at
=+—BeREFE 31 December 2022 552,318 32,358 41,786 - 626,462
R-ZB-_—F+-8 At 31 December 2022
=t+—H
AR Cost 811,157 1,506,808 86,163 433,932 2,838,060
g £ Accumulated amortisation - (612,436) (35,518) (433,932) (1,081,886)
B Impairment (258,839) (862,014) (8,859) - (1,129,712)
BRHEHE Net carrying amount 552,318 32,358 41,786 - 626,462
10) MR BT BENAEEER (i) Due to the fierce competition within the pharmaceutical industry and the

limitation of the Group's resource, the management of the Group considered the
future return rate of certain projects was low and decided to discontinue further
development of the aforementioned projects. Accordingly, the Group recognised
full impairment loss for the carrying values of certain product development in
progress and an impairment loss amounting to RMB3,912,000 in relation to the
generic medicine segment was recorded during the year ended 31 December
2022. This amount of impairment loss was assessed based on the individual-asset
level, and was not included in the impairment testing based on CGUs.

RRE - AEEEREZEEETHEE
BARRERERIK - REE I EBA
WE—PFRE - Bt AEEBRTE
FEEETHESRMAZENEEERZZ
HRERL  UERBEE-ZT_—F+=
A=t+—BALFEHMLHENEREN
8152 55 70 # R B 18 K AR #3,912,000
T e BEMREBRDEREREE
BEETTE  TRSEERESES
B AYRERIEF o
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BE_Z_—F#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

19. %ﬁiﬁ%(@ﬁ%%)iﬂiﬁ
=

EEENRERFERSELENNER
HBEEATRENR - BRXBEHIK
BB st ER R D R E U BN
BRAR(RASCELEN) - BRETEL
B A O R RE A EETEAE
E o ZATEEDEREEEMMERE
BEEFHNMBRBEERKARSRER
RIEHE o BlEFHARNERSRERNK
AT 58 R R T HEE - R K
BELROELENLEEMBRE LXK
M REFIGEER

SREXREELBENNRAEE(RRE
FE)REEMN S

=+—H As at 31 December 2022

19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF LONG-TERM ASSETS
INCLUDING GOODWILL

The management performed impairment testing of long-term assets on CGUs
with impairment indicators. Goodwill acquired through business combinations
is allocated to the acquired subsidiaries, which are CGUs, for impairment
testing. The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a fixed-year period approved by management. Cash flows
beyond the fixed-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below. The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the pharmaceutical business in which the CGUs operates.

The carrying amounts of long-term assets including goodwill allocated to each
of the CGUs are as follows:

ALt L ERY 1
[k HEMR BREE & REME @zt
Prepaid Property,
land lease Intangible plantand  Investment
Goodwill payments assets  equipment properties Total

ARBTT ARE®TR ARETR ARETR AR®TRT AR%T:R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

EEMAEEER Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) Co., Ltd.

BRAA - 105,263 17,965 774,713 - 897,941
PRI IR L 2 Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical

BRAA Co., Ltd. - 137,550 34,835 300,803 - 473,188
3t R IR Bl &k Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical

BRAA Co., Ltd. - 35,340 61,319 368,727 - 465,386
= WREE BT L Bk Jilin Huikang Pharmaceutical

BRAA Co., Ltd. - 82,952 856 260,241 - 344,049
REMBES Changchun Xiangtong

BRAF Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. - 4,020 10 98,087 - 102,117
EMERE & Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical

BRAR Co., Ltd - 5,596 23,945 45,357 - 74,898
EMBEICT Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd.

ARAR 8,761 13,642 - 4,236 5,479 32,118
Genesis Genesis 1,853 - 11,350 779 - 13,982
et Total 10,614 384,363 150,280 1,852,943 5,479 2,403,679

220 | MBS EEERREE AR A A SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



19.

RNEE(BEEHE)RE

i N D)

FER-TF+-A=+—HHRS
EXBMNNERAEERCKRBREZ - T
MENEEERETRAEE(BER
B)REARREERSTEBAKAZ

BEIERK

TR AR

EFE

E

X

R :

o

7

AR =

ERERBBEHEESE
BRI - WREER
T A BBRIE R E AT IE 1
RIEHFBE

EEEENBERELY
msERNEDNETEES
ERE -

FRER A ) 4R o3t R
S AR R TR — B o

FRERAMBEIR R B -
I f2 B 4H B8 FE AL B 5 TE R
o EEEMAMAE
K AEE2ERSET
KEMARRERT AR
28 - ERNREBERM
B FERANBREES
BHEA -

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF LONG-TERM ASSETS
INCLUDING GOODWILL (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the CGUs for 31

December 2022. The following describes each key assumption on which

management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment

testing of long-term assets including goodwill:

Projected revenue:

Gross profit margins:

Terminal growth rates:

Discount rates:

Management determined the projected revenue
based on the historical sales performance,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the policy and economic environment.

Management determined budgeted gross profit
margins based on past performance and their
expectations of market development.

The average terminal growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in inflation
rate.

The discount rates used are after tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units. When
determining the estimated discount rate, the
Group used the key parameters by reference to
certain listed companies of the same industry.
Given the nature of the Group’s business, the
discount rates adopted fall within the reasonable
range.
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19. REE(BEBE)RE
e D)
BEARAENAEREELE Y S
BeEABNME  RoB-—FME
BB EORFR A 2 EHE -« FHE
AR E R R RN ¢

19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF LONG-TERM ASSETS
INCLUDING GOODWILL (continued)
For each of the CGUs with a significant amount of long-term assets and

goodwill, gross profit margin, net profit margin, terminal growth rate and
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations in 2022 are as follows:

ERE HIRBR=E R &
Gross Terminal
R-B-_—_F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2022 profit margin growth rate Discount rate
BEEMARERAR AR Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) Co., Ltd. -1% 2% 14%
HMIIRREEH R A A Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. 70% 2% 15%
JERINIR BB R AR Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. 42% 2% 15%
HMERREEBR AT Jilin Huikang Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. 16% 2% 15%
RENBHEEBRAT Changchun Xiangtong
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. -3% 2% 15%
HMURREEFR AT Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd 69% 2% 15%
HEMEBETHER AR Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd. 48% 2% 14%
Genesis Genesis 68% 2% 15%

TN B8 BERAERAN - WE - BE
RiEfE - BEME BELTHAREE
RE 42 HmEEES B ARKS, 761,000
7T - AR #103,916,000 7T - A R#
1,091,743,0007T + AR¥772,0007T * A
R #84,509,0007T & A R#5,310,0007T
ERREIESRPER -

RMGE(BERE) ZREDERSE it
RREREECERAEEREH(EER
S BMBREET RREBET AN
BEITIHENBERET -

During the year, impairment losses of goodwill, deferred development
costs, property, plant and equipment, investment properties, leasehold
land and trademark and software of RMB8,761,000, RMB103,916,000,
RMB1,091,743,000, RMB772,000, RMB84,509,000 and RMB5,310,000 were
recognised in profit or loss respectively.

The impairment of long-term assets including goodwill is based on an
assessment of the impact on prescription and procurement patterns after the
promulgation of the National Catalog of the Second Batch of Drugs under
Close Monitoring of Rational Drug Use (for Chemical Medicines and Biological
Products).
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022, all of which are
unlisted companies.

20 RMB R AIMRE

ARARRZZTEZZF+=ZA=+—HH
MEBARFEEIWT 2B AEEL

MARFE
TR ENGIES £
AEEB TEEHREEBY i B &R HBI(%)
H# &
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
REER(FE)ERAT RARKR BB 10,000%7C 100 -
Sun Moral International (HK) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$10,000
REER(EE)ERAR BRXAHENARE EE 1,000,000 - 87.59
Yaojin International (HK) Limited Medical beauty sales and investment Hong Kong HK$1,000,000
BENREEERAR NP BRI REEER RERL AR 5200,000,0007C - 100
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB200,000,000
in Mainland China
ERORUBEERAR PP BERGREREER hEAL, AR125,000,0007C - 100
Beijing Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB125,000,000
in Mainland China
BENRBEEABRAF R B AR B S RS RN AE#1,000,0007T - 100
Hainan Sihuan Pharmaceutical Information Provision of information support services Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
AYIMRBEFRAR > RPBEREEREEER RERL AR 50,000,0007C - 100
Shenzhen Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB50,000,000
in Mainland China
IREFMBERBRBRAR REAFEMERERL hEAL, AR¥100,000,0007 - 62.39
Xuanzhu Pharma Technology Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D and industrialization of Mainland China RMB100,000,000
innovative medicine
BIRERAREERAF > TA TR B B B8 B R AT HE A, AR 30,000,0007C - 100
Langfang Gaobo Jingband Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical materials Mainland China RMB30,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
ERRAENHARBRRA > T B AR R A B B AR S RERL AR3,600,0007C - 100
Beijing Ao He Research Institute Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB3,600,000
EMORRERRRE R ER SR EER HERH AR62,500,0007C - 100

Jilin Sihuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products
in Mainland China

Mainland China

RMB62,500,000
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20. RMIB R B RE (&)

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EMAL ENGTiEST £
RAEER TEEHREXME i B TfEE HBI(%)
HE B
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
REABERARRA - PP BERGREREER hE AL, AR16,880,0007C - 80
Changchun Xiangtong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB16,880,000
in Mainland China
BOEERERRAR PR B 4 6 8 E FE A AE#7,620,0007T - 87.59
Tonghua Jida Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB7,620,000
in Mainland China
AEEHFREBERRAA P B AR B R EERIHE 1% - 100
Smart Baskets Investment Limited Investment holding in Mainland China British Virgin usD1
Islands
BEFREREERNF R ERE TR B EERNER S HER AE#19,500,0007T - 100
Hainan Litzman Pharmaceutical, Co., Ltd. Project preparation for the manufacture of Mainland China RMB19,500,000
pharmaceutical products in Mainland China
REEFREFRAR RAERREREER FE A, AR#26,875,0007 - 79
Benxi Hengkang Pharmaceutical, Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB26,875,000
in Mainland China
BREREER(LR)AERAF A A B 72 3 4 B 1 E AR60,000,0007T - 51
e-HMO (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Promotion of technology Mainland China RMB60,000,000
in Mainland China
EMORBREXERAR > R AR BRER hEAL, ARH334,440,0007 - 90
Jilin Sihuan Aokang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.  Construction for medical project in Mainland China RMB334,440,000
Mainland China
EMEORRRER AR TR B R B B A, AR#10,300,0007T - 51
Jilin Sihuan Technology Co., Ltd. Promotion of technology in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB10,300,000
ERORERIARBRARAR TR B AU R i hE AL AR#18,870,00070 - 27
Jilin Sihuan Haisikaier Technology Co., Ltd. Promotion of technology in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB18,870,000
EMRRREERRR R ERLREREER HE A, AR#58,500,0007C - 100
Jilin Zhen'ao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB58,500,000
in Mainland China
BRI HEFRAF > RPBERGREREER RERL AR#19,500,0007 - 100

Jilin Jinsheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Manufacture of pharmaceutical products
in Mainland China

Mainland China

RMB19,500,000
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EMAL LNGTiEST £
AEER TEEHREXBE L i B EfEE HBI(%)
HE B
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
ERIBEBEMB (M) ERAF > PR Bl i R B SR R, AE%10,000,0007T = 87.59
Shengke Aesthetic Medicine PharmaSciences  Marketing of medical aesthetic products Mainland China RMB10,000,000
(Jilin) Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
EHMLEREERBR AR e B RiniR & R HE R, AR¥100,000,0007 - 100
Longyu Hongda Investment Management Investment holding in Mainland China Mainland China RMB100,000,000
Co., Ltd.
BRRBEEBRAR I EI A SR B B3 AR50,000,0007T = 100
Xizang Kangxin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB50,000,000
in Mainland China
ERERRERRAR P B i B B E R AR¥30,000,0007C = 100
Jilin Huikang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB30,000,000
in Mainland China
ERFBEIERD R ReERREREER HERH AR¥100,000,0007 - 100
Jilin Shengtong Chemical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB100,000,000
in Mainland China
BILABRARBERR R AP B st £ £ B 3 AR IR, AR¥43,000,0007T = 100
Tonghua Chuangyou Testing Service Co., Ltd.  Provision of R&D services in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB43,000,000
SAMBEBR AR sl ke HERH AR#50,000,0007C - 100
Ambest Pharmaceutical (China) Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services in Mainland China  Mainland China RMB50,000,000
EEMARBERERERAR R B — R RS L Bk B R R PR AR 240,000,000 - 57
Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) Management Provision of general hospital services and Mainland China RMB240,000,000
Co., Ltd. hospital management services in
Mainland China
EMERHERR AR PR Bl S8 T B R AR#28,300,0007T = 51
Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd Manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical Mainland China RMB28,300,000
products in Mainland China
EEMARERARDA R Bl A AR 4 — AR B B PR A IR, AK#240,000,0007C = 57
Xiqu Hospital (Chongging) Co., Ltd. Provision of general hospital services Mainland China RMB240,000,000

in Mainland China
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20. RMIB R B RE (&)

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EMAL LNGTiEST £
AEER TEEHREXBE L i B HEMEX HBI(%)
HE B
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
Radiant (Hong Kong) Investment Limited MERE EBRAES 50,0005 7T - 100
Property investment BVI USD50,000
EWEA BN THERBRAR RRERGEHREER IR, AE#1,000,0007T - 100
Jilin Jinsheng Yingkai Marketing Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB1,000,000
Management Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
HNBERRABRAR REER Hefs 700,000,000% T - 100
Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Technology Ltd.  Investment holding Cayman Islands UsD700,000,000
(B BERRAERAR REZR ) 10,000%7T - 100
Xuanzhu (HK) Biopharmaceutical Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HKD10,000
FHEMRBERHERAA) AR B st £ £ B 38 AR R, AR%450,614,2907T = 62.39
Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical Technology Provision of R&D services in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB450,614,290
Co., Ltd
EMEENREBRAF > NP ERSREREER HE N, AR¥300,000,0007 - 68.47
Jilin Huisheng Biological Pharmaceutical Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB300,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
ERERTERAENREERAR PR B 4 6 B E FE A AR™61,728,4307C = 87.59
Beijing Meiyan Space Biomedical Co., Ltd. Marketing of medical aesthetic products Mainland China RMB61,728,430
in Mainland China
(LR BERBRERA R RUBIHETERER( hEAL AR¥560,000,0007 - 62.39
XuanZhu (Beijing) Pharm Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D and industrialization of Mainland China RMB560,000,000
innovative medicine
REEMEMHBARAR > e Bl R A A 8 AR TS HE A, AK#10,000,0007C - 68.47
Changchun Huisheng Biological Pharmaceutical Provision of R&D services in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB10,000,000

Co., Ltd.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EMAL ENGTiEST £
RAEER TEEHREXME i B TfEE HBI(%)
HE B
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
EREZEEDRBAERAR T B A3 R {1 B 2 AR S HE R, AR10,000,0007C - 68.47
Beijing Huizhiheng Biological Technology Provision of R&D services in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd.
EREFAEMHBRBRAF > W B iR LA 2 BRI HE A, AR#10,000,0007T - 68.47
Beijing Huisheng Biological Technology Provision of R&D services in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd.
AR EFEBEBRAA RPBEREEREEER RERL AR#10,000,0007T - 100
Nectarine (Beijing) e-commerce Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB10,000,000
in Mainland China
EMBERCIARD R PR B i B R e E A AK#28,000,0007 - 100
Jilin Aotong Chemical Co., Ltd. Manufacture of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB28,000,000
in Mainland China
BOBERENRERERAR ReERLEEREEER HE A, AR¥:4,380,0007C - 100
Tonghua Hongji Health Technology Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB4,380,000
Management Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
AREHBENRBRAR T B SR A B B AR S RERL AR#:8,000,0007T - 62.39
HaiNan HuiXuan Pharma Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB8,000,000
ERERERNBRARAR > e B R R B R HERH AR#30,000,0007T - 87.59
Beijing Meiyan Space Technology Co., Ltd. Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services Mainland China RMB30,000,000

in Mainland China
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20. RMIB R B RE (&)

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EMAL ENGTiEST £
ARER TEEBREX L i B TfEE 81 (%)
HE B
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
REAZEAMHB(ER) BERAR = R AR RIER RS A hE AL, AR10,000,0007C - 87.59
Meiyan Space (Jilin) Biological Technology Manufacture of medical instruments Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
BAEBCRP)—ABRAR RRPIBERREE i dl JRPI#E25,0007T = 100
Sun Moral International (Macau) Limited. Manufacture of medical instruments Macau Macau Pataca
in Macau ("MOP") 25,000
BN ENRMEREABRAF > W B R iR A A R B IR FE R, AR#500,0007C - 100
Jilin Huisheng Biotechnology Information Provision of biotechnology promotion service  Mainland China RMB500,000
Consulting Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
TERHBERBRBR A T B A R {1 B 2 AR S HE N, AR10,000,0007C - 71.1
Benxi Jiangcheng Pharma Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB10,000,000
R R E R AR AR RRERGERREER FE R AR10,000,0007T = 100
Hainan Jishi Shengyuan Health Technology Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
AEEREERENBRBRAR RPN ERBEER hEAL, AK10,000,0007C - 100
Hainan Tengxin Runde Health Technology Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB10,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
BEEREERERRERDF ReERL 2 EREEER HERH AR1,000,0007C - 100
Hainan Jimin Zeshi Health Technology Co., Ltd. Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB1,000,000
in Mainland China
ERZEREERRAA REER Hefs 50,000%7T - 100
Beauty Space Group Limited Investment holding Cayman Islands UsSD50,000
EMERBEEEBRAR RPBERGERBEER hE AL, AR100,000,0007C - 100
Jilin Kangtong Pharmaceutical Group Limited ~ Marketing of pharmaceutical products Mainland China RMB100,000,000
in Mainland China
MR(ER)BEREFRAR* NERE FE A, AR¥10,000,0007C - 51
Sihuan (Fujian) Pharmaceutical Investment Property investment Mainland China RMB10,000,000

Limited
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20 AMB AT E ) 20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EMAL NG gy £
ARER TEEBREX L it B EfER 81 (%)
HE B
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
ERETRBENRRBRA R REFAFEMERERL HE R, AR30,000,0007C - 62.39
Beijing Xuanzhu Kangming Biological Provision of R&D and industrialization of Mainland China RMB30,000,000
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. innovative medicine
Meiyen Laboratory Inc. REBR R EET B RS e 1,000%7T - 74.45
Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services United States UsD1,000
in the United States
REXBAYBRE(RE)BRAA REBREBEEMERY BE 5,000,000 7T - 87.59
Precision Aesthetics Biomedicine Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services  Hong Kong UsD5,000,000
(Hong Kong) Limited in Hong Kong
(BB £ BRBRRE* BB R RE Bk AR#200,000,0007 - 62.39
Xuanzhu (Hong Kong) Biological Technology  Provision of R&D services in Hong Kong Hong Kong RMB200,000,000
Co., Ltd.
XZENITH BIOTECHNOLOGY INC X EUR R B AR e 100,000%7 = 62.39
Provision of R&D services in the United States  United States Usb100,000
Genesis Biosystems, Inc MBI R B R R ES5 20,000%7T - 87.59
Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services  United States UsD20,000
in the United States
FEEREMNBRAERAR > e Bl R R B R HERH AR50,000,0007C - 87.59
Meiyan International Biological Technology Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services Mainland China RMB50,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
R (L) EMRRBR AR W Bl R R R HE A, AR50,000,0007C - 87.59
Meiyan Space (Hebei) Biological Technology Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services Mainland China RMB50,000,000
Co., Ltd. in Mainland China
TER 2 AR R AR AR A B 4 41 B8 SR B B PR 7 R AR#10,000,0007T - 87.59
Jiangsu Yuezhiyan Technology Co., Ltd. Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services ~ Mainland China RMB10,000,000

in Mainland China
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20 AMMEB AN E ») 20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
EMAL ENGTiEST £
RAEER TEEHREXME i B TfEE HBI(%)
HE B
Proportion of
Place of interest held by
Principal activities and place incorporation/ Registered the Company (%)
Name of operation registration capital Direct Indirect
BEXLEEEABLE(ARAR)» RPERBRERR hEAL, AR100,0007C = 100
Shangha| Xiangmao Enterprise Management  Investment holding in Mainland China Mainland China RMB100,000

Partnership Enterprise Limited Partnership

BICBRMRBRAR A Bl AR B R IR, AE#400,0007T - 100
Tonghua Yilu Technology Co., Ltd Investment holding in Mainland China Mainland China RMB400,000
AL RRERR AR A B AR A B8 S T 8 AR 7S hERL, AR#10,000,0007T - 87.59
Hebei Yazhiyan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services in - Mainland China RMB10,000,000

Mainland China

EHEMRERRRARAF H R B R iR LA 2 AR TS HERH ARM5,000,0007C - 68.47
Wuxi Huierkang Technology Co., Ltd. Provision of R&D services in Mainland China ~ Mainland China RMB5,000,000
RREH(ER) BENRBRAR > R Bl R BT B R RERL ARH5,000,0007C - 61.31
MeiYan KongJian (Guangdong) Pharmaceutical Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services in - Mainland China RMB5,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd Mainland China
T REAEMENRRERL A B A R A B8 S T 8 AR S HER AR50,000,0007C - 87.59
Beijing MeiYan KongJian B|otechnology Provision of medical aesthetic R&D services in - Mainland China RMB50,000,000
Co., Ltd. Mainland China
L ZEW R AR TR BAE M A * These subsidiaries were registered as wholly-foreign owned enterprises under PRC
EEERE - law.
> ZEMBARDNRERBREZEMRAE **  These subsidiaries were registered as limited liability companies under PRC law.

REMERT -

ek ZKTE AR TR BEUAE M AINE ***  This subsidiary was registered as a foreign-invested enterprise under PRC law.
BRERE -

wexx ZHB AR IREFEAEZMAER ***%  This subsidiary was registered as a limited liability partnership under PRC law.
ABLE -

R-ZBE-_—F+—-_A=+—8 ' NI¥kE2 The total non-controlling interests in non-wholly-owned subsidiaries at

BB ATIHAIEIEREROARE 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB902,828,000 (2021:

902,828,000 L( T - —F : ARK RMB865,918,000), which are individually not material.

865,918,0007T) * t{ERIME L HERX °
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21. FHERETENRE 21. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

R+=—B=+—H~H

As at 31 December
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
ARETT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREEFE Share of net assets 599,294 234,641
LT B B Y g 2 Goodwill on acquisition 472,191 470,892
1,071,485 705,533
SE B E Provision for impairment (389,311) =
682,174 705,533

R+=—HA=+—H

As at 31 December
—=-= —E-—F
2022 2021
AR T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R— A —BREEH Opening balance at 1 January 705,533 1,070,387
N E N E R —RE E D E() Addition of associates and a joint venture (i) 478,000 =
AR VeSS Addition of deemed dilution = 104,228
B EIRA S Dividends declared (40,727) (317,637)
FRRE Impairment during the year (389,311) -
FEIREE AR RA SRR Share of loss of associates and joint ventures (80,875) (158,581)
RIEHEBE QR 2 SRR Gain on deemed disposal of interest in associates 9,554 7,136
R+=ZA=+—BFREH Closing balance at 31 December 682,174 705,533

AEBHEBEARRELECETHENE The Group’s trade receivable and non-current asset balances related to

SEWERERRIEREE ELE RS BN associates and joint ventures are respectively disclosed in notes 25 and 23 to

EMARMFE25 K234 EE - the financial statements.

() wEEZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H (i) It represents the Group's investment in Tianjin Binhai Grand Flight
HEEAESBHREEERES Jimao Equity Investment Partnership (L.P.) (“Binhai Yuanyi”), Shenzhen
EREREEBELE(BAREE) Yimei Medical Technology Co., Ltd. (“Yimei”) and Jilin Baixing Bairong
([BEEHE])  FYFERERK Investment Center (Limited Partnership) (“Baixing Bairong”), and Beijing
BRAR(IZE])  EHBEHERA Jingyan Biomaterial Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Jingyan”) during the
KIREPL(AERER)([BHEE year ended 31 December 2022.

4 |) K&Beijing Jingyan Biomaterial
Technology Co., Ltd. ( [ Beijing
Jingyan]) K% E
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21.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQU'TY METHOD (continued)

Impairment testing

The management recognised each associate or joint venture as one CGU for
impairment testing. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a fixed-year period approved by management.
Cash flows beyond the fixed-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation of the investments at
31 December 2022. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of investments:

Projected revenue: Management determined the projected revenue based on
the historical sales performance, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the policy and economic environment.

Gross profit margins: Management determined budgeted gross profit margins
based on past performance and their expectations of market development.

Growth rate: The average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports.

Discount rate: The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units. When determining the estimated discount rate,
the Group used the key parameters by reference to certain companies of the
same industry.

During the year, an impairment loss of approximately RMB389,311,000 was
recognised in the profit or loss. The impairment changes are driven by the
lower recoverable amount of CGU resulting in the directors’ reassessment of
estimate future business performance.

The associates and joint ventures are private companies and there are no
guoted market prices available for these shares. There are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interests in the associates and joint ventures.

The Group's shareholdings in the associates and joint ventures all comprise
equity shares held by wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, except for
Yimei and Beijing Jingyan, the shareholdings in which are held through non-
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
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21. FHERETENRE 21. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

(%)

TRRFIAKBENTEABER AR

BELENERAMBER

EQU ITY METHOD (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the

Group's associates and joint ventures that are not individually material:

B AR S R A E Summarised statements of financial position
BENAREGELE
Associates and
joint ventures
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-C-F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥T R AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Current
BE Assets 1,054,859 1,987,317
at& Liabilities (867,161) (1,804,225)
BRI EERE Total net current assets 187,698 (183,092)
FERE Non-current
BE Assets 1,496,542 1,496,970
A& Liabilities (494,499) (1,257,850)
BIERBEERE Total net non-current assets 1,002,043 239,120
BEFE Net assets 1,189,741 422,212
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21. EHERETENRE 21. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
(&) EQUITY METHOD (continued)
BaREE Summarised statements of profit or loss

Associates and Joint Ventures

BENRREERE

—E-C—F —E-—F

2022 2021

ARBTR ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

W zs Revenue 281,081 511,067
FTS R RIE 18 Loss before income tax (380,201) (405,583)
FrEagim Y Income tax expense (469) (15,213)
FEBE Loss for the year (380,670) (420,796)
FHEEEGBE Total comprehensive loss (380,670) (420,796)
N EER RS AT REEDEN The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
MK AT 25 80 5 AN & F B N R R statements of the associates and joint ventures adjusted for differences in
BECENGTREEZEMARNSHE - accounting policies among the Group and the associates and joint ventures.
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21. FHERETENRE 21. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

(#)
MBENBEY R

FENMBERBRZENEERAR
BhEERREENSE -

EQU ITY METHOD (continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

o

carrying amount of its interests in associates and joint ventures.

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to the

Associates and Joint Ventures

BEARREELE
—E—— —E -
2022 2021
ARETR ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
R—RA—BNFYEEFE Opening net assets 1 January 422,212 1,467,987
R FE Capital injection by shareholders 73,689 60,725
MR N T R e B Addition of associates and joint ventures 1,157,626 147,117
FEEE Loss for the year (380,670) (420,796)
=N Dividends (83,116) (832,821)
FREEFE Closing net assets 1,189,741 422,212
REBE QAR REELEMNER Interest in associates and joint ventures 599,294 234,641
S Goodwill 472,191 470,892
A Impairment (389,311) =
BREE Carrying value 682,174 705,533
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22. BAFETFTAEBEZNER 22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

E PROFIT OR LOSS
TXFEAREERERMEENSR Set out below is an overview of financial assets, other than cash and cash
BEBREeRREEEY  BHREME equivalents, trade and other receivables and pledged deposits, held by the
U BR FRA AR R RBRIN ) BE S - Group as at the end of the year:
R+=-—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
Bt = AR T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
T E Non-current
BRATFESABRN Financial assets at fair value through

SREBE - profit or loss:

WA EAEHIE ETIRERE Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 225,164 266,999
Ey k] Total non-current (i) 225,164 266,999
T E Current
BEAFEFAEBZN Financial assets at fair value through

SREBE ¢ profit or loss:

8 B 7 Wealth management products 962,988 109,304
B4R Total current (ii) 962,988 109,304
EemEELE Total other financial assets 1,188,152 376,303
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22. B AR EFABEZNESE
BE )

(i)

(i)

EXR =T =F+=A=+—H
HRERE DB AT E AR
HEHERMEE  DHAREELE
EEREME2ERSEREQTE

ik

2
S o

E\

% 78 5 7 KBP Biosciences Holdings
Limited ~ PsiOxus Therapeutics Limited

Ascendum Healthcare Fund ~ Shenzhen
MileBot Robotics Co., Ltd. * Beijing Gretson
Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd X% Beijing
Gerui Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd
FELETRERONKRERE - K
EEENT RARRFEZEERR
7 - BT AT R 2 A 5
BREATEFAREMEEKS -

ZAEERTEAE TERERY
MIRTHRITEBEEMNENENE
o IR E MR K D BRI
RFEFABENEREE AR
HANHAZRELIFEEAS M
B -

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(i)

(i)

The above equity investments at 31 December 2022 were classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group
has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through other
comprehensive income.

The amount represents equity investments in the unquoted equity
shares of KBP Biosciences Holdings Limited, PsiOxus Therapeutics
Limited, Ascendum Healthcare Fund, Shenzhen MileBot Robotics Co.,
Ltd., Beijing Gretson Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd and Beijing Gerui
Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd. The Group intends to hold these equity
shares for the foreseeable future and has not irrevocably elected to
classify them at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The amount represents wealth management products issued by certain
reputable banks in Mainland China with no fixed interest rate. They
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest.

fEE R4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 237



B HSERR Mot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—_T_—_—

F+-A=+—BLEFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

23. HERBHEE

23. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

R+=-—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
Bt e ARETR ARETF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FEENTER Loans to associates (i)/(iii)/39 431,521 263,521
BE=ZHER Loans to third parties (i/Gii) 134,436 103,846
H b pE YL BR 20 Other receivables (iii) 13,000 10,033
BEREENTENZIE Prepayments for purchase of long-term assets 15,402 14,902
594,359 392,302

238

] — fEEE & A R RS E R B H R
AR(THE RS ) BT AL 8
E0RSYNCIBIA eSS B g il
AREERATRN5%ERERMIL
AE10%EREER - HPR=F
7 JE - A R %5 243,000,0007T © F
BIREGES%E -

BREHBERRTIRARAA
(I & AR E ) OB AT B
e AR#83,521,0007T * BN
TR - FLBRTE6%
ER

m—EBE AR ILENT RS
RAR([EILERAT]DERAR
# 90,000,000 7T 5 & B &K 3
RER=ZZRAFENEE MARE
15,000,000 A& HEE - iR
BHEEENERBRARATRE
2o

The loan to an associate, Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Ruiye"”), was secured by the 15% equity interest in and
pledged with the 10% equity interest in Beijing Ruiye’s parent company,
Beijing Ruiye Economic Technology Development Co., Ltd, among
which RMB243,000,000 was payable in three years. Interest is charged
at 5% annually.

The receivable from Jilin Zesheng Environmental Protection
Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Zesheng"), representing a loan principal of
RMB83,521,000, which was unsecured and payable in 2024. Interest is
charged at 6% annually.

The loan to an associate, Pharmadax (Foshan) Co., Ltd. (“Pharmadax
(Foshan)”), amounting to RMB90,000,000 was non-interest-bearing,
unsecured and payable in three to five years and RMB15,000,000 was
deposit on contracts, which would be payable in five years according to
the achievement of the sales performance.
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23.

B 165 e 2k P
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-_F__F+-A=1t—HLEFE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

(i) The loans to certain third parties were unsecured with interest charged
at 3% to 15% annually, and repayable in two to five years.

(iii)  The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables including loans to associates, loans to third parties and
other receivables to minimise credit risk. Long ageing balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Other receivables included in
the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

2. 8 24. INVENTORIES
R+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December

—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
AR®TT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
IR oh Finished goods 292,183 269,325
ER Raw materials 266,779 284,873
TR Work in progress 128,194 153,721
Efb Others 29,821 26,878
716,977 734,797
FEEE Provision for inventories (110,277) (19,499)
606,700 715,298
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

25. B 5 & H B W Bk =X

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December

—E2-= —E %

2022 2021

Bt e ARETR ARETF T

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

EHEKESR—%=H Trade receivables — third parties (i)/39 513,818 651,490
EUEE Notes receivable (ii) 72,276 171,215
ML R RER Loans to associates (iii) 83,765 208,111
ME=TER Loans to third parties 28,922 6,804
TR FE o OB Prepayments to suppliers 141,022 140,091
R H 4th BB 5 A Amounts due from other related party 9,600 9,600
B —REECENIE Amount due from a joint venture 3,695 2,911
FE U — B = A B RTE Amount due from an associate 224 224
U RZ S Dividends receivable 40,727 =
L EME A A2 AR Receivable for disposal of subsidiaries 101,385 =
H & Y BR 7K Other receivables (iv) 215,108 107,453
1,210,542 1,297,899
B 5 EWERRAVR BB E Provision of impairment on trade receivables (63,848) (43,640)
H b e B R R E B Provision of impairment on other receivables (28,066) (19,831)
1,118,628 1,234,428
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(i)

Trade receivables — third parties

R+=A=+-—H

As at 31 December
—E-C—F —E - —F
2022 2021
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B SRR Trade receivables 513,818 651,490
VoRERE L] Provision for impairment (63,848) (43,640)
449,970 607,850

AEEEERPZRGERTIEE
IMEETRET  ENEP—RA
RANHERIN - EEHR—RR=ZE
NER - BREBEFARKZ AT
RE—F - ZEFPHEARAEEL
oo REE N R@RIFEHEREEE
WRIBZ BB S  WREEEE
HIEFT - UREBREEERR - &
HEpehmRERE TR R
BER - ENEXARAEENE
SRR RAEBEERS - I
BEERERREED -  AEELE
B 5 USRS R IT A R
S E A (E AR - B BRI
RRE -

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally from three to six months,
extending up to one year for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed and monitored
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

25. E5 REMEBEBWERR 2
() HERELER—E=H(E) (i)

RER BZRUESFIRERA
HAfE H B AR 0 AT 20 T (RS 4 BR 5%

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables — third parties (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

the year,

&) -
R+=A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-C—F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
3EAR Within 3 months 237,080 426,782
3Z6f@A 3 to 6 months 55,058 35,746
6lEAZE1E 6 months to 1 year 80,481 137,682
—F A F More than 1 year 77,351 7,640
449,970 607,850
B SRRSO EN B REE The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
PN receivables are as follows:
R+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
AR®TT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
F1) At beginning of year 43,640 11,123
BB TR Impairment, net 20,208 32,517
FR At end of year 63,848 43,640

242

NERE B HRA BB EETR
B U EFEHAEEESE - &
BRIIENE IR R E
E o At ERRBALINELR
E¥RERNREARASEHNER
BAEEIR - AT B R SRAR I ek
HIAIM SIE R AT AR o

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a

provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on ageing of trade receivables. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions.
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B 165 e 2k P
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-_F__F+-A=1t—HLEFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(i) Trade receivables — third parties (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

B 5 BRI AR
Ageing of trade receivables
DPR1E 122% 2ZE34F HB3F @t
Less than 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
BHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 2.69% 32.24% 81.50% 100.00%
RERME(E Gross carrying amount
(ANR¥FT) (RMB’000) 382,920 113,140 3,715 14,043 513,818
EHEEEE Expected credit losses
(AR¥EFT) (RMB'000) 10,301 36,476 3,028 14,043 63,848
R-E-—F+=-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2021
Z 5 EBIR AR e
Ageing of trade receivables
DRE 1ZE24F 2E3F BIB3F st
Less than 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
AR EE BB X Expected credit loss rate 2.97% 37.27% 83.48% 100.00%
HRERE(E Gross carrying amount
(ANREFT) (RMB’000) 618,590 10,285 7,191 15,424 651,490
TEREEEE Expected credit losses
(AR¥EFIT) (RMB’000) 18,380 3,833 6,003 15,424 43,640
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HEWRMRK 2 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(ii) ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%u&%ﬁﬁtﬂ& (i) Notes receivable are held with a business model with the objective of
GHHeRERHENEBKER both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling as the Group
W}ﬁﬁ AR S B T A E B H sometimes endorses notes receivable to suppliers prior to their expiry
HERTAEENEREEREEE - % date. These are classified as debt instruments at fair value through
SR AFEFAEMEZEmKERN other comprehensive income and presented as notes receivable. The
BERTEETHSIE  WAEKRERE fair value changes of these notes receivable at fair value through other
¥ - HEE-_—_FR_ZT_— comprehensive income were insignificant during the years ended 31
F+ZA=Z+—BLEFE @ &5K® December 2022 and 2021.

ATFAERA R 2 E RS R
W2 AFESBTA -

REB N R@EFHHARERRKE The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding notes
B2 BRAEES - BNEIRIERT R receivable. As the notes receivable represent the irrevocable bank bills
W15 AT AR E S B ERITR B 8T issued by the banks in Mainland China with high credit rating, the
ATEGHIRI TR IR - AEE-ETENK Group estimated that the expected credit loss rate for notes receivable
EERNEBREEBBER) - was minimal.
2RAULBIANCEHESREE Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety
RZEBEZZF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain notes receivable
BN RITIEMN RN ERSEZS T/E accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “derecognised notes”)
WEE([&RILERZE D) FEET to certain of its suppliers and banks in order to settle the trade
HERRIRT  WEERAMBESHK payables with a carrying amount in aggregate of RMB24,897,000.
B ANR 24,897,000 2 B 5 JE The derecognised notes had a maturity of one to six months at the
BRI - RILFEREENFREE K end of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable
HMEHBENTF—FNEAR - BiED Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the derecognised notes may
BZEEE - RIFERZEZEEA exercise the right of recourse against any, several or all of the persons
AT AR F R E R B T liable for the derecognised notes, including the Group, in disregard
fi] » EFTSHFAEAT(BEAEER) of the order of precedence (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the
THRERE - M wELEREZIER opinion of the directors, the risk of the Group being claimed by the
(TFEH2HE]) - EFERAE ' i holders of the derecognised notes is remote in the absence of a default
EHIBITREER  NEBER I of the accepted banks. The Group has transferred substantially all risks
Ewm?}’&%ﬁ/\ﬁg M RBR T E and rewards relating to the derecognised notes. Accordingly, it has
o REBED B ILTERZIEAR derecognised the full carrying amounts of the derecognised notes and
E’]%@Kﬁﬁ’\ % & Bl RER - e the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from
BUHBRR I EREERABRE S the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised notes and
ERERN2HREE - A5EHE the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these derecognised notes
HRIBEREENFEESEREA is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the
LSRR EERAEIRIR fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the derecognised
ERMmAXEBLANESEARBE R notes are not significant.

HIFEE - EFRA - AEEHK
IFHERRBENFEE2ENATE

AN ¢

REE-_ZE-_—_F+=-A=+— During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised loss

EI IEFEHE  AEBREEK amounting to RMB114,000 on the date of transfer of the derecognised
REEZABRAEBRARE notes. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing

114,00075 RERNIBEEF - Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The endorsement

FEMEDETBRERARE - RE2F has been made evenly throughout the year.

HIEHEE -
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(i) MEEQREROBAENT

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iii)  The breakdown of loans to associates is as follows:

R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-C—F —E-—F
2022 2021
B e AR¥T AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BIEREREFR AT Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a) 78,754 75,970
EMNERIRRIERRAF] Jilin Zesheng Environmental Protection

Engineering Co., Ltd. (b) 5,011 5,224
HILERNATREGRAR] Pharmadax (Foshan) Co., Ltd. (c) = 120,000
IR EBEFRAF] Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co., Ltd. = 6,917
83,765 208,111

(a)

m—EBE R BERAESR
BHERAR([BIERE])
ER(RIEEREE ARE
60,000,0007T % f& I 7 B A
R 18,754,000 7T ) Jb 4
W RBRERKBHEE - F
BIREFL75%:1E -

EWESMERRRIZAR
AR([EMERE]) HRIE
AEBEHRERAE AR
83,521,000t X B L7 B A
R ¥5,011,0007C * AR —
FRNEE - FERETF6%
FTHE o

] — RE B & A Bl R IL B RS ]
BEERAE([HLER
Al ])E 3 AR #90,000,000
ThRE - EEARAR=
ERFREE - ZEFES
HAHMIERBEE -

REE N KERFHEKRER
B2 BRIEES - LARRE(E
BEER - -EXEHETHBR
EBRET R o EXATR
AN B #EE L
M@k - RZT -
RZTZ—F+ZA=+—
A - BIEBEBETTRD -

The loan to an associate, Tonghua Tianshi Pharmaceutical
Co.,Ltd. ("Tonghua Tianshi”), including a loan principal
of RMB60,000,000 and interest receivable amounting to
RMB18,754,000, was unsecured and repayable in full on
demand. Interest is charged at 4.75% annually.

The receivable from Jilin Zesheng Environmental Protection
Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Zesheng”), comprised an unsecured
loan principal of RMB83,521,000 and interest receivable
amounting to RMB5,011,000, repayable in one year. Interest is
charged at 6% annually.

The loan to an associate, Pharmadax (Foshan) Co., Ltd.
("Pharmadax (Foshan)”), amounting to RMB90,000,000 was
non-interest-bearing, unsecured and payable in three to five
years, and has been classified to other non-current assets.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans to minimise credit risk. Material balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Loans to associates shown
above had no recent history of default and past due amounts. As
at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance was assessed
to be minimal.

fEE$RE ANNUAL REPORT 2022 | 245



B RS ek
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

25. E5 REMERERR &)

(iv)

His B RN E R ER RS -
BHEEERLIKS2EAKERBE
BB SR f B B B 1A R OA
it BEESNEERIRELRER
VA B2 B 35 53 17550 % FEDBI R SRAS B 1B
W e

RZE-_—_F+=-A=+—8"
AEBBEBEEMEHREEDE9
% BT 1 30 7 2R L fth FE UK BR RO (B
B N R ¥ 28,066,000 ( — &
—_—F+-_A=t+—"H: AR¥
19,831,0007T) °

L fth 8 W BR S5RORR B O S IR BB A
W

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(iv)

Other receivables mainly represent deposits with suppliers. Expected
credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate
is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate.

The Group assessed and recognised a provision for impairment of
other receivables amounting to RMB28,066,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB19,831,000) in accordance with IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2022.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

R+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December
—=E—= —E-—F
2022 2021
AR®TT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
z=)| At beginning of year 19,831 15,839
B FEE Impairment net 8,235 3,992
FR At end of year 28,066 19,831
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

R+=A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
He RIRTTHEH Cash and bank balances 2,664,842 3,689,923
EHATF R Time deposits 1,341,222 2,137,133
4,006,064 5,827,056
A BEERER Less: Pledged deposits
—BiTsH BRITERE - pledge for interest-bearing bank borrowings
(Hi3E34) (note 34) 140,000 140,000
—FARE — frozen for lawsuits 33,207 =
—BITERIIZER — pledged for construction in progress 3,994 4,631
RE KRB EEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,828,863 5,682,425

RITRSRAGERITERMNEAED
FERBAL - I AEEANFRESE
kmE - EHMERERRNF—RE=
EATRMAMMEL - WRIBREEHE
HERMERBRAE - RITEHRREE
AERERRNOREENELAGER
PFEVERTT o

FEEREREAANRERRSEE
WA ERHE

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one
day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The
bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents at each reporting date are
denominated in the following currencies:

R+t=A=+—8

As at 31 December
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
ARET AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 2,521,211 5,586,372
=T usD 1,118,302 43,089
BT HKD 186,861 50,534
BT EUR 1,616 1,572
SR MOP 873 858
3,828,863 5,682,425

ARBIAEHABREMER - A
i - AR B SNE B IR AR TE DA RS T
EEMNEERRATE  AEBEEEEER
ERTETIHIEXB ZRITABARE
REMER -

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.
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27. REAR KRB =E 27. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
BETR
EEEBR HEEBER
#E #E BRA R4 % E @t
Number of
Number of issued and
authorised fully paid
ordinary ordinary Share Share
shares shares capital premium Total
T TR AR¥T AR¥T T ARBTT
Share’000 Share’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

RZZE=-—F—F—H  Asat1 January 2021

(SRAMEO.01ET) (HK$0.01 per share) 100,000,000 9,465,682 78,186 4,084,846 4,163,032
FE2E Movements for the year
BB Rk SH AR5 (i) Repurchase and cancellation
of shares (i) - (139,063) (1,156) (205,251) (206,407)
BIT{EBRE Share options exercised - 3,380 28 2,709 2,737
NZE-_—F As at 31 December 2021 and
+-A=+—8k at 31 December 2022
B CF (HK$0.01 per share)
+=A=+—8
(BREE0.01ET) 100,000,000 9,329,999 77,058 3,882,304 3,959,362
() RZZZ—FR - ARFNBRE (i) During the year of 2021, the Company repurchased 139,063,000
243,084,000/ T (B S HEMX) shares of its own shares on the Stock Exchange at a total
(8 & M A R % 206,407,000 7T ) consideration, including expenses, of HK$243,084,000 (equivalent to
B 3 P 8] E 139,063,000 % A% RMB206,407,000). As at 31 December 2021, all repurchased shares
HeRZZEZ—F+ZA=+— were cancelled.

B FrARELERMOE2EEH -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or
services to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The
Scheme became effective on 24 October 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of share of the Company to be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the any time. The
maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme shall
not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue at the any time. The maximum number
of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
any one Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares at the any time.
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28. LR AERNSIR =)

250

AAGIERAETE (2
RZZZZFNAZ+E  AQ8EIR
BARRR-_ZE—+tF+A-+MHAK
MEERETE - MEAERS2HER
tﬂ & £ 94,656,000 B IR #E + & £ AT
REARABRATEFRAEEO.01ETH
94,656,000 LMk - BAREETBIIE T
BRHHERESFENS T BB GG (0
ﬁ)%wﬁﬂjaﬁﬁ?&é:Em&ilaﬁi
DB t%rtﬁws 3BR(=ZH 2

—) o FREME THRMEZGEN RETE
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ(ﬂﬂﬁ)?ﬁ BRETS =ZFRR

[E M ATETTE

B’\:7_—fﬁjl)5] B ARBREAR

RAIRZT—tF+ A +OBERAD
E%HX$gu+¥” 0 H/\ éT%%Eﬁi%?ﬁﬂjA

7,500,000/ B4 - & HAIREEAR
ETJ‘&ZJSEF'W@@O.OW@EE’W,SOO,OOO
AR B - ERETEE T REMNER
BRFENE THEBIKRG(NE) MR &
LAME=FARSERFERSIE
B B AE3333%(=n2—) Fi&E
BE TRERE RGN RETEEBZ(
)& BRET D =F RN EmATET
fiE o

BREIIRTHAAESRK
RAE LIREHER -

BEHER

7o ER B8 R4

28.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)

On 26 August 2020, the Company granted a total of 94,656,000 share
options to the eligible participants of the Company to subscribe for a total
of 94,656,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on
24 October 2017. Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
would be subject to certain vesting conditions (if any) and vested in tranches
of 33.33% (one-third) each on each anniversary date following the date
of grant for three years. Subject to the satisfaction of certain performance
appraisal conditions and certain performance targets (if any), share options
could be exercised in three-year installments and until the expiry of share
options.

On 1 September 2021, the Company granted a total of 7,500,000 share
options to the eligible participants of the Company to subscribe for a total
of 7,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on
24 October 2017. Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
would be subject to certain vesting conditions (if any) and vested in tranches
of 33.33% (one-third) each on each anniversary date following the date
of grant for three years. Subject to the satisfaction of certain performance
appraisal conditions and certain performance targets (if any), share options
could be exercised in three-year installments and until the expiry of share
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

AATBRESS(2) Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)
AT ERIEERET IR FRRE The following share options were outstanding under the Share Option Scheme
718 during the year:
—E-CHF —T_—F
2022 2021
BRMMAEFS BREHS BN T 5 BREHE
TEEET (F14) TREET (F17)
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
HKS$ per share ‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
»—A—AH At 1 January 1.07 98,776 0.97 94,656
REREKEH Granted during the year - - 2.20 7,500
RERTITE Exercised during the year - - 0.97 (3,380)
RERZIR Forfeited during the year 0.97 (14,900) = =
Rn+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1.08 83,876 1.07 98,776

FARETETAERE( T =—F -
BT BN TTE B A A 19 8%
BEERKM1.66/8TT) °

ERTAEEETEENBRESZW

No share options were exercised during the year (2021: the weighted average
share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised was HK$1.66 per
share).

The summary of the share options granted to certain employees of the Group

T - is as follows:
BRE G EEHE
TEERET REHE(TH)
Exercise price Number of
in HKS$ per options granted
BHEH Grant date share (thousands)
—ETFNRZTRH 26 August 2020 0.97 94,656
—E-—%FhNA—H 1 September 2021 2.20 7,500
102,156
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28. LR AEBRN TR ) 28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

RATBRETE (&) Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)
LNREFREARTEOBREZITER The exercise prices and expiry dates of the share options outstanding as at the
REIEAE AR - end of the year are as follows:
SRKHG
ffEEET EEBRERTEN
Exercise price BREZHE(TH)
HKS$ per BREZE(TH) Number of outstanding vested
ZMAH Expiry date share Number of options ‘000 and exercisable options ‘000
—EC-CE —E-—F —EBC-CE —T-—fF
2022 2021 2022 2021
“E=TENA-+FHH 25 August 2030 0.97 76,376 91,276 65,496 40,924
—E=—%AH—H 1 September 2031 2.20 7,500 7,500 - -
83,876 98,776 65,496 40,924
FR - FRAEERD2EEZEHER During the year, total expenses amounting to RMB2,127,000 (2021:
EEMRGEA BRI eI ARK RMB21,090,000) were charged to the consolidated profit or loss for share
2,127,000 (—ZZE = —F : AR options granted to eligible participants with a corresponding change in equity.
21,090,0007T) - WP #E# A FE SR AR FE &
&) o
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28. LR AERNSIR =) 28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

RRBBRAET B ()

ARREEERNTEZCHEA_BRAR
AEERR=FRBHAHENER D
BRENDTE ARAREZEUTE
EHEEA -AEAENRZREMERR
ME REXRERRBERESHRELE
EHE - ZE2BNBABENHTEN

Share Option Scheme of the Company (continued)

The executive directors of the board of the Company have used the binomial
model to determine the fair value of the options granted, which is to be
expensed over the vesting period of three years. Significant judgement on
parameters, such as the risk-free rate, dividend yield and expected volatility, is
required to be made by the executive directors of the board of the Company
in applying the binomial model, of which the inputs are summarised below.

T o
=B —F —ECEF

hB—H NAZ=+7<H

1 September 26 August

i B Grant date 2021 2020
R L A BT E Closing price at the grant date 2.2058 T 0.90/ 7T
HK$2.20 HK$0.90

49 [ B 1| =R Risk-free rate 1.33% 0.44%
REx Dividend yield 0.72% 1.71%
78 HA R 0 (i) Expected volatility (i) 58.42% 44.81%

() BRRAHARELHNBRLEREHE
ETREDR IS - TR R B F
VEREEERNKIEETE -

FFEAFEBRESNALME R HER
RREE -

FR ARAEERESEBETHE
83,876,000 17 & KR ITE &) B AR A - 1R
BARABAIMNEARERE  2IITEMR
RITHE BB RE BB Q R FEINET
83,876,000 A% ¥ 1% & i@ B% K 37 15 AR A
839,000/ 7L (HHE RN A KK 718,0007T)
(BFTRAZAD) °

(i) The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation of expected
share price returns, is determined based on the average daily trading
price volatility of the shares of the Company.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the year, the Company had 83,876,000 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 83,876,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$839,000 (equivalent to
RMB718,000) (before issue expenses).
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HEYRIEER QTR B
s &
RZZZZFNAZ+AE  HMED
BMEkoOERAR([EHT]  AXEER
—XMBAREFEERAB —ERER
AR E B RO SRENETEI([H M=
E—TERMBEEE]) - BEMTIE
EEREBASRKRMNARKI57TH
B 1% R 79,695,000 3% R I M4 B 15 ° %
ZRBIMEROOENPREE=SF -

H>M%

RZZE-_—FNLA+H HNESS
%LL&M’M%@EE&@&@&%
(T —FROEBE] 2
& -

1) HIHESCEBKBEEULNERR
MARB12343THERRE
49,642,300/ BRHIIERR 1D + & &V E]
B=F:

2) REFMN_Z_FFROHAB
= & H'I"]'Ti%"é@/\,\ iy
29,900,000 B A A & AR =
FRIEESSRREIERN AR
#0.2637T AR BN

3) WBEHFN-_T-TFRGBE
2 HMPERTAEREER
44,045,000R% BR &l 1 AR 5 1E BUR1T
FEAERRKRMNDARK0.263TH
&t &

4 HMHRESCEREEUSRR
BARBO263THERRE
46,888,350 PRI IERR 15 + & AV E]
B=F o

RZTEZZF=A=+—H #EMUFT
R AR¥0.263 T R ARKE1.23437T
WER MR EKES K E$172,733,880
AR K% 124, 120D - @O A=
fﬁo

RZEZZFtA=+— E&_E::
F+—A=+H ' SFTUEBREHG A
ﬁ%o.zsaﬁﬁ%‘ﬁ%rﬂééﬁ%@éﬁ%uﬁtﬂ
& 47933,104 0% % 5,037,630 A% R I 14 i
D BHHREBE=F -

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Incentive Scheme of Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd.

On 26 June 2020, the board meeting of Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xuanzhu”) (a subsidiary of the Group) passed a
resolution to adopt an employee share award plan (“Xuanzhu 2020 Share
Incentive Scheme”) and 79,695,000 restricted shares of Xuanzhu were
approved for eligible employees to subscribe at the price of RMB1.57 per
share. These restricted shares have a contractual term of nil to three years.

On 10 September 2021, the board meeting of Xuanzhu passed resolutions
to adopt an employee share award plan (“Xuanzhu 2021 Share Incentive
Scheme”) including:

1) 49,642,300 restricted shares of Xuanzhu were approved for eligible
employees to subscribe at the price of RMB1.2343 per share with a
contractual term of three years;

2) The 29,900,000 shares of Xuanzhu, which were granted to executives
under Xuanzhu 2020 Share Incentive Scheme, were replaced by a new
contractual term of three years and an exercise price of RMB0.263 per
restricted share;

3) The 44,045,000 restricted shares of Xuanzhu, which were approved to
eligible employees under Xuanzhu 2020 Share Incentive Scheme, were
modified with an exercise price of RMB0.263 per share; and

4) 46,888,350 restricted shares of Xuanzhu were approved for eligible
employees to subscribe at the price of RMB0.263 per share with a
contractual term of three years.

On 31 March 2022, Xuanzhu granted 2,733,880 and 124,120 restricted
shares of Xuanzhu to eligible employees at the price of RMB0.263 and
RMB1.2343 per share respectively with a contractual term of three years.

On 21 July 2022 and 30 November 2022, Xuanzhu granted 933,104 and
5,037,630 restricted shares of Xuanzhu, respectively, to eligible employees at
the price of RMB0.263 per share with a contractual term of three years.
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Incentive Scheme of Xuanzhu Biopharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. (continued)

The following share awards were outstanding under Xuanzhu Share Incentive
Scheme during the year:

—E-CHF —E-—F
2022 2021

BRE Fhz Nt
FHREE livgny 4= FHREE & B
ARMET TR AR FhA%

Weighted Weighted

average average
subscription Number subscription Number
price of shares price of shares
RMB per share ‘000 RMB per share ‘000
R—A—AH At 1 January 0.938 169,887 1.57 78,927
RERKEH Granted during the year 0.277 8,829 0.644 144,848
RERZHR Replacement during the year - - 1.311 (29,900)
RERZIR Forfeited during the year 0.738 (15,465) 1.311 (23,988)
®n+=ZRA=+—H At 31 December 0.921 163,251 0.938 169,887

A B H B PR M AR (0 SR B A B
A ARE31,001,0007T (BRARE3.51
) cHE_E-_—_F+-_A=+—H8It
FE AKESFSURGOAERFEES
BAARYT70,129,000L( T = —4F :
AR#23,492,0007T) °

IR B HsE 2 B e X FE T A
MISEERLUEE o TRIURAERR

The fair value of the restricted shares awards granted during the year was
RMB31,001,000 (RMB3.51 each share). For the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group has recorded share-based compensation expenses of
RMB70,129,000 (2021: RMB23,492,000).

The fair value as at the grant date or the date of modification was determined
using the market-value model. The following table lists the inputs to the

A8 A BUE ¢ model used:
—E-= — T —F
2022 2021
B BH sk B ER B Grant date/modification date share price (RMB)

(AR%ITT) 2.19 2.19
REBARET) Subscription price (RMB) 1.23 1.23
40 [ B 1| =R Risk-free rate 2.55% 2.55%
K8 Volatility 56.49% 56.49%
B A B R 8k Price-to-R&D expense multiple 12.8 T EAN/A
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EMEAEYHEFRATRS
B A
RZEZZEF+—A+=H  HFENEH
EYREFRAR([SHEA] - BEE
E—XRWEBAR)BREASEB—IERE
R DURAE B R B E B ([ SHE
FHRR DB ETE)) - BEEMEBEARES
BEREEUNERROARKEI1.33TTHE
1% RS M EF 27,950,000 8% BR & 14 5%
Mo ZERHVERNHENMAE=EN
fﬁ °

DA B4R S RYIE 15 5 AR B FHAR 1 BT

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Incentive Scheme of Jilin Huisheng Biological
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

On 13 November 2020, the shareholders’ meeting of Jilin Huisheng Biological
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Huisheng”) (a subsidiary of the Group) passed
a resolution to adopt an employee share award plan (“Jilin Huisheng Share
Incentive Scheme”) and 27,950,000 restricted shares of Jilin Huisheng were
approved for eligible employees to subscribe at the price of RMB1.33 per
share.These restricted shares have a contractual term from three to four years.

The following share awards were outstanding under Jilin Huisheng Share

BN FRAREITEE - Incentive Scheme during the year:
—EC-C& —E-—4F
2022 2021

SR SR
THRBE RBBE FHRBE B fn &0 B
AR®R TR ARBTT T

Weighted Weighted

average average
subscription Number subscription Number
price of shares price of shares
RMB per share ‘000 RMB per share ‘000
n—A—8 At 1 January 1.33 24,395 1.33 27,950
RERZU Forfeited during the year 1.33 (1,680) 1.33 (3,555)
R+ZA=+—8° At 31 December 1.33 22,715 1.33 24,395

BHE-_T-_—_f+=-ZA=+—HL
FE 1,680,008 (=ZF = —&F :
3,555,0008% ) i& 15 B 5 i B HA& 08 UK -

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 1,680,000 (2021: 3,555,000) shares
have been forfeited since the grant date.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Share Incentive Scheme of Jilin Huisheng Biological
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has recorded share-based
compensation expenses of RMB12,629,000 (2021: RMB14,701,000).

The fair value as at the grant date was determined using the market-value
model. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

EMEFH R
BEEE
Jilin Huisheng
Share Incentive
Scheme
RO BHREER(ARET) Grant date share price (RMB) 1.89
REE(ARET) Subscription price (RMB) 1.33
4 [ 3 ) R Risk-free rate 3.04%
B & Volatility 38.12%
XL YR EAR AT Share Incentive Scheme of Beijing MeiYan Space
1R B st 2 Biomedical Co., Ltd.
MoE——F+H—8 - L e On 1 July 2022, the board meeting of Beijing MeiYan Space Biomedical
e maR AR ([ L] ARE Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Meiyan"”) (a subsidiary of the Group) passed a resolution
B—XHEAFESeeERB—1ER to adopt an employee share award plan (“Beijing Meiyan Share Incentive
s URAIE BRI SEE S B ([ = Scheme”) and 9,421,690 restricted shares of Beijing MeiYan were approved
SERER DSBS ) - B RUEE R L for eligible employees to subscribe at the price of RMB2.20 per share. These
ABIBESINERIEH AR 207TH restricted shares have a contractual term from three to four years.
EIRRHE9,421,690 B R HIMEAR D - %%
RAEBRAHANAA=ZEF -
BT B& 5 S8 B AR 38 5 2 0 48 7 S JE T T The following share awards were outstanding under the Scheme during the
year:
—E=-=
2022
=34
nEFI9R R EE
BEAR®T TR
Weighted
average
subscription Number
price of shares
RMB per share ‘000
R—H—H At 1 January = -
RERE L Granted during the year 2.20 9,422
Nar— A= heH At 31 December 2.20 9,422
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28. LR AEBRNTR e

TREEEHAEYEEEGR AT
% 0 B B e 8l ()
RERAREOROEZBHAFEEAEAR
#30,076,000 T (BERARK3.197T) -
B AEER T _—_F+=_RA=+—
BEFEABRRRMRBAIAARE
4,781,0007T °

L BB R FEDERTSEER
BEETE o TRIITAERARE N HE A
i

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Incentive Scheme of Beijing MeiYan Space
Biomedical Co., Ltd. (continued)

The fair value of the share awards granted during the year was
RMB30,076,000 (RMB3.19 each share), of which the Group recognised a
share awards expense of RMB4,781,000 during the year ended 31 December
2022.

The fair value as at the grant date was determined using the market-value
model. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

EFEEERS
BEE R
Beijing Meiyan
Share Incentive

Scheme

REBHAREER(ARET) Grant date share price (RMB) 5.39

REBE(ARET) Subscription price (RMB) 2.20
TEEBEHRAS - BE - HER Enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxe and depreciation

BRI AR (TEV/EBITDA D) 52K and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA") multiple 12.39
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29. Htt B RRE R A 29. OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
FEEERES Ht R st REBF
PRC statutory Other Retained
reserve fund reserve Total earnings
AR¥T AR¥T T AR¥T AR¥TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

N_E_ZTF+_A At 31 December 2020 and

=+t—HER=-Z=—— at1January 2021
F—H—H 326,396 398,826 725,222 4,302,088
FEBH Profit for the year - - 416,509
M B (BaE12) Dividends (note 12) - - (123,054)
1E B R fn 52Eh T & Employee share award scheme
- EEBRH%ER - Value of employee services 59,350 59,350 =
BB A RIRGD 2 Recognition of redemption
fEmO & EER liabilities on a subsidiary’s
shares (1,573,500) (1,573,500) -
WiE I I = Acquisition of non-controlling
interests (8,844) (8,844) =
B A R B IEE R Capital contribution by
AR & non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries 475,948 475,948 -
il v Partial disposal of equity
HEMT B AR interests in subsidiaries
B Rk without change of control 51,067 51,067 -
EBRERBATE Transfer to PRC statutory
EE2>) reserve fund (i) 49,320 - 49,320 (49,320)
N-_E-_—F+_A At 31 December 2021 and
Z+—BERZ=ZZ== at1January 2022
F—H—H 375,716 (597,153) (221,437) 4,546,223
FEERE Loss for the year - - - (1,914,918)
R B (P EE12) Dividends (note 12) = = = (1,315,530)
& B i 1n B2 EhET 2 Employee share award scheme —
- EERBER Value of employee services - 89,666 89,666 =
B ARG Z Recognition of redemption
& & iR liabilities on subsidiaries’
shares - (989,949) (989,949) -
HENEEESZ Special reserve for maintenance
BIR BB AR and production funds = 3,368 3,368 =
Bt A RIEVIEIE AR Capital contribution by
AR & non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries - 580,213 580,213 -
EREPEEE Transfer to PRC statutory
mE20) reserve fund (i) 9,289 - 9,289 (9,289)
R=ZE-_=F+=A At 31 December 2022
=7r—0E 385,005 (913,855) (528,850) 1,306,486
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29. HiRERFBERN )

()  ARBRFEABEIERFREE
B ERHEDI KR PIARE XS
MAEMEIZAA - ZEHBRRA
BEEMBFEOLFHNED10%
SPEERFEE  EEZESHEE
FERBEMERNS0% - ZHH
B E ARG BER ARG HESIREL
BERANEHERA BRI ARG
& o ZiEBE A AREBRS K
CEBEFIGN)

29.

OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

(continued)

(i) The Company’s subsidiaries in the Mainland China are required to
follow the laws and regulations of the Mainland China and their
respective articles of association. These subsidiaries are required to
allocate at least 10% of their net profits for each financial year to the
reserve fund until the balance of such fund has reached 50% of their
respective registered capital. The reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the shareholders’ meeting or similar authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. The reserve fund is not available
for distribution to shareholders except in the case of liquidation.

=
30. Hth & & 30. OTHER LIABILITIES
R+=ZBA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-— —E—F
2022 2021
=3 AR® T ARETFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
IR E BT B Deferred government grants (i) 142,068 80,052
Hb R Other borrowings (ii) 54,182 31,530
B Sale and leaseback (iii) 42,200 =
B ARKDZEEARE Redemption liabilities on subsidiary’s shares (iv) 2,804,261 1,662,783
3,042,711 1,774,365
W mENE S Less: current portion
BB TR B — R E) Deferred government grants - current (i) 11,914 7,681
HER Other borrowings (ii) 13,893 -
E&AE Sale and leaseback (iii) 8,118 =
33,925 7,681
ERENEL Non-current portion 3,008,786 1,766,684
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

f&ﬁﬁy%

HIgs 2R - BE RREMK
B OEEBUT B E o Higm A8
B ERFFHNIREREETA

YN =
RE1EE -

HtEReEEREANEER —RM
BARIFERRRENERARE
39,289,000t (= - —F+— A
=+—H: AR%31,530,0007T)
(HERABTE BERRERL
ENFRER) REE=FHE
FAR#13,893,000C( = —
F+-A=+—8: 8)(LER
BRE - BEBRER—FRNE
B) REBE=-FHERARE
1,000,000 (Z T =Z—F + = A
=+—8: &) (LERAFTE &
BEHRERNEFEREE) ©

ERMEERMNTE=FHRER
1E A R#42,200,0007C(=ZF = —
F+-—A=+—8: &) ZRA
ABEEAE ARES2,729,0007T 8
ERMEREEAER - HENE
& B2 5 N FER U s 3k B 1A o

RZTEZ=ZF+=ZA=+—8"
MEBARKGOZEBRAEREAA
E % 2,804,261,000 7t ( = &
——%+ZA=+—H8: AR¥K

1,662,783,0007T) ° RIFEZ S
FEIERR IR R AT S 2 ik - EBEAER

EEEEIEGINE THASHR -
REBFER L E RERNE@R
me BROEFELESHAE  HiIZ
fERCl & A FIREE -

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

30. OTHER LIABILITIES (continued)

(i)

(iii)

It represents the deferred revenue of government grants received for
the construction of property, plant and equipment. It will be credited to
the consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Other borrowings consist of borrowings amounting to RMB39,289,000
(31 December 2021: RMB31,530,000) from a non-controlling
shareholder of a Group’s subsidiary, which are interest-bearing,
unsecured and repayable in seven to nine years, a borrowing amounting
to RMB13,893,000 (31 December 2021: Nil) from a third party, which
is interest-free, unsecured and repayable in one year, and a borrowing
amounting to RMB1,000,000 (31 December 2021: Nil) from a third
party, which is interest-bearing, unsecured and repayable in nine years.

Sale and leaseback represents long-term payables to a third party
amounting to RMB42,200,000 (31 December 2021:
secured by mortgages over the sale and leaseback equipment with

Nil), which was

an aggregate carrying value of RMB52,729,000. No gain or loss was
recognized during the sale and leaseback transaction.

As at 31 December 2022, redemption liabilities on subsidiaries’
shares amounting to RMB2,804,261,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB1,662,783,000). Pursuant to the agreements with these non-
controlling shareholders, capital contribution and related shares being
transferred shall be redeemable by the Group upon the occurrence of
certain contingent events which cannot be controlled by the Group.
The redemption obligations give rise to financial liabilities, which are
measured at the net present value of the redemption amount.
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31.EZREMEMNER 31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-C—F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 e RRFR() Trade payables (i) 205,782 118,906
R KRR IR AR R Costs of construction and purchase of
equipment payables 181,465 104,838
EfES Deposit payables 356,648 189,597
D HEmAERTEE Accrued reimbursement to distributors 527,179 968,498
S Salaries payable 91,603 80,750
EAth FE AR Other payables 182,616 132,346
FERTRR B Dividends payable 353 324
FETFI & Interest payable 9,921 8,735
U BB B B X B FE AT BR X Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary 300,000 342,750
B B8 /2 B BRI 2 FE 15 BR 3K Payable for additional interest of a subsidiary = 5,250
7% K A 8 B s FE 1 AR R Payable for research and development expenses 71,377 19,295
1,926,944 1,971,289
(i) ESEMNBEZRATSE  FHEE (i) The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term
HAA0K o of 40 days.
REXR BHEMNEREREERAR An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year, based on
RIBREC DATAN T - the invoice date, is as follows:
KR+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
6EAA Within 6 months 165,760 86,623
6EAE14F 6 months to 1 year 24,166 7,896
—F Uk More than 1 year 15,856 24,387
205,782 118,906
B NEMEMNERNAFEEELELERMR The fair values of trade and other payables approximate to their carrying
BEH - amounts.
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32. 8 AE

B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-C—F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERNEE-RE Contract liability - current
B %3 g ek Advances from customers 161,180 201,042
& 5 SE IR IR I I ES — TR EN(i) Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights
— current (i) 2,830 5,383
T Total 164,010 206,425
EHEEBE-FFED Contract liability - non-current
& 9 SH I IR IE W s — FER BN () Deferred revenue for sales of distribution rights
— non-current (i) 5,660 9,969

REEBEEMRBEERKIHR
K UREESHENETERE - NZ
T _FEHNEBEEMEMNEERHN
FRBRHELEBHEERRBXERH
B R ERE FRIE N ©

() EERAOEBLESMAFNE
TEEERDHBECKRNRE B
Ko Wa D REREERBRNE

oM

Contract liabilities include advances received for sales of pharmaceutical
products and medical aesthetic products, and deferred revenue for sales of
distribution rights. The increase in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly due
to the increase in short-term advances received from customers in relation
to the provision of sales of pharmaceutical products and medical aesthetic
products.

(i) It represents the cash advances received for sales of distribution rights
of certain pharmaceutical products to distributors for a period of five
years. The revenue is recognised in the profit or loss on the straight-line
basis.
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33. BB IH 33. DEFERRED TAX
FRELHBEEERBEESHNOT : The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as
follows:
BEEMEEE Deferred tax assets
£ER i3
Bl RAREEN DHIEN EEEE fgak/
FAE  ABREN ETER  ARNEN FERGED REEERE  RREEE REER 5t
The
government
Unrealised Unrealised subsidies Lease
profit of profit of sales associated ~ Impairment liabilities/
Impairment ~ intra-group Accrued — of distribution with — oflong-term ~ right-of-use
of receivables sales eXpenses right — fived assets assets assets Tax losses Total

ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETn  ARMTR  ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

W-E-—%-f-0 At1January 2021 1,669 5382 198,605 4 6,879 23,520 15 33,338 269,449
ERMEABENE/  Deferred tax credited/(charged)

(X#)MELHRE o the consolidated profit or

(HtzE10) loss during the year (note 10) 6,979 2,525 7,159 (41) 1,826 (2,889) 438 18,018 34,015
WoF-£ At 31 December 2021

t-A=t+-H 8,648 7,907 205,764 - 8,705 20,631 453 51,356 303 464
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

33. IEEHIE () 33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
EEREBEEE#) Deferred tax assets (continued)
SR HE
Bl DIBHEN AHEN BE&E HEEE/
BRAE  AEREA EER  AEREN  EERAEY RUEERE  EREEE i) a3t
The
Government
Unrealised Unrealised subsidies Lease
profit of profitof sales  associated  Impairment liabilities/
Impairment intra-group Accrued  of distribution with  of long-term  right-of-use
of receivables sales expenses right  fixed assets assets assets Tax losses Total
AR®Tn  AR®Tn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETr  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A—B  At1January 2022 8,648 7907 205,764 - 8,705 20,631 453 51,356 303,464
BAMAE/  Deferred tax credited/(charged)
EERE to the consolidated profit or
loss during the year (note 10) 2,502 8,598 (137,285) - (8,098) (20,598) (453) (51,356) (206,690)
RZEZZE+ZfF  At31December 2022
=+-A 11,150 16,505 68,479 - 607 3 - - 96,774

5 Al R R FE AR B m A B IR AR R 1E
BE  AMTIESEEERRELETIR
EE BHRBTETRAASEBEAER
%ﬁiﬁ?&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂéﬁmblﬁﬁJ NS
@F:%::¢+*ﬂ:+—aiﬂ
8 18 B5 18 A R % 3,634,508,000
T(ZEBEZ—F+ZA=+—8 ' AR
#3,160,218,000 7T ) B B4 &Y IE i& 7% 18
BE - ZSEETUAE KRR
FERBE A o B8 AR 65,237,000
gL+ AR ¥ 467,680,000 T © A R #
867,936,000t * A K ¥ 1,162,484,000
m&/\iﬁm 071,171,0007T# 5 Bl =
=F -ZT-_NF - - ZFT=RHF
:7_/\¢&_f_‘t¢§”,ﬁﬂ S

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the future taxable
profits is probable. Due to the fact that losses arising in certain subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised,
the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
amounting to RMB3,634,508,000 (31 December 2021: RMB3,160,218,000)
as at 31 December 2022 that can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable profits. Losses amounting to RMB65,237,000, RMB467,680,000,
RMB867,936,000, RMB1,162,484,000 and RMB1,071,171,000 will expire in
2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027, respectively.
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BE_Z_—F#+_A=+—HILEE
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33. EERHIE (») 33.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EEHRIEE RS Deferred tax liabilities

BOVE R

FABEE BELE

WBELN REW FREER
AFERE ATERAE  AVERR EMH st

Fair value

adjustment Fair value

of adjustment

Fair value investments arising from

gain at fair value recognition

arising from through of joint Withholding
acquisitions profit or loss venture tax Total
ARETRT AR®BTR AR¥Tn AR¥TR AR¥Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
WZE=—%—HA—H At 1 January 2021 88,493 667 57,528 79,000 225,688
FARGAEEAN(ALE),/ Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
AR R B (M EE10) consolidated profit or loss
during the year (note 10) (3,673) (664) 1,039 - (3,298)
WZZE=-—F+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2021 84,820 3 58,567 79,000 222,390
RN-E-—F—f—H At 1 January 2022 84,820 3 58,567 79,000 222,390
FARARGAEREAN(ALR),/ XX Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
SHAIRER T (fI3E10) consolidated profit or loss

during the year (note 10) (66,087) 1,309 (43,572) - (108,350)
S AFEIR Payment of withholding tax - - - (15,000) (15,000)
RZZ-_—F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2022 18,733 1,312 14,995 64,000 99,040

BEPBEEEMETE - R BEAMBAK
MHINERERBIMNEEEREIRK R
AEMI0%EIH - WREBZFTZN
F-A—HRBEXR  TEAR-_ZZL
Ft-A=+—HA®RZAF - KA
AR R E 0 B A eI E & 7
FREABRBEOZBRTER - 5
REEMS  BRARERS% - NEBE
1 78 3t B AE HR B A 3 AR S Y B 8 8 DR
“EZNF-A-BERBRZANMAD
AR B TENAR -

BHE-_ZT-_—_f+-A=+—HL®#F
B AEBEWEAEE TR R A
VZMBAREHMENTHRELR
FmEMNzENRERELEE - £5

RE - ZEMBRRRA BARKRAT
ENREBET RZTEZ—F+=A4

=t+—08 BhERmKEQRREE
BHARRECHEAENER =824
BB ANRMT9,485000L (B = —
F+_A=+—8 : AR#¥59,006,000
JL) °

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately RMB79,485,000 at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB 59,006,000).
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34. st ERITER 34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

R-ZE-_—#+-HA=+-H
As at 31 December 2022

RZZ-—%+-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2021

L EES YRS
(%) e AR®Tx (%) e ARETT
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
TENME Current
BHEMBITER Secured bank borrowings 3.45-4.60 2023 301,272 3.45-4.65 2022 170,000
EIARITER Unsecured bank borrowings 3.50 2023 25,803 3.85 2022 30,000
327,075 200,000
FRENE Non-current
BEMBITER Secured bank borrowings 4.90 2035 540,000 4.90 2035 485,892
BEMBITER Secured bank borrowings 2.80-4.20 2025 218,805 4.75 2025 127,384
BEMBITER Secured bank borrowings 4.60-4.75 2027 33,613 4.00 2023 199,940
BIEMRITER Secured bank borrowings 4.50 2029 15,965
808,383 813,216
1,135,458 1,013,216
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34. st ERITBE R (o) 34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
W+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F —E_—F
2022 2021
AR®TT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RV Analysed into:
AT Bank borrowings:

—FR Within the first year 327,075 200,000
ZERF Within the second to fifth years 252,418 327,324
BRAF Beyond the fifth year 555,965 485,892

1,135,458 1,013,216
(a) AEEETHRTERBUATZIEE (@)  Certain of the Group's bank borrowings are secured by:
B
(i) MIMAEFATREmEASA (i) Mortgages over the Group’s leasehold land and property,
K # 999,870,000 T (= & plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying value of
——®+=—A=+—H8: A RMB999,870,000 (31 December 2021: RMB802,340,000);

R #802,340,0007T) W E
T AIE - BB R

iy BERREBETEHFERA (i) The pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
R % 140,000,000 T ( = & RMB 140,000,000 classified as non-current asset (31 December
——®€+=—A=+—H0: A 2021: RMB140,000,000); and
EMMO 000,0007T) - # &l
DRIENBEE &
(i) —KHBRBIMIBOER - (i) A portion of equity interests in a subsidiary.
(b) FIEEFAARKEE - (b)  All borrowings are denominated in RMB.
(c) #fg::iJr—)E] =+—HHIR (c)  The effective interest rates of the bank borrowings as at 31 December
TEREREFNENFF(2.80% = 2022 range from 2.80% to 4.90% (31 December 2021: 3.45% to
490% (=T =—F+=-A=+— 4.90%) per annum.

H :3.45%%4.90%) ©
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3. REELEMBE 35. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

—E-C—F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥BT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BRELAT(E1R), SR T (Loss)/profit before tax (2,086,341) 486,049
—RERFELE - From continuing operations (2,122,778) 496,013
—RER IS — From discontinued operations 36,437 (9,964)
KLATIEE SR - Adjustments for:
—M%E  BERRBITE - Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 292,623 246,095
—REYENE — Depreciation of investment properties 8,292 7,904
—(FREEENE — Depreciation of right-of-use assets 31,980 23,472
— B EERH — Amortisation of intangible assets 36,912 31,896
—WORFEE A IR FE — Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 90,778 9,047
— UEREARNIRERE — Impairment of investment accounted for
using the equity method 389,311 -
— % - BERRBRE — Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1,131,399 =
— 85 R HAMEWIRARE — Impairment of trade and other receivables 28,443 36,509
—BEREEESHRBHRAE — Special reserve for maintenance and production funds 3,368 -
—DMEAEREARNIREBE — Share of losses of investments accounted for
using the equity method 80,875 158,581
—BRIEHERB AR 2K E — Gain on deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary = (59,228)
—BRIEHEBE QR 2R E — Gain on deemed disposal of interest in an associate (9,554) (7,136)
—HEME - HERFZERERE — Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (i) 2,663 2,411
—HERTZAENEE — Loss on disposal of intangible assets 23,630 -
— B EERE - Impairment on intangible assets 113,138 131,297
—HEFREEEN KR — Gain on disposal of right-of-use asset (23) =
—EERE - Impairment of goodwill 8,761 -
—HEMRBARMNkE — Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (226,338) =
—FRAEEERE — Impairment of right-of-use assets 84,510 -
—HERA T E ABRENS FIEER —Gain on disposal of fair value of financial assets at FVPL
N ERE (111,945) -
—ERATEFABZNEREERN — (Gain)/loss on changes in fair value of
AN EES (W), EE financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11,548 (1,304)
— AR D BB A K - Share-based payments 89,666 59,350
—FEMAX — Interest expense 211,176 119,311
—FEHA — Interest income (146,794) (128,897)
EEECEHIEBERERE Operating cash flow before working capital changes 58,078 1,115,357
EERERBEES Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
—FE — Inventories (60,442) (226,805)
— B 5 Kk HMERERR — Trade and other receivables (163,675) (245,243)
— B 5 REAMERRRK — Trade and other payables 415,538 195,751
—EHaE — Contract liabilities (46,026) 29,765
CEEEMNRS Cash generated from operations 203,473 868,825
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5. REELENBE L ) 35. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(i) NiZEBRERERD LEYWE - (i) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
= N RGNS RIERE property, plant and equipment comprise:

—E-C—HF —E-—F

2022 2021

AR®TT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

BREVFE Net book amount 17,016 5,544
HEME - BEMRENEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2,663) (2,411)

HEME  MENMEENTEKIE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 14,353 3,133
36. FEBHERERME 36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
(a) EX}RERS (a) Major non-cash transactions

FR - AEEEEBREHEZE
HELHNEAREERTEE
BEMNIERESREDINBAR
¥ 33,513,000 L (Z T = — F :
AR #35,077,0007C) R AR
33,513,000t (=T =—F : AR
#35,077,0007T) °

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of RMB33,513,000 (2021: RMB35,077,000)
and RMB33,513,000 (2021: RMB35,077,000), respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for plant and equipment.
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36. mEBRERERMT o)

(b) REFBFRELENEEZE

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH FLOWS (continued)

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities
=%== 2022
i) ]
ARRG 2 BTEMR
ERFIE HESE ERRE BEEE HitE &
Redemption

liabilities on Bank
Interest Lease Dividend  subsidiaries’ and other
payables liabilities payables shares  borrowings
ARETR AR%T R ARBT T AR%TR AR®T T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R-E-—%—F—AH At 1 January 2022 8,735 36,656 324 1,662,783 1,044,746
BERSREELNS Changes from financing cash flows (55,678) (12,620)  (1,315,530) - 164,894
wHE New leases = 33,513 = = =

—E--ERBRER Final 2021 dividend and interim 2022 dividends
R _FRERE - - 1,315,530 - -
[E 5 Exchange realignment - - 29 - -
HEWRBAR Disposals of subsidiaries = (741) = = (20,000)
EAHNTEMHE Disposals as a result of contract cancellation - (522) - - =

—FRAHBARRDZ Recognition of redemption liabilities

BEaERER on a subsidiary’s shares - - - 989,949 -
FISEY Interest expense 56,864 2,754 - 151,529 -
RZE-__F+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2022 9,921 59,040 353 2,804,261 1,189,640
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36. FEBRERERKT 2 36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) METBMELNAGES (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
(#&) activities (continued)
—T-—F 2021
)=
NG 3 BAERR
FERHIS HEARE RS BEAE Hifd &
Redemption
liabilities on Bank
Interest Lease Dividend subsidiaries’ and other
payables liabilities payables shares borrowings
ARBFT AREFT ARBTT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-Z-—%—5—H At 1 January 2021 7,454 3,951 159 - 751,103
RERSREELNED Changes from financing cash flows (27,932) (3,187) (196,389) = 293,643
nHE New leases = 35,077 = = -
—EEEREKRE Final 2020 dividend - - 123,054 - -
ROE 2T Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders - - 73,500 - -
—MENBARKGZ Recognition of redemption liabilities
BEaERER on a subsidiary’s shares = = = 1,573,500 =
MBRX Interest expense 29,213 815 - 89,283 -
R-ZZE-_—&+-fR=1+—H At 31 December 2021 8,735 36,656 324 1,662,783 1,044,746
(c) HERSRHHAEE (c) Total cash outflow for leases
FAGRARERERNEERESR The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash flows
HaEEm T is as follows:
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
AR T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
KETEEA Within operating activities 7,823 8,113
BEBBA Within financing activities 12,620 3,187
20,443 11,300
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(a) HEBACERBARRE

REBEE_T__F+=ZA=+—
HIEFE  AEENUREBEAREK
465,000,000 7 [a] @ fE &8 A 2= 25 AR
kR ERE L T EEE R AL
BREARKEHZHEE - BT

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-_F__F+-A=1t—HLEFE

37. DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of Lianben Chemical and Lianben

Technology

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group transferred its
entire interest in Lianben Chemical and Lianben Technology to two
individuals, Mr. Li Gongben and Ms. Xia Zhihua for a consideration
of RMB465,000,000. An analysis of the net gain and cash inflow in
respect of the disposal of Lianben Chemical and Lianben Technology is

BB 2 KRB AR 8 F s & as follows:
REMAHDIITAT -

AR¥TF T
RMB’000
WE - BERZRE Property, plant and equipment 165
ERAREE Right-of-use assets 744
B EE Intangible assets 191
ey Inventories 2,761
RET B A RMRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,000
B 5 R E R BR K Trade and other receivables 55,402
REkBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21,414
HEAR Lease liabilities (223)
ARAaE Contract liabilities (275)
B 5 M EMEMER Trade and other payables (31,949)
FTRIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings (20,000)
HEBBEGERE) Lease liabilities (non-current) (518)
BIEERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 28,712
SR ARE (B Consideration for disposal of Lianben 46,500
% AR AN ) 2 Gain on derecognition of Lianben 17,788

ERALEBANESRENNT Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Lianben:
2HHRERE Cash consideration received =
HENBRERIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (21,414)
HERSREFHE Net cash flow on disposal (21,414)
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37. LEM B A ER @)

(b) HESTMERE
REBEE=ZZ=_=_F+=A=+—H
IEFE - AEBERERSHERD
ENREEEETHARE  REA
AR#18,750,0007T - BRAHES
MEBHFW=ERIBESRADTN

37. DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal of Jilin Jiahui

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group transferred its
entire interest in Jilin Jiahui to Lianben Technology for a consideration
of RMB18,750,000. An analysis of the net gain and cash inflow in
respect of the disposal of Jilin Jiahui is as follows:

™
AR T
RMB’000
M - BB RERE Property, plant and equipment 36,259
EmVEE Intangible assets 6,197
FE Inventories 75,501
B 5 M EMEWERR Trade and other receivables 34,678
BekIReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,141
ARAERE Contract liabilities (423)
‘f’f%&,ﬁ\{ﬁféﬁ%‘?%ﬁ( Trade and other payables (158,115)
FEPERR iR Non-controlling interests 5,479
S Goodwill 3,551
RILERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 4,268
HEEFMREBHRE Consideration for disposal of Jilin Jiahui 18,750
HKIFEREMEERN S Gain on derecognition of Jilin Jiahui 14,482
ERALETMEBNBRESRENIT Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Jilin Jiahui:
BWRERE Cash consideration received =
HEMNRS RIESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,141)
HERSREFHE Net cash flow on disposal (1,141)
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() HELTERHAREFRLA
(M EFH 1)
REBEZ-_Z__F+-A=+—H
IEFE - AEBERERNIEREFAD
EZEET—RE=-7 REBA
R #118,000,0007T - BB H &£t
REAMF W ERBRRADTTN

B 165 e 2k P
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-_F__F+-A=1t—HLEFE

37. DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Disposal of Beijing Xuansheng pharmaceutical co.,
Itd. (“Beijing Xuansheng”)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group transferred its
interest in Beijing Xuansheng to a third party for a consideration of RMB
118,000,000. An analysis of the net gain and cash inflow in respect of
the disposal of Beijing Xuansheng is as follows:

T

AR¥TF T
RMB’000
ReRkBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21,105
B NEMEWERCRE) Trade and other receivables (current) 213,124
FE TSR Income tax payable (95)
B 5 NEHMEMER Trade and other payables (116,350)
BIEERNEEFE Net assets derecognised 117,784
HEHFAHRE Consideration for disposal of Xuansheng 118,000
KILEREEFEN S Gain on derecognition of net assets 216
EEARFEHEENDERHF Realised profit of intra-group sales 193,852
HEF AR Gain on disposal of Xuansheng 194,068

ERALEHANESRENN Analysis of cash flows in respect of the disposal of Xuansheng:
BEREERE Cash consideration received 132,108
HENRS RIS ZED Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (21,105)
HERSREFHE Net cash flow on disposal 111,003
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38. H i 38. COMMITMENTS
(a) EAREIE (a) Capital commitments
RERKNEB B A NEREAE : The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
year:
R+=BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-C—F —E-—%F
2022 2021
AR¥T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERTAE R B - Contracted, but not provided for:
ME - BB ME&RE Property, plant and equipment 161,702 396,381
B EE - BITREMME Intangible assets — product development in progress 133,232 72,091
294,934 468,472
(b) FHEEEIE (b) lease commitments
RERNEFBG L THEEAIE : The Group had the following lease commitments at the end of the year:
Rt+t=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-C—HF — T
2022 2021
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EETHB AR - Contracted, but not provided for:
EHAEREEEESE Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 1,107 3,344
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B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HItFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The controlling shareholders of the Group are Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo
Weicheng, Dr. Zhang Jionglong and Mr. Meng Xianhui.

Name and relationship with related parties are as follows:

=L 22hES

Name Relationship
BIEARE EFxexR

Dr. Che Fengsheng Chairman of the Board
bR i % REEHBE QR
Beijing Ruiye Associate of the Group
BIERE REEHBE QT
Tonghua Tianshi Associate of the Group
G S) REEHBE QT
Pharmadax (Foshan) Associate of the Group
HMER REEHBE QR

Jilin Zesheng Associate of the Group
Sihuan Strides (HK) Limited ([Sihuan Strides]) REEHGERE
Sihuan Strides (HK) Limited (“Sihuan Strides”) Joint venture of the Group
b SR REENEELE

Beijing Jingyan

Joint venture of the Group
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30. @EERR B () 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

MBS R EM I D FAeF il 5 M 45 In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial

BRUASN  REBRFRETHR SRR statements, the Group had the following transactions during the year and

T _F+-A=+—BMERDT : balances as at 31 December 2022:

—E-—F —T-—4F
2022 2021
AR T AR%TT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
PEEANGIECR IS ON Interest income from associates
— bR — Beijing Ruiye 9,381 6,796
— EMER — Jilin Zesheng 4,720 4,930
—@LRE — Tonghua Tianshi 2,755 2,755
16,856 14,481
B —fEaERENFERA R&D income from a joint venture
—Jb R ER - Beijing Jingyan 1,415 =
mEEE AR B (MFE23%25)() Loans to associates (notes 23 and 25) (i)
—Jb R — Beijing Ruiye 243,000 181,917
— BBl fER AT — Pharmadax (Foshan) 105,000 125,000
—EMER — Jilin Zesheng 88,532 88,745
—BlXRE — Tonghua Tianshi 78,754 75,970
515,286 471,632
U B N B A ELAth R Other receivables from associates
—EWNER — Jilin Zesheng 224 224
FE U — [ & A R AR B Dividends receivable from an associate
—BtRE - Tonghua Tianshi 40,727 -
U E & FEFIBE(MEE25) Amount due from a joint venture (note 25)
—Sihuan Strides (ii) — Sihuan Strides (ii) 3,695 2,911
B UL At BB O 3k B (B RE25) Amounts due from other related parties (note 25)
— BB FHEE A (i) - Dr. Che Fengsheng (ii) 9,600 9,600

0) RERMBELATERNHEBHRL (i) Details of the loans to associates as at the end of the year are disclosed
B TSR EMTEE23 %25 © in notes 23 and 25 to the financial statements.

(i)  FEUESihuan Strides fz B2 ) Jt &8 (i) The amounts due from Sihuan Strides and Dr. Che Fengsheng are
HIBEAERE - EEB R EREESRE interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. The maximum
BoHEr—S——F#+—_HB=+— outstanding amount due from Dr. Che Fengsheng was RMB9,600,000
HILEE  kESEKSEESHE during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB9,600,000).

B &= A AR 600,0007T (=
T——4: AR¥9,600,0007T) °
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30. @Bt B () 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
TEEEEBNAFENMSHBZUOT ¢ Details of key management compensation during the year are as follows:
—E-—F — B
2022 2021
AR¥T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HHIRERA Short term employee benefits 19,049 23,974
PARR AR & EE B 9 1~ 3R Share-based payments 2,700 6,020
YA EBETE AR FENEEE Total compensation paid to key management personnel 21,749 29,994
HE-_ZT-_—F+=-A=+—HLF During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has not conducted any
B AEBEWEETEMNAET ETR connected transaction or continuing connected transaction (as defined under
AIETEERRRFEEZRATHEE the Listing Rules) which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements
RSGKFHBEAER S (EERR LA - under the Listing Rules.
40. R T E 98 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY
RER SEASRIANKREENT : The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at

the end of the year are as follows:

R-B-=F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
SREE Financial assets
BAFEFTA
REBHERAE BAFERTA Hitt2EWK &
STENERMEE BENERMEE HemEE mat
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
Financial fair value through other
assets at through comprehensive
amortised cost profit or loss income Total
ARBT R ARBT R AR®T R AR®T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BATFEFABRE Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss - 1,188,152 - 1,188,152
EWEE Notes receivable - - 72,276 72,276
25 L E e R IE Trade and other receivables
(TEIEFENF) excluding prepayments 905,330 - - 905,330
HiEREHEE Other non-current assets
(TEIEFENT) excluding prepayments 578,957 - - 578,957
BHEAER Pledged deposits 177,201 - = 177,201
RERBESZEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,828,863 - - 3,828,863
5,490,351 1,188,152 72,276 6,750,779
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10. R TE9 E») 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY (continued)
RER BHENEBVTENEREND The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
T (&) the end of the year are as follows: (continued)
R-BZZF+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2022
cEmas Financial liabilities
2 8 6% B AR
STENERmERE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AR®T T
RMB’000
EAMb AR Other borrowings 54,182
HEAaE Lease liabilities 59,040
ErEm Sale and leaseback 42,200
FTEIRITIER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,135,458
B A R K E B B & Redemption liabilities on a subsidiary’s shares 2,804,261
B NHMEMNER(TRIEIESRERE) Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 1,835,341
5,930,482
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RZZE=_—F+=ZA=+—H

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_T-_—_F+-_A=1+—HILFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at

the end of the year are as follows: (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

SREE Financial assets
BEAFERA
H 2 E W K
BAFEE CREE
REERA ABRMNERAE Financial assets
STERNSREE Financial assets at fair value
Financial at fair value through other
assets at through comprehensive st
amortised cost profit or loss income Total
AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BATEG ABHER Financial assets at fair value
TREE through profit or loss - 376,303 - 376,303
YRR Notes receivable - - 171,215 171,215
B 5 R E A e YRR Trade and other receivables
(TEIEFENF) excluding prepayments 923,122 - - 923,122
HMIEREEE Other non-current assets
(TEIEFENF) excluding prepayments 377,400 - - 377,400
[REEEVESA Pledged deposits 144,631 = - 144,631
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,682,425 = = 5,682,425
7,127,578 376,303 171,215 7,675,096
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10. R TE9 E») 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY (continued)
RER BHENEBVTENEREND The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at
T (&) the end of the year are as follows: (continued)
R-EBE-—F+=-F=+—8 As at 31 December 2021
cEmas Financial liabilities
$irg: 21| DN
AENSRARE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AREFT
RMB'000
EAMh AR Other borrowings 31,530
HEaE Lease liabilities 36,656
FTEIRITIER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,013,216
B ARRMRER & E Redemption liabilities on a subsidiary’s shares 1,662,783
B NHMEMNER(TRIEIESRER) Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities 1,890,539
4,634,724
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M. ERMIENQAFERAF 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

EEH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
GKEEmEEEATFESAERAERIZAF The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,
EFfENMESR T AN - ZLK;%I TRT other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair
EMEREERAFENT : values or those measured at fair value, are as follows:
REE ATHE
Carrying amounts Fair values
W+=A=+—H R+=ZA=+—H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
—E-CF —E-—F —E-CF —T-—F
2022 2021 2022 2021
AR¥TR ARBFT AR¥ T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
EHMEE Financial assets
mEE AR ERGERE) Loans to associates (non-current) 431,521 263,521 431,077 273,481
Ei\ﬁtﬂgl&ﬁﬁ (# wE) Other receivables (non-current)
(BHERE EX) (including loans to third parties) 144,436 113,846 132,436 104,024
575,957 377,367 563,513 377,505
sHmas Financial liabilities
EtfgR(TEEHEERARE) Other borrowings
(other than lease liabilities) 96,382 31,530 107,341 32,283
FTEIRITIER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,135,458 1,013,216 1,132,875 1,055,366
1,231,840 1,044,746 1,240,216 1,087,649
TEEETHREEEREEEY - ;A Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
ESRHEMERERNS/EE NN financial assets included in trade and other receivables, financial liabilities
ABSRHEMENERNESRABEND included in trade and other payables approximate to their carrying amounts
FEAHKRMERES  TZHRZET largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

AR &R -

TREENBENATENEERSH The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount
(RIBSBEBLEERINEZRRZ ST —I at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
RHEMZITASEAR - AUEEA willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
BEOERBRRAT - methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.
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BE& =)

mEEARNIERDERKIETE HAb
EUWAREN - BT - s BRITIER K
HtfE RN A FECBBMINFELH KRR
Rens  FRAGEUFTH  FEA
BN RIGHARM T AREA S RiE
T8 - HRZTEZ=ZF+ZA=+—
B AEEBESNERRBHRRZH
MR FEZES TR TERK o

ARBBENF ETRE - AR E R
RITBTHRHESR - AEEELHH
AR RBHERD - RBRLEHR
BBOTANTSFEEEZSH LD
AN ATE -

BRAFEGFABENIELTRERED
AFEDNRBELIEHATRMERL R
BrBRE  EAMBEEREEN &
BEREERETE  RE -  BREE
BETHALBEARAR - WA H
MEAELRARARESBERES
o Gl EEARYRAE - BIE -
ER# AT 2R (TEV/EBITDA ) FH R E
BEHAF(TPEDBE - BFHEIVARTAL
BARNCEEERNBFNEGE2AER
o RGFEHAS AT ELRAFBEAR
AEBAEZRERNEREAZ - fl3E
mBERRIEEE - TR o BRIRGE
HARFELMREERENEERFNES
LNEtERAFE  EERABEAHESE
s A TFE(REREE P BRAR)
REBAFEZEH (RENKEIER)B
A TAFARABENEE-

41.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of non-current loans to associates and non-current other
receivables, notes receivables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the
Group’s own non-performance risk for borrowings as at 31 December 2022
were assessed to be insignificant.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group has
estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a discounted
cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates of instruments
with similar terms and risks.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments designated at fair value through
profit or loss have been estimated using a market-based valuation technique
based on assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The valuation requires the directors to determine comparable public
companies based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and to calculate
an appropriate price multiple, such as enterprise value to earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA”) multiple and
price to earnings (“P/E"”) multiple, for each comparable company identified.
The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then discounted
for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between the
comparable companies based on company-specific facts and circumstances.
The discounted multiple is applied to the corresponding earnings measure of
the unlisted equity investments to measure the fair value. The directors believe
that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated profit
or loss, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_ZT-_—_+-_A=1+—HILFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEE& #) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
N EER Fair value hierarchy
TRITAEBeHITEN QA FEFZ The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
4 : Group'’s financial instruments:
BN FEGFENEE - Assets measured at fair value:
R-B=-=F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
BUAT&EFEDNFE
Fair value measurement using
AEBTE N EARH
ZHE 522y HR2Y
(F—4) (=) (B=8) st
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR®BT R AR®T R ARMT T ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BATEFABRN Financial assets at fair value
CREE - through profit or loss:
BWATEFEMNIELT  Unlisted equity investments,
PRI & at fair value - - 225,164 225,164
BEER Wealth management products - 962,988 - 962,988
BATEFAEMEZE Debt instruments at fair value
WamEB T through other comprehensive
income:
EWEE Notes receivable - 72,276 - 72,276
- 1,035,264 225,164 1,260,428
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411. ERMIEBENAFERAF 41.

BREHN =
YNSRI =F 1€ ))

BN FEGENEE - (&)
RZZT=—_—F+=—A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

BATEENEATE
Fair value measurement using
RGBT % EV NG| BERTA]
2B BR2 BR2%
(F—%) (B=H) (B=#) e
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
BATE N BER Financial assets at fair value
EREE : through profit or loss:
BRATEGENI LT Unlisted equity investments,
friEs & at fair value - - 266,999 266,999
BHESR Wealth management products - 109,304 - 109,304
BAFEAEMEE Debt instruments at fair value
WasmEB A through other comprehensive
income:
EWER Notes receivable - 171,215 - 171,215
- 280,519 266,999 547,518
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-_F__F+-A=1t—HLEFE

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31
December 2022 and 2021:

TREE NFEER B * EXTAEEZY BE AFEHSHNERE
Fair value Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair Value
Financial assets hierarchy technique unobservable input Range to the input
FETRERE F=R AEEE RIFTH T T BR R 8 0.92-1.02 BEEIN, B 5%(ZTZ—F
+TZA=+—R :5%)#
BHATEEM/HP5%
(Z2—F+-A=t—H:
5%)
Unlisted equity Level 3 Valuation Average price-to-book 0.92-1.02 5% (31 December 2021: 5%)
investment multiples ratio multiple of peers increase/decrease in multiple
would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by 5%
(31 December 2021: 5%)
FETRERE F=R AEEE [RIFTH0 19 (B8 B A 3% 0.76-2.66 BEEIN, B 5%(ZE=—F
B B8 TZA=+—R :5%)#
BHATEEM,FHL5% (=T
:_¢+:ﬂ E—I'_ H: 5%)
Unlisted equity Level 3 Valuation Average price-to-R&D 0.76-2.66 5% (31 December 2021: 5%)
investment multiples expense multiple of peers increase/decrease in multiple

would result in increase/decrease
in fair value by 5%
(31 December 2021: 5%)
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41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are
as follows:

—E—— T —F
2022 2021
ARETR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AT EF ABRAORERE Equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss:
®n—A—H At 1 January 266,999 196,153
BE Purchases - 80,926
HeE Disposal (30,282) (10,080)
NEEEHFEIE Net loss from change in fair value (11,548) -
®n+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 225,169 266,999
ERFEGTEREE - Liabilities measured at fair value:
RZBEZ__FR-_ZF-_—F+=A The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
=+—H  AEEREEAEAFER December 2022 and 2021.
ENeREE -
FAREepEERCRBENS - # During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
BAVTEHECE—BRNE_RoHEE Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial
%o MEEBASBELE=H(ZF=— assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil).
Fm)o
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M. ERMIENQAFERAF 41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

BEE& #) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
ATEEH &) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
HENTFELNEE - Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
R-EBE-_—_F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
RUTREFEATE
Fair value measurement using
WEBTE BEAXT EART
ZHE 522y B2y
(E—#R) (B=#) (E=R) Fob
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR®BT R AR®T R AR®BT R AR®BT R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
MBS AR ERGERE) Loans to associates (non-current) - 431,077 - 431,077
Hih B (JERED) Other receivables (non-current)
(BRERE=HFER) (including loans to third parties) - 132,436 - 132,436
- 563,513 - 563,513
RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2021
EUATEENEATE
Fair value measurement using
WERMS EVNG| BEAANT
LB BR2E BR2Y
(B—H) (B=®) (B=H) o
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARETT ARBET T ARET T ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
MBS AR ER(IERE)  Loans to associates (non-current) = 273,481 = 273,481
Hth el 8 (JER ED) Other receivables (non-current)
(RERE=HFER) (including loans to third parties) - 104,024 - 104,024
= 377,505 = 377,505
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_Z- "+ A=+—HILFE

41. ST ENAFTERAT

41. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

EBERE& =) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
ATEEH &) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
HENFENEE - Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
R-BE-_—_F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2022
BUTAEHBATE
Fair value measurement using
WEBTE BEAXT EARAH
ZHE 522y B2y
(F—4) (=) (B=#) st
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AR®BT R AR®T R AR®BT R AR®BT R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
Hihfg R (HEEERS)  Other borrowings
(other than lease liabilities) - 107,341 - 107,341
T EIRITRE R Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 1,132,875 - 1,132,875
- 1,240,216 - 1,240,216
RZE-_—F+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2021
EUATEENEATE
Fair value measurement using
RERT S EVNG| BEAANT
2B BR2 BR2Y
(F—%) (B=%) (B=%) 5
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREFT ARBFT ARBTT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Hinfg(HESR Other borrowings
(other than lease liabilities) - 32,283 - 32,283
ST EERITRE R Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 1,055,366 - 1,055,366
- 1,087,649 - 1,087,649
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

42.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
is RMB. All of the revenues of the Group are derived from
operations in the PRC. The financial instruments of the
Group are mainly denominated in RMB. The conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government. The main foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities of the Group were
certain cash and cash equivalents (note 26), which were
denominated in United States dollars (“USD"), Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") and Euro (“EUR"). In the opinion
of the executive directors of the board of the Company,
the Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedge policy.

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (31 December 2021: 3%) against USD
with all other variables held constant,the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2022 would have been
approximately RMB33,549,000 (2021: RMB1,293,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of the USD-denominated cash and
cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT-_—_F+-A=1+—HILFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

42. IR ERE &)
421 B EMEAER#)

(a) THREEEE)

(i) SRR (E)
R-ZE—-Z
=+—H WEAR
H S TREFHE
3% (ZETE=-—F+=
A=+—H:3%) -
i P A H B R4
T~ ABHEZZ
—ZF+=ZRA=+—
HIEFEEORHER
TG a0, 2 KA
R 5,606,000t (=
TZ—F: AR%
1,516,0007T) * £ &
HRBRENETRE
UWBRERReEE
P TE 3 Uezs 1B

PR -

R-ZE-Z
=+—H WEAR
M H BT EFHE
3% (ZE=-—F+=
A=+—H:3%) -
GRS ES 25
T~ AHEZZ
—ZF+=ZRA=+—
HIEFEEORTER
RS - B2 o)
AR # 48,0007t (=
TZ—F: AR%
47,0007T) * FEHR
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RekReFBMH
PE 5 Uitas ESTEATER ©

(i) (EEEE
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THEE R ER 7 mE

e

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (31 December 2021: 3%) against
HK$ with all other variables held constant, the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 would have
been approximately RMB5,606,000 (2021: RMB1,516,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of the HKD-denominated cash and
cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 3% (31 December 2021: 3%) against EUR
with all other variables held constant, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2022 would have been
approximately RMB48,000 (2021: RMB47,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of the EUR-denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any significant equity market
risk, nor exposed to any commodity price risk.

28 s iR £ @ B BR A &) SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.



42. R ERE &)
421 B EBRAER#)

(a)

(b)

mEE R (&)

(i) FJEmRB
AEBNTEEER
EETERERME

m BeRkAEEE
- HAEFRRE R
RITER > FHED
DN o
22 226 - 30 R34
& o

EERE
FHRARKARSRASS
Y - B RRKIRN - R
R BEERRAMEK
BRAK o

EREFEMRRITER
BEBRNRFEETEERYT
B B AR B P B s LA S
MEDHERSRERE - A
ZETHARERTRE(D
BRREEE(ME25))1
mPEA#SEEFRNER
T8 - AT BABZE
SREBNRSFEYRR
TERRKLE

AEBEYEFRHEE S EKRER
REERRSEETNRE
N AREBRERRER
1% € A8 B 35 & 7] B2 1R YR
ETHEBR - BRERE
EHMEPME  AKEE
ERARET OB
FEREREMERFER
EERE  YERIETE
BIEF  HARIUEERE
THAKEBEIES - K&
EREAAOUEERRS
B 5 IR R BT AR A B 1 B
15 N 3R & B R 8 E B ET AR
FETREDT  FIEEE
[ B fbFT U B FRIBIER, ©

B HS R Mo

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_Z-_—&#+_A=+—HILEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Interest rate risk
The interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Group
mainly include the wealth management products, cash and
cash equivalents, other borrowings and interest-bearing
bank borrowings, details of which have been disclosed
in notes 22, 26, 30 and 34 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, notes receivable, wealth management products and
other receivables.

All the cash equivalents and bank deposits are placed in certain
PRC reputable financial institutions and high-quality international
financial institutions outside Mainland China. All those
irrevocable bank bills, classified as notes receivable (note 25), are
issued by the banks in the PRC with high credit rating. There was
no recent history of default of cash equivalents and bank deposits
in relation to these financial institutions.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk and has policies in place to ensure
that certain cash advance has been received upon the agreement
of the related sales orders with customers. For those with
credit periods granted, the credit quality of the counterparties
is assessed by taking into account their financial position,
credit history and other factors. The Group also undertakes
certain monitoring procedures to ensure that proper follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group regularly
performs ageing analysis, assesses credit risks and estimates the
recoverability regarding such receivables based on historical date
and cash collection history of groups of trade receivables bearing
similar credit risk.
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42. IR ERE &)
421 B EMEAER#)
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Wealth management products are the bank financial products
issued by certain PRC reputable banking institutions. There was
no recent history of default and the executive directors of the
board of the Company are of the opinion that the credit risk
related to the investments is low.

In relation to other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors
is assessed by taking into account their financial position,
relationship with the Group, credit history and other factors.
Management will also regularly review the recoverability of these
other receivables and follow up on the disputes or amounts
overdue, if any. The executive directors of the board of the
Company are of the opinion that the default by counterparties is
low.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on ageing information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amount presented is gross
carrying amount for financial assets.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

B 55 R 2R P 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2022

1218 A
BHEEFSR 2HEHEERR
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1R E2MEER E3EER K[ zp73 st
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARET T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEAUNCIEA Loans to associates 515,286 - - - 515,286
Bl EERETE Amount due from a
joint venture 3,695 - - - 3,695
JEMRES: & R R IR Amount due from an associate 224 = - - 224
2 S EMERE > Trade receivables* - - - 513,818 513,818
RWEE — EE** Notes receivable — normal** 72,276 = = = 72,276
R 8 Dividends receivable 40,727 = = = 40,727
SHAFEMFUE - HabfEdR  Financial assets included
RRREMEEN in prepayments,
EREE-EFE* other receivables and
other assets — normal** 502,451 - - - 502,451
EERESR—RaH Pledged deposits —
Not yet past due 177,201 - - - 177,201
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents
— KB H — Not yet past due 3,822,329 - = = 3,822,329
5,134,189 - - 513,818 5,648,007
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(b) EERE &)
RASEE R FERE 7R (E
RZZE——F+-_A=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2021

1218 R
BHEEER ZHENEEER
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
FE1EE EplidE F3MEER B mE e
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEAUNCII-EA Loans to associates 471,632 - - - 471,632
YA ERETE Amount due from a joint
venture 2,911 - - - 2,911
JEMRES & R R IR Amount due from an associate 224 = - _ 224
2 S EMER* Trade receivables* - - - 651,490 651,490
RWEE — EE** Notes receivable — normal** 171,215 = = = 171,215
SFAFEMFUE - HabfEdk  Financial assets included
RRREMEEN in prepayments,
EREE-EF* other receivables and
other assets — normal** 237,960 - - - 237,960
BERENR—RaH Pledged deposits
- Not yet past due 144,407 - = = 144,407
RekREEEY Cash and cash equivalents
— K@ — Not yet past due 5,675,255 = = = 5,675,255
6,703,604 - - 651,490 7,355,094

* %

296

hat AB SRR &
MEBEEMS  ARERA
BEIA R E - R
BEEMNENRI R
R 254 55 -

fifi 5t ATRAS SRR - EA
BUEERNSRBEEL R
wBH - ABTEERETZ
ZeMEENERRARA
IR TER AR BRZSE 0
AEERERBREE
Bl BA - ZEERE
ENEEERERET
5] o

* %

For financial assets included in trade receivables to whi

ch the Group

applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based

on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 25 to the Financial

Statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,

other receivables and other assets, and notes receivable is

considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwi

se, the credit

quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE_ TS+ A=+—HLFE

42. B EBERE @) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
42.1 BEREBRER &) 42.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) mEtE (c) Liquidity risk
BENRHESEIRIEHRT Prudent liquidity management implies maintaining sufficient
EHMEE  c REBHEFEH cash. The Group maintains sufficient cash balances to provide
MIEEES  UAEBEESN flexibility in meeting its day to day funding requirements.

BeBFIBHREEMN

R-ZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+— The Group had net current assets of RMB4,017,386,000 which
H AEEHEERBDEE included cash and cash equivalents of RMB3,828,863,000 as
F 8 A R % 4,017,386,000 at 31 December 2022. The executive directors of the board of
T BREASNASEEY the Company are of the opinion that the Group maintains an
A R % 3,828,863,000 7T ° adequate liquidity reserve.

ARBAEZEATESR
B REBBFRBHRE

AEBRFRBIBEEETLR The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
B RIBEHE 2 SRBED the end of the year, based on the contractual undiscounted
HIERAT - payments, is as follows:
DPR—F 1255 BB5E st
Less than
1 year 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
ARMET T AR¥ETF T ARMET T ARMT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-Z-—F+-HA=+—H At31December 2022
B 5 NEMRERBRR Trade and other payables 1,835,341 - - 1,835,341
MBATRMEELRERE  Redemption liabilities on
a subsidiary’s shares - 2,804,261 - 2,804,261
E%HMAE Sale-leaseback 8,118 34,082 = 42,200
HEARE Lease liabilities 13,184 45,856 - 59,040
HfEmR Other borrowings 13,893 = 40,289 54,182
STESRITIE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 327,075 252,418 555,965 1,135,458
2,197,611 3,136,617 596,254 5,930,482

N-Z-—%F+-H=1+—H At 31 December 2021
B 5 M HE M RERBRRR Trade and other payables 1,890,539 - - 1,890,539
MBATRMEELREARE  Redemption liabilities on

a subsidiary’s shares - 1,662,783 - 1,662,783

HEaRE Lease liabilities 5,193 30,189 1,274 36,656
HAb a3 Other borrowings = = 31,530 31,530
T RIRITRER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 200,000 327,324 485,892 1,013,216
2,095,732 2,020,296 518,696 4,634,724
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT-_—_F+-A=1+—HILFE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

42. I ERERE »)
41.2 BAREE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

42.2 Capital management

AEEEREANTIEHBRRE
REBENFEEER S - ARER
RENERLE  UAFHEEB R
BEREEZRAL -

AEBEERHEEREE  WELE
MR BEEEIELRAZE - BMER
TR ERERE  AEEF R
MR SRS 2 B B 5RIE -~ [MIBR SR
EEARKEITHR - NEEHEE
SPAEAIINEBEMNEI B AR E - HE
R =F+ZA=t—HRERZ=ZZ
——F+-A=t+—BHLFE &
EUETEEAZ BIE - BRSER
{EL R B E -

AEBEFRAERER L RREE
AR R REREAR ARG
BABERGENADL - BRERE
RITERREAMER - RIS H

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a debt to capital ratio, which is a
percentage of borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company. Borrowings includes bank loans and other borrowings.
The debt to capital ratio as at the end of the reporting periods were as

R BEEERLEMT follows:
R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-C—F —E-—F
2022 2021
AR¥BT T AR%TT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
H A g (FizE30) Other borrowings (note 30) 54,182 31,530
FHERITE R (MIEE34) Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 34) 1,135,458 1,013,216
1,189,640 1,044,746
BREHE ARGER Equity attributable to owners of the parent 4,736,998 8,284,148
BEHEERL R Debt to capital ratio 25.11% 12.6%

43. EHHEEE

REERBRERREZARE BT E

BEAEM -

44. Lt & R

EERkAEMEmEERELET
BMARFEEELIEREEBRLRFESF

BRI -

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no significant events after the reporting period up to the date

of this report.

44. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
has been re-presented as if the operation discontinued during the current year

had been discontinued at the beginning of the comparative year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-_F__F+-A=1t—HLEFE

45. ZX A B B # ik R & 45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
R+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E=-= — T4
2022 2021
=3 AR®TT AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
VI - S MR Property, plant and equipment 5 8
CREAE Right-of-use assets 1,144 2,185
KRB ARNIKRE Investments in subsidiaries 20 248,644 227,120
249,793 229,313
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
HihfEURBE =X Other receivables 1,490 100
A IENGIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 7,638,711 7,623,038
HERRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 181,915 252,246
7,822,116 7,875,384
HmEE TOTAL ASSETS 8,071,909 8,104,697
= EQUITY
& 2 Share capital 77,058 77,058
A& (B Share premium 3,913,683 3,882,304
H AR EG) Other reserve (i) 51,645 49,518
IREB & F(i) Retained earnings (i) 2,614,568 4,008,110
MR TOTAL EQUITY 6,656,954 8,016,990
&f& LIABILITIES
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEEE Lease liabilities 1,248 2,332
H SRR ER Other payables 1,413,707 85,375
HEEE TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,414,955 87,707
EEREERE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,071,909 8,104,697
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B RS ek
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

45. KN R BIAR K 2) 45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
()  ARARFEBERREBEFBZ0OT (i) A summary of the Company’s other reserves and retained earnings is as
follows:
DR 13 B L1
B 2R H it RERZF
Share-based
payment Other Retained
reserve reserve earnings
ARET T AR TR AR®T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R=F-—%—H—H At 1 January 2021 6,047 22,608 4,159,493
FEEIE Loss for the year - - (28,329)
1E B Rt 5@t &l Employee share award scheme
—EERBEE - value of employee services 20,863 - =
BB (FEE12) Dividends (note 12) - - (123,054)

MWZE-_—F+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2021 and

rE—ZT-_—#%—F—H 1 January 2022 26,910 22,608 4,008,110
FEEIE Loss for the year - - (78,012)
& B it 2@+ &l Employee share award scheme

—EERBKEE - value of employee services 2,127 - -
BE 2 (HizE12) Dividends (note 12) - - (1,315,530)
RZZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2022 29,037 22,608 2,614,568
46. 1t E B K 46. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RZZZ=F=A=+WMAE  ¥BRE The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board
HESEIERBEED - of directors on 24 March 2023.
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